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PART [

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

In addition to historical information, this document contains forward-looking stacements. Forward-looking scatemencs are cypically identified by words or
ohrases such as “believe,” “expect,” “anticipate,” “intend,” “estimare,” “project” and variations of such words and similar expressions, or future or condi-
tional verbs such as “will,” *would,” “should,” “could,” “may” or similar expressions. The U.S. Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 provides

safe harbor in regard to the inclusion of forward-looking statements in this document and documents incorporated by reference.

Sharcholders should note that many factors, some of which are discussed elsewhere in this document and in the documents thac we incorporate by
reference, could affect the fucure financial results of the Corporation and its subsidiary and could cause those results to differ materially from those
expressed in our forward-looking statements contained or incorporated by réference in this document. These factors include, but are not limited, to the
following:

+ Operating, legal and regulatory risks

¢ Economic, political and competitive forces affecting our line of business

¢ The risk that our analysis of these risks and forces could be incorrect, and/or thar the strategies developed to address them could be unsuccessful
* Volarility in interest rates :
+ Increased credic risk

QNB Corp. (herein ceferred 0 as QNB) cautions thac these forward-looking statements are subject to numerous assumptions, risks and uncercainties, all of
which change over time, and QNB assumes no duty to updare forward-looking statements. Management cautions readers not to place undue reliance on
any forward-looking statements. These statements speak only as of the date made, and they advise readers thac various factors, including those described
above, could affect QNB's financial performance and could cause our actual results or circumstances for future periods to differ materially from those
anticipated or projected. Except as required by law, we do not undertake, and specifically disclaim any obligation, to publicly release any revisions to any
forward-looking scacements to reflect the accurrence of anticipated or unanticipated events or circumstances after the date of such statements.

ITEM 1. BUSINESS

Overview

QNB Corp. was incorporated under the laws of the Commonwealth of r’énnsylvania on June 4, 1984, QNB Corp. is registered with the Federal Reserve
Board as a bank holding company under the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956 and ¢onducts its business through its wholly-owned subsidiary, The
Quakertown National Bank. ‘ :

The Quakertown National Bank is a national banking association organized in 1877, The Quakertown National Bank is chartered under the National
Banking Act and is subject to Federal and state laws applicable to commercial banks.

The Quakertown National Bank is engaged in the general commercial banking business and provides a full range of banking services and trusc services to
its cuscomers. These banking services consist of, among other things, actracting deposits and using these funds in making commercial loans, residential
mortgage loans, consumer loans, and purchasing investmenc securities. These deposits are in the form of time, demand and savings accounts. Such time
deposits include certificates of deposit and individual retirement accounts. The Bank's savings accounts include money marker accounts, club accounts,
interest-bearing demand accounts and tradicional statement savings accounts.

* The Quakercown National Bank’s principal office is located in Quakertown, Bucks County, Peansylvania. The Quakertown National Bank
also operates seven ather full service community banking offices in Bucks, Montgomery and Lehigh counties in southeastern Pennsylvania.

* At December 31, 2004, QNB had toral assets of approximately $583,644,000, roral loans of approximacely $268,048,000, total
deposits of approximately $466,488,000 and total sharcholders’ equity of approximately $45,775,000.

* For the year ended December 31, 2004, QNB reported record net income of $6,203,000 compared to net income for the year ended
December 31, 2003 of $5,648,000, an increase of 9.8 percent.

¢ At the end of 2004, QNB experienced its ninth consecutive year of increased earnings and increased dividends.




At February 14, 2005, The Quakercown National Bank had 141 full rime employees and 36 parc-time employees. These employces have a cuscomer-
oriented philosophy, a strong commitment to service and a “sincere interest” in their customers’ success. They maintain close contact with both the
residents and local business communities in which they serve, responding to customer requests timely.

COMPETITION AND MARKET AREA |
The bankmg business is hlghly compctmvc, and :he pmﬁtabxhty of QNB Corp dcpends prmcxpally upon The: Quakertown Nauonal Banks ablluy o
compete in its market area. We face intense competition within our market both in making loans and atracting deposits. The upper Bucks southern
Lehigh, and northern Momgomcry areas have a high concencracion of fi nancial insticutions including large national and regional banks, community banks,
savings institutions and credit unions., Some of our, competitors offer products and services that we currencly do not offer, such as private banking,
However, we have been able to compete effectively with other financial insticutions by cmphas:zmg tcchnology. including internet-banking and electronic
bill pay, and customer service, mdudmg local decision-making on loans, the establishment of long-term customer relationships and cuscomer, loyalty, and
products and services designed to address the spccxﬁc needs of our customers,

Our competition for loans and deposits comes principally from commercial banks, savings institutions, credit unions and non-bank financial service
providers. Facrors in successfully competing for deposits include providing ateractive rates, low fecs, convenienr locations and hours of operation and
alternative delivery systems. Successful loan origination tends to depcnd on size, rate and terms of che !oan Many competicors wichin the Bank’s primary
market have substantially hxghcr legal lending lxmxts

Our success is dependent to a significant degree on economic conditions in eastern Pennsylvania, especially upper Bucks, southern Lehigh and northern
Montgomery countics, which we define as our primary marker, The banking induscry is affected by general economic conditions including the effects of
inflation, recession, unemploymen,, n:al estate values, :rcnds in the national and global economies, and other factors beyond our control.

SUPERVISION AND_kEcULAnoN

Bank holdmg companies s and bahks operate in 2 hlghly rcgulated environment and are regu.larly examined by Federal and state rcgu]:l(ory authontlcs
Federal statutes that apply to QNB and its subsidiarics include the Gramm-Leach- Bliley Act (GLBA), the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956 (BHCA),
the Federal Reserve Act and the Federal Deposit [nsurance Act. In general, these statutes establish the corporate governance and eligible business acrivities
of QNB, certain acquisition and merger restrictions, limitations on inter-company transactions, such as loans and dividends, and capital adequacy

requirements, among other regulacions.:

To the extent that the followmg mformanon dcscnbcs statutory or-regulatory provisions, it is qualified in its entirety by references to the particular
statutory or tegulatory provisions: thcmselves Pmposnls to change banking | laws-and regulacions are frequently incroduced in Congress, che stace legislacures,
and before the various bank regulatory agcnctcs QNB cannot determine the likelihood of passage or timing of any such proposals ot lcglslauon or the
impact they may have on QNB and its subsidiary. A change in law, regulations or regulatory policy may have a material effect on QNB and its subSIdlary.

Bank Holding Company Rﬁgu!z‘tion B .
QNB is registered as a bank holding company and is subject to the regularions of the Board of Govemors of the Federal Reserve System (the Federal
Reserve) under the BHCA. In addition, QNB Corp as a Pcnnsylvama business corporation, is also subject to the provisions of Section 115 of the
Pcnnsylvama Banking Codc of 1965.

Bank holding companics‘arg required to file pcribdic rcpc;rts'wiéh. and are subjécr 1o examination by, the Federal Reserve. The Federal Reserve's regula-
tions require a bank holding compaay to serve as 2 source of financial and managerial strength to its subsidiary banks. As a result, the Federal Reserve,
pursuant to its “source of strength” regulations, may require QNB Corp. to commit its resources to provide adequate capital funds to The Quzkertown
National Bank during periods of ﬁnandal disirss or adversity. The support miy be required at times when QNB Corp. is unable to provide such support.

Depending on the circumstances, Federal Reserve approva.l may be required before QN B Corp. may begin to engage in any non-banking activity and
before any non-banking business may be acqmrcd by QNB.

Dividcnd Restrictions

Federal and state laws regulate the payment of dividends by QNB Corp's subsidiary. Under the Narional Bank Act, The Quakertown National Bank is
required to obuain the prior approval of the OCC far the payment of dividends if the total of all dividends declared by it in one year would exceed its net
profits for the currenc year plus its rc:amcd net pmﬁ:s for the two prccedmg years, less any required transfers to surplus. In addition, the bank may only
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pay dividends to the extent that its retained net profits (including the portion transferred to'surplus) exceed statutory bad debes. Under the FDIA, the
bank is prohibited from paying any dividends, making other distributions or paying any management fees if, after such payment, it would fail to satisfy its
minimum capiral requirements. See also “Supervision and Regulation ~ Bank Regulation”.

Further, it is the policy of the Federal Reserve that bank holding companies should pay dividends only out of current carnings. Federal banking regulators
also have the authority to prohibit banks and bank holding companies from paying a dividend if chey should deem such payment to be an unsafe or
unsound practice.

Capital Adequacy

Bank holding companies are required to comply with the Federal Reserve’s risk-based capital guidelines. The required minimum ratio of total capiral to
risk-weighted assets (including cerrain off-balance sheet activities, such as standby letters of credic) is 8 percent. At least half of cotal capital must be “Tier 1
capital”. Tier 1 capital consists principally of common sharcholders’ equity, plus retained: carnings, less cerrain intangible assets. The remainder of toral
capital may consist of the allowance for loan loss (Tier 2 capital). At December 31, 2004, QNB Corp.’s Tier | capital and total (ﬁcr 1 and Tier 2
combined) capital ratios were 12.25 percent and 12.98 percent, respectively.

In addition to the risk-based capital guidelines, the Federal Reserve requires a bank holding company to mainrain a minimum “leverage ratio”. This
requires 2 minimum level of Tier | capiral (as determined under the risk-based capiral rules) to average total consolidated assets of 4 percent for those bank
holding companics that have the highest regulatory éxamination ratings and are not contemplating or experiencing significant growth or expansion. The
Federal Reserve expects all other bank holding companies to maintain a ratio of at least | percent to 2 percent above the stated minimum. At December
31, 2004, QNB Corp.’s leverage ratio was 7.44 percent. '

Pursuant to the “prompt cotrective action” provisions of the FDIA, the federal banking agencies have specified, by regulation, the levels ac which an insured
institution is considered “well capitalized”, “adequately capitalized”, “undercapitalized”, “significantly undercapiralized”, or “critically undercapiralized.”
Under these regulations, an institution is considered “well capitalized” if it sacisfies each of the following requirements:

* Total risk-based-capital ratio of 10 percent or more,
* Tier 1 risk-based capital ratio of 6 percent or more,
+ Leverage ratio of 5 percent or more, and

*» Not subject to any order or written directive to meet and maintain a specific capital level

At December 31, 2004, QNB Corp: qualified as”*well capitalized” under these regulatory standards. See Note 20 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Scatements included at ltem 8 of this Report.

Bank Regulation

The operations of The Quakercown National Bank are subject to Federal and stace statutes applicable to banks chartered under the banking laws of the
United States, to members of the Federal Reserve System, and to banks whose deposits are insured by the FDIC. These operations are also subjéct to -
regulacions of the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency (QCC), the Federal Reserve, and the FDIC.

The OCC, which has primary supervisory authority over The Quakertown Narional Bank, regularly examines banks in such areas as reserves, loans,
investments, management practices and other aspects of operations. These examinarions are designed for the protection of depositors rather than QINB
Corp.’s sharcholders. The bank must furnish annual and quarterly repores to the OCC, which has the authority under the Financial Institutions Supervi-
sory Act and the Federal Deposit Insurance Act, to prevent a narional bank from engaging in an unsafe or unsound practice in conducting its business or
from otherwise conducting activities in violation of the law.

Federal and state banking laws and regulations govern, among other things, the scope of a bank’s business, the investmencs a bank may make, the reserves
against deposits a bank must maincain, the types and terms of loans a bank may make and the collateral it may take, the activities of 2 bank with respect to
mergers and consolidations, and the establishment of branches. Pennsylvania law permics statewide branching.

As a subsidiary bank of a bank holding company, The Quakertown National Bank is subject to certain restrictions imposed by the Federal Reserve Act on
extensions of credit to QNB Corp. or its subsidiaries, on investments in the stock or other securities of QNB Corp. or its subsidiaries, and on caking such
stock or securities as collateral for loans.




The Bank is'a member of the Federal Reserve:System and therefore, the policies and regulacions of the Federal Reserve Board have a significant impact on
many elements of the Bank's operations including the ability:to grow deposits, loan growth, the rate of interest eamed and paid, levels of liquidity and
levels of required capital. Management cannot prcdicf the effects of such policies and regulations upon the Bank’s business model and the corresponding
impact they may have on future earnings. '

FDIC lnsurancc Assessments

The Quakertown National Bank is subject to deposit insurance assessments by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) based on the risk
classification of the Bank. The Quakertown National Bank was not subject to any regular insurance assessments by the FDIC in 2004. Under currenc
FDIC practices, The Quakertown National Bank does not expect to be required to pay regular insurance assessments to the FDIC in 2005.

Insured deposits are assessed to'fund debe service on certain related Federal government bonds. The current annualized rate established by the FDIC is
$.017 per $100 of deposics. These assessment rates are set quarterly. The rotal assessment paid by the Bank in 2004 was $64,000.

Community Reinvestment Act (CRA)

Under the Communicy Reinvestment Act, as amended, the OCC is required. to assess il financial institurions thac it regulates to determine. whether these
institutions-are meeting the, credic needs of the community.that they serve. The act focuses specifically on low and moderate-income neighborhoods. The
OCC takes an institution’s record into account in its evaluation of any application made by any of such institutions for, among other things:

+ Approval of a branch or other deposit facility

* An office relocation or a merger

* Any acquisition of.bank shares | - -

The CRA, as amended, also requires chat-the OCC. make publicly available the evaluation of the bank’s record of meeting the credit needs of its enire
community, including low and moderate-income neighborhoods. This evaluation includes a descriptive rating of cither outstanding, satisfactory, needs w
improve, or substantial noncompliance, and a statement describing the basis for the rating. These ratings are publicly disclosed. The Bank's most recent

CRA rating was satisfactory.
Monetary and Fiscal Policies

The financial services industry, including QNB Corp. and The Quakertown National Bank, is affected by the monetary and fiscal policics of government
agencies, including the Federal Reserve. Through open market securities transactions and changes in its discounc rate and reserve requirements, the Federal

Reserve exerts considerable influence over the cost and availability of funds for lending and investment.

USA Patriot Act
In October 2001, the President signed into’the law the USA Pacriot Act, which strengthens anti-money laundering provisions of the Bank Secrecy Act.
The Acr requires financial institutions to establish &rrain procedures to be able co identify and verify the identity of its customers. Specifically, the new
rules, developed by the Sccretary of the Treasury, require that the Bank have procedures in place to:
¢ Verify the identity of. persons-applying to open an account,
* Ensure adcqua‘te‘majn(c‘nancc of the records used to verify a person’s identity, and
» s Determine whethier a:person is on any U.S. .gO\'rcrnmcnml agency list of known or suspected terrorists or a

S

terrorist organization: - . T :

The Bank has implemented the required internal controls to ensure bmpcr compliance with the Patriot Act.

A




Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act, signed into law July 30, 2002, was intended to bolster public confidence in our nation's capital markets by imposing new duties

and penalties for non-compliance on public companies and their executives, directors, auditors, attorneys and securities analysts. Some of the more
significant aspects of the act include:

+ Corporate Responsibility for Financial Reports - requires Chief Executive Officers (CEOs) and Chief Financial Officers (CFOs) to personally
certify and be accountable for their Corporations’ financial records and accounting and internal controls.
¢ Management Assessmenc of Internal Controls - requires auditors to certify the Cotporations’ underlying controls and processes that are used to
compile the financial results.
Real-time Issuer Disclosures - requires that companies provide real-time disclosures of any events that may affect a firm'’s stock price or
financial performance within a 48-hour period.
¢ Criminal Penalties for Altering Documents - provides severe penalties for “whoever knowingly alters, destroys, mutilates” any record or
document with intent to impede an investigation. Penalties include monetary fines and prison time.

The act also imposes requirements for corporate governance, auditor independence and accounting standards, executive compensation, insider loans and
whistleblower protection. As a result of Sarbanes-Oxley, QNB Corp. adopted a Code of Business Conduct and Echics applicable ro its CEO, CFO and
Controller, which meets the requirements of Sarbanes-Oxley, o supplemenc its long-standing Code of Ethics, which applies to all employees.

QNB Corp.’s Code of Business Conduct and Ethics can be found on the Company’s website at www,qnb.corn.

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
QNB Corp.’s principal exccutive offices are located at 15 North Third Sereee, Quakertown, Pennsylvania 18951, Its telephone number is (215} 538-5600.

This annual report, including the exhibits and schedules filed as part of the annual report on Form 10-K, may be inspected at the public reference facilicy
maintained by the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) at its public reference room at 450 Fifth Street, NW, Washington, DC 20549 and copies of
all or any part thereof may be obtained from chat office upon payment of the preseribed fees. You may call the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 for furcher
information on the operation of the public reference room and you can request copies of the documents upon payment of a duplicating fee, by writing to
the SEC. In addition, the SEC maintains a website that contains reports, proxy and information scatements and other information regarding registrancs,
including QNB Corp., that file electronically with the SEC which can be accessed ac wwwisec.gov.

QNB Corp. also makes its periodic and current reports available, free of charge, on its website, www.qnb.com., as soon as reasonably pracricable after such

material is electronically filed with the SEC. Information available on our website is not a part of, and should not be incorporated into, this annual repore
on Form 10-K.




ITEM2.  PROPERTIES

The Quzkertown National Bank and QNB Cq}p.'s'main*ofﬁcc is located ac 15 North Third Sercer, Quakertown, Pennsylvania. The Quakertown Nacional
Bank conducts business from-its main office and seven other retail offices located in upper Bucks, southern Lehigh;-and northern Montgomery counties.

The Quakertown Narional Bank owns its main office, two retail locations, its operations facility and an adjacent property for expansion, and a computer

facility. The Quakertown National Bank leases its remaining five retaif properties. The leases on the properties generally conrain renewal options. Manage-

ment considefs.thav ics facilities are adequate for its business.

8

Thc following tablé details The Quakertown;National Bank's properties:

Location . - L
Quakertown, Pa;: > =+ 1., 7 Maiw Office 1. o ,
. lS“N‘orth Third Sereer
Quakertown, Pa, - Towne Bank Center
T P . s 320-322 West Broad Street
Quakertown, Pa. r - ., - ‘++ Computer Center .
’ R v 121 West Broad Street
Quakertown, Pa. - Country Squﬁrc Office
240 South West End Boulevard
Quakertown, P2, - Quakchown Commons Branch
: 901 South West End Boulevard
Dublin, Pa. - Dublin Branch
VTN T AT 16 1"North Main Strect -
Pennsburg, Pa. = - Pennsburg Square Branch
e Yoo ' 410420 Pottstown Ave
Coopersburg, Pa.; - -+ ‘Coopersburg Branch
© s 51, South Thied Sereet
chjkmic, Pa. - -Perkasie Branch

O L RO FERRaTt: 607 Chestnut Streer
Souderton Branch
750 Route 113

Soﬁdcna‘xx, Pa. . -

- : FERRTN
P P

Owned
dwﬁ;d
O.wn;d |
Lessd

Leased

Leased

Leased
Owned
Owned

Leased -

In-management’s opinion; these propertics ate.in good condition and are adequate for QNB Corp.'s purposes.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDKNGS} ‘

Management, after consulting with legal counsel, is not aware of any litigation that would have a material adverse effect on the consolidated financial

position of QNB Corp. There are no proceedings pending other than ordinary routine litigation incidental to the business of QNB Corp. and its

subsidiary, The Quakertown National Bank. . In addition, no material proceedings are known to be contemplated by governmental authorities against

QNB Corp. or The Quakertown National'Bank or any of their properties.

ITEM 4.

None.

SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS




PART II

ITEM 5 MARKET FOR THE REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER

PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Stock Information

QNB Corp. common stock is traded in the over-the-counter (OTC) market. Quotarions for QNB Corp. common stock appear in the pink sheets
published by the National Quotations Bureau, Inc. QNB Corp. had 720 sharcholders of record as of March 1, 2005,

The following table sets forth representative high and low bid and ask stock prices for QNB Corp. common stock on a quarterly basis during 2004 and
" 2003. All periods presenced have been restated to reflect the two-for-one stock split distributed October 14, 2003.

Cash
High Low Dividend
Bid Ask . Bid Ask Per Share
2004
First Quarter $34.800 $34.750 $33.100 $33.800  $.185
Second Quarter 34.000 40.000 30.250 30.950 .185
Third Quarter 31.750 32.500 31.100 31.500 185
Fourth Quarter 32,500  34.000  31.300 31.500 185
2003
First Quarter $20.500 §$24.500 $20.000 $20.625  $.165
Second Quarter 22,750 24500  20.300 2t.500 165
Third Quarter 31.375  35.000 22.750 23.375 .165
Fourth Quarter 34.750  39.000 31.000 32.000 165

QNB Corp. has traditionally paid quarterly cash dividends on the last Friday of each quarter. The Corporation expects to continue the practice of paying quarterly

cash dividends to its shareholders; however, future dividends are dependent upon future eamings. Certain laws restrict the amount of dividends chac may be paid to
sharcholders in any given year. See “Supervision and Regulation - Bank Reguladion,” found on page 5 of this Form 10-K filing, and Note 20 of the Notes o
Consolidated Financial Statements, found on page 57 of this Form 10-K filing, for the information that discusses and quantifies this regulatory restriction.

Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table summarizes our equity compensation plan information as of December 31, 2004. Informacion is included for both equity compensa-

tion plans approved by QNB shareholders and cquity compensation plans not approved by QNB shareholders.

Number of shares

to be issued upon
exercise of
outstanding options,

Weighted-average
exercise price of
outstanding

options, warrants

Number of shares
available for Ruture

issuance under equity

compensation plans

{excluding securities

Plan Category warrants and rights and righes reflected in column (a)]
{a) (b) (c)

Equity compensation plans apptoved by QNB Corp. sharcholders

1998 Stock Option Plan 182,392 $18.03 28,836
2001 Employee Stock Purchase Plan ' - - 30,888
Equity compensation plans not approved by QNB Corp. sharcholders

None - - -
Totals 182,392 $18.03 59,724




ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL AND OTHER DATA

Year Ended December 31, 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
Income and Expense . " v .0 - o : ‘ 4
TRCEIESE IMCOMIE «.uvuvuivrrereeserantereesesesenrnssenensesssesessasseterarbasssesesissnsrnens $ 25571 $ 25,139 $ 27,191 $ 26,928 $ 24,698
Interest expense .......coreverienenne ettt et et e et s e e st et arereness 9,506 9,754 12,076 13,404 12,007
Net interest inCOME ...oveenceen.s eteenereearente e b i et sen e b e r b r e e aeate s e beonee 16,065 15,385 15,115 13,524 12,691
Pravision for loan losses ... - - - - -
Non-intercst income ...... 4,687 4,200 2,989 3,070 2,791
Non-interest eXpense ........ueereevereenenss’ rvereeses LRI R < 12,845 - 12,683 11,945 11,080 10,232
Income before income TAXES 1ooccemsetisesssnrassss s srstsbsse et e r s senas . 7,907 - 6,902 6,159 5.514 5,250
Provision for income taxes ' 1,704 1,254 1,204 1,078 1,144
Net income ....c...ou...n.. esessstsesie e ae e s $ 6,203 $ 5,648 $ 4,955 $ 4,436 $ 4,106
Per Share Data ‘ .
NEC ICOME - DASIC oviriiririeneririsimiiersrscreersssestosessesstssestessssississsssrnerss $ 2.09 $ 1.83 $ 1.G61 $ 1.44 $ 1.30
1.95 1.79 1.59 1.43 1.30
14.78 14.03 13.28 11.46 10.2¢
74 .66 .60 .54 46
Average common shares outstanding - basic ........oolevneviennnniniiniininn. 3,096,360 3,091,640 3,078,550 3,088,020 3,146,642
Average common shares outstanding - diluted ......cocerniiriniiiniiinnnnne 3,178,152: 3,153,305 3,109,353 3,094,735 3,147,239
Balance Sheet at Year-end :
Invesement securities available-for-sale .....c.oooviiveiiiinnvcnnninne $267,561 $260,631 $211,156 $ 165,362 $111,093
Investment sccurities held-to-maturity ....... bt r et raaestens 6,203 12,012 29,736 42,798 42,982
Non-marketable cquity SECURITIES .....v.overnrrrrseeramnrssssssseessesemsssssssessenne 3,947 3,810 " 3,585 2,740 3,152
Loans held-for-sale ........coecvnennee 312 1,439 4,159 2,122 1,642
Loans, net of unearned inCOME ..o eivvvirisioereeireneesesressesmsnsscssensanns 268,048 232,127 212,691 200,089 183,592
Other €arning assets ......coovveeviiieiniiiic e st sssneene 4,140 5,381 10,310 5,888 3,226
Total assets ............ ’ 583,644 550,831 503,430 451,274 371,671
DEPOSILS c.cuvrrrmmire e e Seevesnerriinrerenenens 466,488 438,639 388,913 344,731 293,822
Borrowed funds ... s 68,374 65,416 69,485 66,541 42,819
Shareholders’ equity ....ccccconnivne SO U TROPPRTTIIN 45,775 43,440 40,914 35,219 31,794
Selected Financial Ratios ‘ ,
Ner interest margin............. e S e e e recvens 3.32% 3.40% 3.68% 3.81% 4£.02%
Net income as a percentage of: b O T ‘ : ‘ . '
Average total assets........... - ........ s 1100 1.07 1.03 1.07 . 1.13
Average shareholders’ equity .....ccoovvevivcnnnne . 14.43 14.38 13.88 13.54 13.25
Average sharcholders’ equity to average toral assets . . 7.64 7.46 7.45 7.93 » 8.53
Dividend payout ratio .....cooveeecrvicrrnncciiseicines ferree st e nssseenenas 36.95 36.15 37.29 37.32 34.75

ITEM7. ~ MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
Res‘ult‘s t:;f,_;(‘)pcratipns S

Overview .‘ - 2

QNB had its ninth consecutive year of record carnings in 2004. QNB's net income for 2004 were $6,203,000, a 9.8 percent increase from the $5,648,000
reporced.in 2003. This cepresents basic net income per share of $2.00 and $1.83 for 2004 and 2003, respectively. On a diluced basis, net income pet share
was $1.95 and $1. 79 for 2004 and 2003 respecuvely th income for 2002 was $4,955,000, or $1.61 and $I 59 per share on 2 basu: and diluted basis,

e

rcspccnvcly

Two important measures of p‘r‘oﬁt’abiliry in ‘the banking industry are an institution’s return on average assets and return on average sharcholders’ equity.
Return on average assecs and retufn 'on’avetdge sharcholders’ equity were 1.10 percerit and 14.43 percent, respectively, in 2004 compared wich 1.07 percent
and 14.38 percent in 2003 and 1.03 percent and 13.88 percent in 2002,




2004 versus 2003 . ]
The 2004 results compared to 2003 included the following significant components:

* Net interest income increased $680, 000 or 4.4 percent, to $16,065,000.

» Contributing to the increase in net interest income was a 6.8 percent increase in average earning assets. The average balance of loans increased
by 8.6 percent, while the year-end 2003 to year-end 2004 balances increased 15.5 pcrccn: Avcragc deposits increased 7.3 pcrccm during
2004.

* The net interest margin declined 8 basis points to 3.32 percent. Included in nec interest income for 2004 is the recognition of $111,000 in

interest on non-accrual loans.

* The Federal Reserve Bank Board raised the Federal funds rate from 1.00 pcrcent to 2. 25 percent durmg the last six months of 2004. The yield

curve ﬂattmcd as short-term rates increased more than mid- and long-term interest rates.

Non-interest income mcrcascd $487 000, or 11 .6 percent, to $4,687,000.

+ The net gain on the sale of investment securitics increased $983,000, while the net gam on the sale of loans decreased $769,000. The ga:n on
the sale of investment securities is primarily from the sales of equity securities. The decline in the gain on the sale of loans is a result of the
decline in mortgage acrivity resulting from higher interest rates.

* A $141,000 gain on the liquidation of assets relinquished by a borrower partially offsets the $350,000 charge-off recorded through the
allowance for loan losses during the third quarter of 2004, related to this loan.

» Service charges on deposit accounts increased $151,000, primarily a result of an increase in overdraft income.

+ Non-incerest income in 2003 included. -taxzexempt life insurance proceeds of $109,000 and dividends from  QNB's interest in 2 title insurance
company of $70,000. o :

“Non-interest expense increased $162,000, or 1.3 pcrc.;cnt.; o $12,845,000. . '
« Salary and bencfit expense decreased by $32,000. Contributing to the lower salary expense was a reduction in incentive compensation of $247,000.
* The opening of QNB's first supermarker branch in 2004 contributed to the increase in net occupancy, furniture and fixtures and marketing expense.
+. The effective tax rate was 21.6 percent for 2004 compared to 18.2 percent for 2003 Contributing to the lower effective tax rate in 2003 was
the reversal of a $95,000 tax valuation recorded in 2002. The receipt of $109,000 in tax-exempt life insurance proceeds also had a beneficial
irﬁpact on the effective tax race in 2003.

2003 versus 2002
The 2003 results compared to 2002 included the following significant components:

Net interest income increased $270,000, or 1.8 percen, to 315,385,000.
+ Contributing to the increase in net interest income.was a 9.9 percent increase in average earning assets. This offset a 28 basis point reduction
'in the net interest margin to 3.40 percent. : T

* Average dcposlts increased by 12.7 percent, while average loans and investment securities mcrcascd by 104 pcrccnt and 8. 4 percent, respectively.

Non-interest income increased 75‘1 ,211,000, or 40.5 percent, t0»$4.2°0,000.\
+ A record low interest race environment resulted in significanc morcgage refinancing activity. The increased activity resulted in an increase in the
gain on the sale of loans of $247,000. ‘
* The loss on investment securitics was $134,000 in 2003 compared to a loss of $779,000 in 2002
. Tax-excmpt proceeds from life insurance was $109,000

Non-interest expense increased $738,000, or 6.2 percent, to 512;683.000.
* Personnel expense increased $664,000 with a new incentive compensation plan contributing $257,000 to the increase. Medicil insurance
. premiums increased $68,000.
* The effective tax rate was 18.2 percent for 2003 compared to 19.5 percenc for 2002. The lower effective tax rate in 2003 was a result of the

items discussed above, relating to the rax valuation and life insurance proceeds.

These items as well as others will be explained more thoroughly in the next sections.

Lt




Average Balances, Rates, and interest Income and Expense Summary (Tax-Equivalent Basis)

‘ 2004 c o - 2003 2002
- Average  Average Average  Average i Average  Average
Balance Rate Intecest Balance Rate Interest Balance Rate _ Interest
Assets )
Federal funds $old ..ooooorrorvccrerrreeceis $ 6,83 7 137% $ 93§ 11,236 1.12% § 126 $ "9,363  1.63% $ 152
Investment securites: o ) \ : ‘ .
U.S. Teeasury «ovovceeevreieencsslivenmvnssnirnns 6,536 1.97 129 6,697 2.65 177 6,530 4.45 291
U.S. Government agencies ......ouvvenrerses 35,239 3.65 1,286 37,392 4.27 1,595 29,844 5.47 1,632
State and municipal ... .. 51,548 654 - 3,369 46,631 6.86 3,199 42,235 7.10 2,998
Mortgagc-backzd and CMO:s ... . 141,464 = 4.25 6,012 124,002 4.19 5,195 118,135 5.40 6,382
Oher e srsessasns 29,890 5.33 1,594 31,870 5.39 1,719 30,840 G.11 1,885
Total investment securities ............... 264,677 4.68 12,390 246,592 4,82 11,885 227,584 5.79 13,i88
Loans: : : o ‘ : :
Commercial real eState .....ovcervierrerererenenins 114,804 - 5.88 6,748 . 105,670 6.19 6,545 90,346 7.58 6,852
Residential real estate .......oooiinninniiininanns 20,820 6.22 1,296 24,630 6.78 1,669 27,628 7.16 1,979
Home equity loans.......... v 54910 571 3,134 47,741 6.43 3,070 41,286 7.1 2,934
Commercial and industrial .........oceuvvnenene 41,511 5.02 . 2,084 35,927 5.25 1,885 31,553 6.38 2,014
Consumer l0ans .o...oovrrereeeerererernseanreressnnes 5,673 9.32 529 6,299  9.87 622 6,779 8.90 603
Tax-exempt 10ans ....coevvirruiscrersiluncenrnnes © 12,627 5.23 661 10,261 6.17 633 11,190 6.91 773
' Towl loans, net of uneamed income® .. 250,345 577 . 14,452 230,528  6.26 14,424 208,782  7.26 15,155
Other carning asscts ‘ 4,866  1.63 80 4882 184 90 3,188  3.40 108
Total carning assets ......coecrvrieiereenne 526,722 5.13 27,015 . 493,238 5.38 26,525 448,917 6.37 28,603
Cash and-due from banks 20074 . 18207 15,495
Allowance for loan losses..... : (2,843) - C(2,937) . (2,887)
Other assets ...coeveeecrcrenennn. . 18,629 ‘ 18,266 17,969
Total ASSELS «.oveveeereersserreenssoseresens $562,582  4.80% $526,774  5.04% $479,494  5.97%
Liabilities and Sharcholders' Equity
Interest-bearing deposics ‘
laterest-bearing demand ACCOUNCS -.covenvene $100,684 68% - 681 $ 87,570 .63% 554 $ 61,006 .64% 393
Money market accounts ....... 44,364 .99 441 36,138 .83 298 37.171 L3t © 559
SavIngs oo 54,613 .39 215 50,616 .64 324 41,764 1.19 497
Time e : 156,511 2.65 4,153 © 152,321 2.96 4,511 141,854 4.12 . 5,843
Time over $100,000 weorerreeerrreessrsiversoeen 40,880 242 990 43,289 249 1,080 46354  3.48 1,614
Total interest-bearting dcpqsics ........... 397,052 1.63 6,480 369,934 1.83 6,767 328,149 2.71 8,906
Short-term borrowings.......... AR - 11,938 - 1.03 124 10,226 1.04 106 13,880 - 1.90 264
Federal Home Loan Bank advances ......... -4 55,000 5.28 2,902 55,000 5.24 2,881 54,540 5.33 2,906
" Total interest-bearing habllmes..' ......... 463,990 2.05 9,506 - 435,160 2.24 9,754 396,569 3.05 12,076
Non-interest-bearing dcpos:ts SRR 52,691 ' " 49,164 43,569
Other liabilidies ............ rerrreenseareesaens 2,926 3,164 3,649
Shareholders’ equity .......oovvocrercuieiiicrinnnns 42,975 C - 39,286 - ~ 35,707
Total liabilities and :
shareholders’ equity ....cccovvvcrececiae $562,582 1.69% $526,774 1.85% $ 479,494 2.52%
Net interest rate spread ....coivvvinreciernenes 3.08% - 3.14% » 3.32%
Margin/net interest mcomc .......... o 3.32% $ 17,509 3.40% $16,771 3.68% $16,527

Tax-exempc securities and loans were adjusted to a tax-cquivalent basis and are based on the marginal Federal corporate cax cace of 34 percent,
Non-accrual loans are included in carning assets.
* Includes loans held-for-sale.




Net Interest Income

The following table presents the adjustment to convert net interest income to net interest income on a fully raxable equivalent basis for the years ended
December 2004, 2003 and 2002.

Net Interest Income

December 31, 2004 2003 2002
TOUAL ICEIESE INCOMIE 1.vvvvreerieirererirverirtinsscrsresssseesssre e ansssnsesressesseseareasebabessreseatatseasatsbensaesesearasassrstssarnsnssns §$ 25,571 $25,139 $27,191
Total interest eXPEnse .......vcvvevvieirirrinrisersisieicissiemenns vt s st aseavasae e e er s sssastnRsRarensseas - 9,506 9,754 12,076
INEE FLETEST EIICOMIE L.ovviviririuieirreessessraserseisteasssessessseerssessrsssseresssnsssssssssessesssesnssnasssssastonnssnessansnseesasesnseassnen 16,065 15,385 15,115
Tax equivalent adjUStmEnt v ve i e s et nrses 1,444 1,386 1,412
Net interest income (fully taxable equUIVAlEnt) ...co.ovvveeriivece e et $17,509 $16,771 $ 16,527

Net interest income is the primary source of operating income for QNB. Net interest income is interest income, dividends, and fees on earning assets, less
incerest expense incurred for funding sources. Eaning assets primarily include loans, investment securities and Federal funds sold. Sources used to fund these
assets include deposits, borrowed funds and carnings. Net interest income is affected by changes in interest rates, the volume and mix of eaming assets and
interest-bearing liabilities, and the amount of carning assets funded by non-incerest-bearing deposits.

For purposes of this discussion, interest income and the average yield earned on loans and investmenc securities are adjusted to a rax-equivalent basis as detailed
in the table that appears on page 12. This adjustment to interest income is made for analysis purposes only. Interest income is increased by the amount of
savings of Federal income taxes, which QNB realizes by investing in certain tax-exempt state and municipal securities and by making loans to certain tax-
exempt organizations. In this way, the ultimate economic impact of earnings from various assets can be more easily compared.

The net interest rate spread is the difference between average rates received on carning assets and average rates paid on interest-bearing liabilities, while che net
interest margin includes interest-free sources of funds.

On a fully tax-equivalent basis, net interest income for 2004 increased $738,000, or 4.4 percent, to $17,509,000. As has been the trend, the ability to increase
net interest income is a result of the growih in deposits and the investment of these deposits into profitable loans and investment securities. This growth in
carning assets has been able to offset the continued decline in the net interest margin resulting from the low interest rate environment of the past few years.
While core deposits continued to increase, a significant concributor to the growth in deposics in 2004 was additional deposics of local municipalities and school
districts. The majority of the growth in chese deposits is seasonal and will likely be withdrawn ducing the firsc and second quarters of 2005. These deposits were
primarily invested in securicies whose cash flow will closely match the andicipared run-off of the deposits.

Average earning assets increased 6.8 percent in 2004 while the net incerest margin and net interest cate spread declined by 8 basis points and 6 basis points,
respectively. The net interest margin decreased to 3.32 percent in 2004 from 3.40 percent in 2003, while the net interest rate spread decreased to 3.08 percent
in 2004 from 3.14 percent in 2003. Included in net interest income for 2004 is the recognition of $111,000 in interest on non-accrual loans thac have been
paid in full. Excluding the impact of the recognition of interest on non-accrual loans, the net interest margin would have been 3.30 percent for 2004.

The interest rate graph on this page shows the trend in market incerest rates for the period 2002-2004.

The year 2003 began wich expectations of a slowly improving economy and rising interest rates. While the economy did show signs of growth, the uncertainty
created by the war in Iraq as well as concerns over the lack of job growth and deflation kepr interest rates at historically low levels. Interest rates were extremely
volatile over the course of 2003. The two-year, 10-year and 30-year Treasury bonds all reached historic lows on June 13, 2003 of 1.10 percent, 3.13 percent
and 4.17 percent, respectively. A¢ the end of June, the Federal Reserve Board dropped the Federal funds rate by 25 basis points to 1.00 percent. One resule of
these record low rates was a sharp increase in residential
mortgage loan activity, both purchase mortgages and
refinances. Interest rates rebounded quickly with the 10-year
hirting its high for the year of 4.61 percent in carly
September and che 30-year hicting its high of 5.45 percent
in August, The shorter end of the yield curve was slower to
react as a resule of indications by the Federal Reserve Board
that it would be patient in raising the Federal funds rate,
The two-year Treasury bond reached its high for the year of
2.12 percent in early December before finishing the year at
1.82 percent. The 10-year and 30-year bonds ended the
year at 4.25 percent and 5.07 percent, respectively. Oéec_ ol
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Rate- Voﬂume Analysus of Changes in Net Interest income (Tax-Equivatent Basis}

s b e Gl L : 2004 vs. 2003 . 2003 vs. 2002
' Change du¢ to Tortal Change ducto Toral
Volume Rate Chaﬂge; Volume Rate Change
Incerest income: 3 L ’ o ) )
Federal funds sold .. $ (49) 8 16 $ (33) 8318 57y 8 (26)
Investment securities avajlablc-fot—salc: . _ » S )
U.s. Trcasury ...................... R . 4) (44) (48} 7 a2ty o (114)
U.S. Govcmmcn: agenciés I, el N Wi - (92) (217) (309) 412+ (449) “(37)
State and mumcxpal.........; ...... S : 337 (167) 170 312 (111) 201
Mortgage-backed and CMOs ...... ’ w730 UB6 817 317 -, (1,504) .. (1,187)
Other O T T . (107) . (18) (125) . 63 - . (229)  (166)
Commercxal rcal cstatc 566, -, . (363). 203 1,162 - (1,469 (307)
Rcsndcnnal rcal estate . (258)  (115) (373) (215) 95) (310)
" Home equity [oans....‘.. 461 (397) 64 C . 459 (323)- 136
Commercial and indusetial’ . 293 {94) 199 : 279 - {408) - (129)
CONSUMEE J0RNS . vu.vovcisrerivivreeserrenrassecsiesensacsenasmsessiessdsaiocnns (62) o (31 93) . 43) . 62 19
Tax-exempt loans .. 146 (118) 28 (64) (76) (140)
Other carning assets ....... pogerereteaessreaes errereangerereenen ererensestrseesnrsrase } - (10) (10) 58 . (76) (18)
- Total interest iINCOME i.esvureerernas et sy enes st gerseasaernie - 1,962 C(1,472) 490 . 2,778 . (4,856) - (2,078)
Incetest expense: - N AT PR el ‘ : . e -
Interest-bearing demand accoums eesierianeess i sese e e bessensera et ¢ 83 . . 44 . 127 171 . (10) 161
Money market accounts .......... B TSRO 68 75 143 (15) (246) (261)
Savings , reerresisereiaraea s aeatesesaetesaaaeseaRaae s beeseranerbsantes 25 (134) (109) 106 (279) (173)
e e L L 2125 0 1 (483) (358) 431 (1L,763) T (1,332)
(60) (30) (90) (107): - 427y (534)
18 - 18 (70) (88) (158)
R 21 - 21 ; 24, (49) (25)
. 259 . (507) (248) . 540 - . (2,862)y - (2;322)
$1,763 "8 (965) -3 738 $2,238°  $(1,994).  $ 244
— . — : - - — y

The year 2004 thay be viewed as'a turning point: It fnatks the yeaf when the Federal Reserve-Board began tightening monetary ‘policy after taking rates down
to 40 year lows. Using a “measured pace” strategy of tightening, the Board; beginning in June, raised the Federal funds rate five times by 25 basis poincs each
time, bringing the overnight rate to 2.25 percent at the end of the year. The 125 basis point increase in the Federal funds rate was matched by a similar increase
in the two-year Treasufy boiid betweén bcccmb;r-31‘,v'2003 and December 31,2004, while the 10-yedr bond fell by ane basis point. This flactenitig of the
yie‘ld curve is generally not a-positive for financial insticucions, as deposits tend to'bie priced off the shorter end of the yield curverwhile loans and invest-
ment securitics tend to be priced off'the 'middle part of the'yield curve. This gould result iri deposit rates increasing at a faster pace than rates on carning
assets, further compressing thé net interese-marging i .. 7 : KRR :

The Rate-Volume Analysis table, as presented on a tax-equivalent basis.above, highlights the impacr of changing rates and volumes:on total interest income
and interest expense. Total interest income increased $490,000, or 1.8 percent, in 2004 to $27,015,000. The increase in interest income was a cesult of an
increase in earning assets offsetting the continued impactof declining yields. The increase in-interest income ateributable to volume was $1,962,000, while
the decrease related to declining yields was $1,472,000. Despite the increase in market interest rates off their historic lows, the long period of historically
low interest cates has had che impact of low:rmg thieyield on earning assets-as loans and investmenc securiies either tepriced or were originated ac lcwcr
interest rates. The yield on. cammg 2ssétsion’a tax-cquxva]cm basis was 5.13 percent for 2004 compared to 5.38 percent for 2003.

Incerest income on investment securities increased $505,000 for 2004 as average balances increased 7.3 percent. This offset'a decline of 14 basis points in
average yicld to 4.68 percent. QNB increased its holdmgs of amortizing securities including mortgage-backed securities and collaceralized mortgagc
obligations (CMOs) in an effort to'increase both thc ylcld and cash flow from the portfoho, in anticipation of rising interest rates. :

%,

‘; e ‘.

Incerest | income on loans mcrcascd by only $28 000 in 2004 as'the'8. 6 percent increase in average balances was almost complctcly offsct by the impact of
dechmng rates in the portfolxo The volume increase in loans was centered primarily in commercial purpose loans and home equity loans, many of which
are indexed to the prime rate. The ylcld on loans decreased 49 basis points ta 5.77 percent when comparing 2004 o 2003. The rate of increase in loan
yields in. 2005 will be 1mpactcd by how quxckly and to what degrec the Federal Reserve Board continues to increase interest rates and-how much the:

competitive nature of the business will- kccp foan rates down.




Tocal interest expense decreased $248,000, or 2.5 percent, in 2004 to $9,506,000. The impact of lower interest rates on interest expense, particularly with
segard to time deposits, offset the impact of the growth in deposits. Volume growth resulted in interest expense increasing by $259,000 while lower interest
rates reduced interest expense by $507,000. A 7.3 percent increase in average interest-bearing deposits resulted in an increase in interest expense of
$241,000. A $13,114,000, or 15.0 percent, increase in average interest-beacing demand accounts contributed $83,000 to the increase in inceres expense
while an $8,226,000, or 22.8 perceny, increase in average money market accounts contributed $68,000 in additional expense. As discussed previously, the
majority of the growth in interest bearing demand deposits and money market accounts can be arttributed to the successful development of relationships
with several municipal organizations and school districts.

The rate paid on rotal interest-bearing liabilities decreased o0 2.05 percent in 2004 from 2.24 percenc in 2003. The rate paid on interest-bearing deposit
accounts decreased to 1.63 percent in 2004 from 1.83 percent in 2003. Lower rates paid on savings accounts and time deposits decreased interest expense
by $134,000 and $513,000, respectively, in 2004. The average rate paid on savings accounts decreased 25 basis points to .39 percent while the average rate
paid on time deposits decreased 25 basis points to 2.61 percent. The rate on money market accounts increased from .83 percent for 2003 to .99 percent
for 2004. This is primarily the result of two events. First, QNB had to pay a higher rate to attract the municipal deposits, second, the rising short-term
interest rates in the second half of 2004 impacted the Treasury Select Money Market Account. This product is a variable rate account, indexed to the
monthly average of the 91-day Treasury bill based on balances in the account. Managemens expects interest expense and the rate paid on interest-bearing
liabilities to increase throughout 2005 as higher short-term marker rates of interest result in higher rates paid initially on money market accounts and time
deposics. This will be followed by higher rates paid on interest-bearing demand accounts and savings accounts, accounts thar rend to lag as rates increase.

When comparing 2003 to 2002, net interest income on a fully tax-equivalent basis increased $244,000, or 1.5 percent, to $16,771,000. The increase in net
interest income was the result of che growth in deposits and the investment of these deposits into profitable loans and investment securides. Average earning
assets increased 9.9 percent in 2003. This growth helped offset the impact on net interest income resulting from 2 decline in the net interest margin. The net
interest margin declined by 28 basis points, while the net interest rate spread declined by 18 basis points, The net interest rate margin decreased to 3.40
percent in 2003 from 3.68 percent in 2002, while the net interest race spread decreased to 3.14 percent in 2003 from 3.32 percent in 2002.

Toral interest income decreased $2,078,000, or 7.3 percent, in 2003 to $26,525,000. The significant decline in interest rates and the extended period of
these historically low interest rates resulted in interest income decreasing by $4,856,000 in 2003 and the yield on earning assets decreasing by 99 basis

points to 5.38 percent for 2003. The growth in carning assets resulced in an increase in interest income of $2.778,000, helping to partially offset the
impact of lower rates.

Interest income on invesement securities decreased $1,303,000, with che yield on investment securities decreasing 97 basis points to 4.82 percenc. The
impact of lower interesc rates on interest income on investment securities was $2,4 14,000. The decline in interest rates resulted in heavy cash flow from
callable agency bonds and municipal securitics, mortgage-backed securities and CMOs. These funds as well as new funds from deposit growth were
reinvested in lower-yielding securities. Anacher tesult of che increase in prepayments on mortgage-backed securities and CMOs purchases at a premium
was an increase in the amortization of the prcmi{xm on these securities, The net amortization on investment securities was $1,204,000 in 2003 compared
to $793,000 in 2002. The increase in premium amortization has the impact of reducing interest income and the yield on the portfolio. An 8.4 percent

increase in the average balance of investment securitics resulted in additional interest income of approximartely $1,111,000, partially negating the impact of
declining rates.

Interest income on loans declined by $731,000, wich the yield on loans decreasing 100 basis points to 6.26 percent. Lower interest races produced a
reduction in interest on loans of $2,309,000, while a 10.4 percent increase in average balances resulted in an increase in interest income of $1,578,000.
Most of the rate impact was in commercial purpose loans and home equity loans. Many of these loans are indexed to the prime rate, which declined on
average 55 basis points between 2003 and 2002. Another contributor to the decline in interest income from rates on loans was the impact of the refinanc-
ing of residential mortgage, home equity and commercial loans into lower yielding loans.

Total interest expense decreased $2,322,000, or 19.2 percent, in 2003 to $9,754,000. The impact of falling interest rates on interest expense offset the impact
of the growth in deposits. Volume growth resulted in interest expense increasing by $540,000 while lower interest rates on deposits and borrowings seduced
interest expense by $2,862,000. A 12.7 percent increase in average interest-bearing deposits resulted in an increase in interest expense of $586,000. A
$26,564,000, or 43.5 percent, increase in average interest-bearing demand accounts contributed $171,000 to the increase in interest expense while an
$8,852,000, or 21.2 percens, increase in average savings accounts contributed $106,000 in additional expense. As discussed proviously, the majority of the
growth in interest-bearing demand deposits can be artributed to the successful development of reladonships wich several municipal organizations. The
continued growth in savings deposits can be attributed to consumers looking for the relative safety of bank deposits despite the low incerest rate environment.
Average balances on time deposits increased by 3.9 percent, contributing $324,000 to the increase in interest expense. A $10,467,000 increase in average time
deposits with balances less than $100,000 offset a $3,065,000 decrease in average time deposits with balances of $100,000 or more.




The averige races paid on deposit-icéourits, short-cerm borrowings and Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB) advances decreased in 2003. The rate paid on
toral interest-bearing liabilities, in’duding‘ the borrowings froim'the FHLB, decreased to 2.24 percent in 2003 from 3.05 percent in 2002. The rate paid on
interest-bearing deposit accounts decreased to 1.83 percent in 2003 from 2.71 percent in 2002. Lower rates paid on money market accounts and savings
accounts decreased interest cxpcnsc by $246 000 and $279,000, tespectively, in 2003. Among these transaction accounts, the average rate paid on money
markct accounts was impacted the most by ‘the'decline in interest rates, The yield on money - marker accounts declined 68 basis points from 1.51 percent in
2002 t6 .83 percent in 2003 Contnbutmg to the‘decline in the yicld on' money market accounts was the sharp decline in the yiéld on the Treasury Select
Money Market Account. The continued decline in the 91-day Treasury rate in 2003 resulted in significantly lower rates on this producr 2s compared to
2002. The average rate paid on savings accounts decreased from 1.19 percent in 2002 to .64 percenc in 2003.

. . o oot I
The continuing low interest rarc ‘énvifonment had a greater impact on time deposits in 2003 as many time deposics with longer original maturities repriced
lower during the year. lntcm‘st?é:periscon time déposits was§2,190,000 lower in 2003 as a resulc of lower interest rates. The average rate paid on time
dcpos:ts dccrcascd from 3.96 pércent in 2002 to 2.86'percent in 2003 ro !

LN .. A NS S SRR '

Management cxpcaé nct interest' incore to incmscslighdy in 2005 as a result of the growth in carning assets offsetting a net interest margin that will
likely be stable-or decline slightly. The yield curve'is cxpcctcd to flatten further in 2005, as the Federal R:scrvc Board continues to increase short-term
interest rates. A flat yield curve’ wxll continue'to put prcssurc on the'net incerest margm

B

Provision For Loan Losses
The provision for loan losses represents managément’s determination of the amount necessary to be charged to operations to bring the allowance for loan losses
10 a level that represents managemeént’s best estimate of the kriown and inherenc losses in the loan portfolio. Actual loan losses, net of recoveries, serve to reduce
the allowance. Despite a $350,000 charge-off during the third quarter of 2004, managément’s analysis of the allowance for loan losses determined no provision
for loan losses was nccessary'in'2004 s non-petforming asscts and delinduent loans declined and remained ac reasonible-levels relative ta the allowance for
loan losses. Additionally, theré was no piovision for loan losses recorded in 2003 or 2002. While QNB has not recorded a provision for foan losses in the past °
ﬁvc years, strong growrh in the Ioan portfolio as wcll as deterioration in credjt quahty could i lmpact the need for a provision for loan losscs in the future,
. . de s .

 Non-Interest Income -+ .= 0w Lo o :
QNB, through its care banking business; generates various fees and service charges. Total non-interest income is composed of service charges on deposit
accounts, ATM and check card iricome, income on bank-owned life insurance, mortgage servicing fees, gains or losses on the sale of investment securities,
gains on the sale of residential mortgage loans, and other miscellaneous fee income.

I FEREIHES - o doa .

Total non-interest income was $4,687,000 in 2004 commpared to $4,200,000 in 2003, an increase of 11.6 percent. Excluding gains and losses'on the'sale of
investmént securities and loans in both yéars; non-interest income increased $273,000 or 8.0 percent. Included in the results for 2004 was a gain on the
sale of repdssessed assecs of $141,000. Included inthe results for 2003 was the rccognicion‘ of $109,000 from life insurance proceeds.

When comparmg 2003 to 2002, non-interest income inéreased 40.5 percent from $2,989,000 o $4,200,000. Excluding gains and losses on the sale of
securities and loans, non- mtcrcst income incredsed 10. 3 percént between 2002 and 2003.

Fees for services to customers, the largcsc component of non-interest income, are primartly comprised of service charges on deposit accounts. These fees
increased $151,000, or 8.2 pércent, dunng 2004 to $2,000;000; Overdraft-income increased 15.7 percent and accounted for $241,000 of the total
increase in service charge indame. The'incredse'in Sverdraft income is a result of an increase in the fee effective March 1, 2004. Partially offsetting the
inctease when comparing 2003 to 2004 was 3°$33,000 reduction in service charge income on non-interest bearing business checking accounts. The
decline in the service charges bn Business accounts feflects the impace of a higher edrnings credic rate, resulting from the increases in short-term interest
races, applied against balances to offsct service charges incurred. ‘

When comparing 2003 to 2002, féés for scivices'ed customets increased $215,000, or 13.2 percent, during 2003 to $1,849,000. Overdraft income
increased $213,000, or 16.1 percent, duriig 2003} reflecting an increase in both the vo(ume of overdrafts as well as the fee chargcd The overdraft fee was
increased 7.1 perccnt dunng the fourth quartcr of 200’ oo S C .

. TEI Lowy . .
ATM and debit card income'i§ prirarily compnscd of income on debir cards and ATM surc.hargc income for the usc of QNB ATM machines by non-
QNB customers. ATM and debit'cacd income was $598 000 for 2004; an'inctease of §57,000 or 10.5 percent from the amount recorded in 2003, This
followed an increase of $32,000 or 6.3 percent between 2002 and 2003. Debit card income increased $41,000, or 10.5 pereent, to $432,000 in 2004,
Debit card income-was $391,000 in 2003 'ah'd $355,000 in 2002. The iricreasc in debit card income is a resule of increased acceptance by consumers of the
card as a means of paying for goods and setvices. Debi card incomie was negatively impacted in the second half of 2003 as a result of the legal sertlement
between the card companies and the retailers. This settlement resulted in a reduction in the amount earned per transacrion.
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Change from Prior Year

Non-Interest Income Comparison

2004 2003

2004 2003 2002 Amount  Percent = Amount Percent
Fees for services (0 CUSTOMELS ...ovvevereveeerreeseoens $ 2,000 $ 1,849 $1,634 $ 151 82% % 2Is 13.2%
ATM and debit card income ....ccvoeereccnrnrennene 598 541 509 57 10.5 32 6.3
Income on bank-owned life insurance.............. 300 330 - 372 (30) 9.1) (42) (11.3)
Mortgage servicing fees ......coonviirerrinenenne . 112 12 97 100 833.3 : (85) (87.6)
Net gain {loss) on investment securities . 849 (134) (779) 983 733.6 645 82.8
Net gain on sale of loans .....cco.ooevveerrnivnnee . 154 923 676 (769) (83.3) 247 . 36.5
Other operating inCome c....cvvevvveeiverinreiniiennn 674 679 480 (5) (.7} 199 41.5
TOl erveees s sessesressssssnesssssssssssssr e srssseees $4,687  $4200  $2,989 $ 487 11.6% § 1,211 40.5%

Income on bank-owned life insurance represents the earnings on life insurance policies in which the Bank is the beneficiary. The eamings on these policies
were $300,000, $330,000 and $372,000 for 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The insurance carriers reset the rates on these policies annually. The

decline in income over the chree-year period is a result of a lower earnings rate resulting from the lower interest rate environment.

When QNB sells its residencial mortgages in the secondary market, it retains servicing rights. A normal servicing fee is retained on all loans sold and
serviced. QNB recognizes its obligation to service financial assets that are retained in a transfer of assets in the form of a servicing asset. The servicing asset
is amortized in proportion to and over the period of net servicing income or loss. Servicing assets are assessed for impairment based on their fair value.
Mortgage servicing fees were $112,000 in 2004 compared to $12,000 in 2003 and $97,000 in 2002. The increase in mortgage scrvicing fees in 2004 is a
result of both 2 reduction in the amount of mortgage servicing fees amortized as well as a positive change in the fair market value adjustment. Both of these
are a result of a slowdown in mortgage refinancing activity in 2004. Amortization expense was §122,000 in 2004 and $174,000 in 2003, QNB recorded 2
positive market valuation adjustment of $26,000 in 2004, compared with a valuation allowance of $18,000 in 2003. QNB recorded amorcization expense
of $91,000 and a positive market valuation adjustment of $34,000-in 2002. For additional information on intangible assets see Note 8 of the Notes.to -
Consolidated Financial Statements included as Item 8 of this Report.

QNB recorded a net gain on investment securities of $849,000 in 2004. Included in this amount are net gains of $613,000 on the sale of equity
securities from the Corporation’s portfolio. In addition, QNB recorded net gains of $236,000 from the fixed income security portfolio in 2004,
The fixed incorme securities porefolio represencs a significanc portion of QNB's earning assets and is also a primary taol in liquidity and asset/
liabilicy management. QNB acrivc[y manages its fixed income portfolio and entered into several transactions during 2004 in an effore to-take

advantage of changes in the shape of the yield curve, changes in spread relacionships in different sectors and for liquidity purposes as needed.

QNB recorded a net loss on investment securicies of $134,000 in 2003. [ncluded in this loss was a $105,000 write-down of marketable equity
sccuritics whose declipe in markec value below cost was deemed to be other-than-temporary. These-securitics were determined to be impaired.
During 2003, QNB realized net gains of $128,000 on the sale of equity securities. In the fixed income portfolio, QNB recorded losses of
$157,000 during 2003. Over the course of the year, several transactions were entered into in an effort o reposition the portfolio. The goals of
these transactions were to reduce cthe amount of curtent cash flow from the portfolio, reduce the impact of premium amortization and to
increase cthe overall yield in che por;folio. QNB recorded a net loss on investment securities of $779,000 in 2002, Included in chis loss was a

$702,000 write-down of marketable equity securities whose decline in market value below cost was deemed to be other-than-temporary.

The net gain on the sale of loans was $154,000, $923,000 and $676,000 in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Included within the gains on
sale recorded in 2003 and 2002 arc gains on the salc of student loans of $35,000 and $49,000, respectively. Effective June 30, 2002, QNB
terminated its agreement with the Student Loan Marketing Association. QNB no longer originares student loans for sale, but originates on 2
referral basis. The balance in the portfolio was sold during the sccond quarter of 2003. Residential mortgage loans to be sold are identified at
origination. The net gain on the sale of residential mortgage loans was $154,000, $888,000 and $627,000 for the years 2004, 2003 and 2002,
tespectively. The net gain on residential moregage sales is directly related to the volume of mortgages sold and the timing of the sales relative to
the interest raté environmenc. The larger gains recorded in 2003 and 2002 reflect the impact of the residential refinancing wave that took place
in those years as interest rates were declining to record lows. Included in the gains on the sale of residential mortgages in these years vwcrc
$66,000, $345,000 and $246,000 related to the recognition of martgage servicing assets. ‘ .

Qther operating income was $674,000, $679,000 and $480,000 in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Included in the results for 2003 was the
tecognition of $109,000 from life insurance proceeds and dividends from the title insurance company of $70,000. No dividends from the tidle
insurance company were received in 2004. When comparing 2004 o 2003, trust and retail brokerage income increased $35,000 while net gains
‘on sales of repossessed assets increased $143,000. ’

17




When comparing 2003 to 2002, rétail brokerage income increased $38,000, dividends from the ticle insurance company increased $41,000 and
merchant processing income incrcascd $43,000. The increase in merchant processing income is a result of an increase in both the number of
merchants and the number of :ransacuons proccsscd Included in othcr opcratmg income in 2002 was a $21,000 recovery of a check card
transaction that had been charged offin 2001

Financial service organizatior‘l‘s; including QNB, are challenged to demonstrate that they can generate an increased contribution to revenue
from non-interest sources. @NB will continue to analyze ather oppartunities and products that could enhance its fee-based businesses.

) . “ ! ' .
Non-Interest Expense
Non-interest expense’ is compnscd of costs rclatcd to salaries-and employee benefits, net occupancy, furniture and equipment, marketing, thu'd
party services and various othcr operating, cxpcnscs Toral non-interest expense in 2004 increased $162,000, or 1.3 percent, to $12,845,000
This followed an increase in non-interest expense of $738,000, or 6.2 percent, berween 2002 and 2003. Despite the increase in non-interest
expense, QNB s overhead cffcxcncy ratio, which represents non-interest expense divided by net operating revenue on a tax- cqulvalcnt basis,

N

declined from approxlmatcly 61.2 pcrccm i’ 2002 to 57.9 percenc in 2004

Salaries and benefits expense is the largcst component of non-interest expense. Salary and Efficiency Ratio

B

62.06% 62.11%

benefits expense for 2004 was $7;163, 000, a deérease of $32,000, or .4 percent, over 2003, 63.0%
Salary expense decreased $53,000, or :9° pcrc;m, ih 2004 to $5,747,000. A portion of salary

expense relates to the bank’s inceéntive cérhbensarion plan, which provides for the sharing with

all éfnployecs (excluding senior management) of incremeéntal income above a Board determined ~ 6'6%
level: This plan resulted in‘a: payout of $119;000, or 2.7 percent, of cligiblé salary in 2004, This
compares to 2 payour of $4>7 000, or 10. 5 petcent, of eligible salary in 2003. Salary expense, 0%
without’ r.he incentive compcnsauon payoilt, increased $285,000, or 5.3 percent, in 2004. QNB
monitofs, ‘through the use of various surveys, the competitive salary information in its markets

and makes adjustments where appropriate. g 58.8%

Behefits expense increased by $21,000, or 1.5 percent, 10 $1,416,000 in 2004. The largest
increase'was in medical and dental premiums, which increased $55,000, or 7.6 percent. This is 574%

a result of the genéral increase!in‘medical insurance costs. This increase was partially offset by

an increase in cmployee withholdings for these bénefits of $26,000 and decreases in payroll 56.0%

taxes and workets’ compensation premiums of $9,000 and $7,000, respectively. 2000 2000 2002 2003 2004

Salary and benefits expense for 2003 was $7,195;000, an increase of $664,000, or 10.2 percent, over 2002. Salary expense for 2003 increased
$458,000, or 8.6 percent; to 5) 800,000.The i mcrc.asc in salury expense when comparing 2003 to 2002 was related to the $257,000 increase in
incentive compensation, mcm increases andan increase in the number of employees. The number of full time equivalent employees mcrcascd
by five whcn compating 2003 o 2002 '

A N TN
Benetits expense increased by $206,000, or 173 percent, to $1,395,000 in 2003. Payroll taxes increased $56,000, or 13.9 percent, primarily as a result of
the increase in salary expense’ ‘Medical dnd dental premiums increased $68,000, or 17.9 percent. This is a result of the general increase in medical
insurance costs as well as an increase in the number ofcmpfoyccs covered by the plan. Retirement plan expense increased $63,000, or 18.9 percent,
betweén 2002 and 2003, This expense was lmpactcd by an extra pay périod in 2003. There were 27 pay periods in 2003 compared to 26 pay periods in a
normal-year. This accounts for approxlmately $15,000 of the increase. Also i impacting retirement plan expense was the increase in eligible salary. When
comparing 2003 to' 2002, workers compcnsznon insurance prcmlums increased $12,000, or 47.2 percent.

No'n-lnterestv Expe‘n'seC,ohpa‘ris'oh ‘ SR ? o 2004 2003
' ' B e 2004 2003 2002 Amount Percent Amount  Percent
Salaries and employee bcncf'zs e $ 7,163 3§ 7,195 $ 6,531 $ (32) (.4)% $ 664 10.2 %
Net occupancy expense . Lo13 859 : 861 : 154 17.9 2) (2
Furniture and equipment eXpense ......cvremeverennss 1,148 LY 1,060 37 . 3.3 51 4.8
Marketing expense ...ouvereeeireasiesienns . 557 536 598 21 3.9 (62) (10.4)
Third party services ...t : 680 741 . 640 ) 61 (8.2) 101 15.8
Tclcphonc postage and supplles 521 556 545 (35) 6.3) 11 2.0
Stace (axes .ooveoonn. 37s - 331 335 44 133 @) (1.2)
1,388 1,354 1,375 ° 34 2.5 (21) (1.5)

$12,845 $12,683 $11,945 $162 1.3%  $738 6.2 %




Net occupancy expense for 2004 was $1,013,000, an increase of $154,000 from the amount reported in 2003. Contributing to the increase was higher
costs related to building maintenance, utilities and rent. The addition of the new supermarket branch as well as some repairs to existing branch locations
contributed to the increase in net occupancy expense.

Marketing expense increased $21,000, or 3.9 percent, in 2004 to $557,000. In 2004, the largest increases were in public relations and sales promotions of
$19,000 and $13,000, respectively. These increases were primarily related to the costs associated wich opening the new branch. When comparing 2003 o
2002, marketing expense decreased $62,000, or 10.4 percent, to $536,000. During 2002, QNB made several large long-term charicable pledges to not-
for-profit organizations, clubs and community events in the local communities we serve. These contributions were $90,000 less in 2003 than 2002.

Third party services are comprised of professional services including legal, accounting and auditing, and consulting services, as well as fees paid to outside
vendors for support services of day-to-day operations. These support services include trust services, retail non-deposit services, correspondent banking services,
staternent printing and mailing, investmenc security safekeeping and supply management services. Third party services expense was $680,000 in 2004
compared to $741,000 in 2003 and $640,000 in 2002. The higher costs in 2003 compared to both 2004 and 2002, primarily relate to the use of consultants
for technology projects as well as for human resource purposes. Partially offsetting the decrease in cansulting costs in 2004 were higher internal and external
auditing costs resulting from the increase in corporate governance as required under the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. Also contributing to the higher third party service
expensc in 2003 as compared to 2002, was the outsourcing of the printing and mailing of statements which began in the second quarter of 2003

Income Taxes

Applicable income taxes and effective tax rates were $1,704,000, or 21.6 percent, for 2004 compared to $1,254,000, or 18.2 percent, for 2003, and
$1,204,000, or 19.5 percent, for 2002. The higher effective tax rate in 2004 was a result of a decrease in the proportion of tax-exempt income from
investment securities, loans and bank-owned life insurance to pretax income. Also contributing to the lower cffective tax rate in 2003 was the reversal of 2
$95,000 cax valuation recorded in previous periods. The reversal of the valuation allowance was a result of the abilicy to realize tax benefits associaced with
certain impaired securities due o the increase in unrealized gains of certain equity securities held by QNB 'Corp. The receipt of $109,000 in tax-exempt ’
life insurance proceeds also had a positive impact on the effective tax rate in 2003. For 2 more comprehensive analysis of income tax expense and deferred
taxes, refer to Note 12 in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Financial Condition

Financial service organizations today are challenged to demonstrate they can generate sustainable and consistent carnings growth in an increasingly
competitive envitonment. Managing the balance sheet in a low interest rate environment has been 2 major challenge during the past theee years. The
flactening of the yield curve that occurred in 2004 will likely continue into 2005 as the short-term part of the yield curve increases, in response to the-

action of che Federal Reserve Bank, more than the longer end of the curve.

QNB’s primary competition in the banking segment of the financial services industry ranges from a mutual thrift insticution, to several large community
banks, to a few super-regional banks. The landscape in which QNB operates continues to change as several community banks in che area have merged with
larger locally or regionally headquartered communiry banks. In addition, other strong competitors continue to move into QNB's market area. The slower
economy, which has reduced the demand for loans, and the increased availability of loans from a varicty of financial service providers has led to increased
price competition for loans. Deposit growth, which for years was a concern of the banking industry, remained strong. A challenge in 2005 will be to retain
and grow these deposits, particularly if the stock markec continues to improve. The pricing of deposits has also become very competitive, with many
institutions offering higher promorional rates. QINB will continue to price its deposits competitively, buc attempt to do so in a manner thac will minimize

the negative impact on the net interest margin.

Total assets at year-end 2004 were $583,644,000, compared with $550,831,000 at December 31, 2003, an increase of $32,813,000 or 6.0 percent. This
followed growth during 2003 of 9.4 percent. Average total assets increased 6.8 percent, or $35,808,000, in 2004 to $562,582,000 and 9.9 percent, or
$47,280,000, in 2003. This growth in assets was a result of continued growth in funding sources. Funding sources, which include deposits and
borrowed money, increased 6.1 percent from year-end 2003 to year-end 2004 and 11.5 percent from year-end 2002 to year-end 2003. Average funding
sources increased 6.7 percent in 2004 and 10.0 percent in 2003.

Toral loans, excluding loans held-for-sale, at December 31, 2004 were $268,048,000, an increase of 15.5 percent from December 31, 2003. This followed
2 9.1 percent increase from December 31, 2002 to December 31, 2003. Average total loans increased 8.6 percent in 2004 and 10.4 percenc in 2003, This
loan growth was achieved despite the slow growing cconomy and the extreme competitive environment for both commercial and consumer loans. Loan
growth remains one of the primary goals of QNB.

The following discussion will further detail QNB’s financial condition during 2004 and 2003.
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Investment Portfolio. Hostory

December 31, - . R . ‘ " ) 2004 - - 2003 - 2002
Investment Securities Avmlable—for-Sale - - o ) : ‘
U.S. Treasuries ......coecenvrenrernine . . . $ 6114 $ 6,792 $ 6,641
U.S. Government agencies ...t ’ » v, 46,478 43,279 29,480
State and municipal securities ey PR 4RSS s R Rt 45,992 . . 41,076 26,783
Mortgagc-backcd securities ... ) 67510 66,476 170,748
Collatcralxzed mortgage obhgauons (CMO) 70,789 7 " 68,761 44 409
Other debe seciirities. e . el : . 21972 ° 25,214 . 24,530
Equity sécurities .....couiriveereraine reterneararsrennent evereserretesbeess iRttt T e sh s ettt e s s en s RN e RS ore s R s e anneareeRresabesnbrssresrae 8,706 9,033 8,565
Toral investment sccurities ava.llablc-for-salcl" ‘ . $267,561 $260,631 - $211,156

lnvestment Secunues Held-to-Mat’ i

State and municipal securitics ..... $ 11,180 $ 19,745
Collateralized mortgage obhgauons (CMOy) .. 832 C 9,991
Total mvcstmcnt sccuntlcs Held- to-mamnty‘. . $ 6,203 $ 12,012 © - $ 29736
“Tocal i lnvcstment securmcs...‘:‘.‘k.ﬂ..._'.’....‘.‘.,.‘ ........ e AR st _$273,764 » $272,643 ' $240,892

lnummem Secunnes and Otber Sbart- Term Invmmmu

Total investment securities at December 31, 2004 and 2003 were $273,764,000 and $”72 643,000, respectively. For Lhc same periods, approxlmately 68.4
percent and 65:9 percent, respectively, of QN Bsi investment securities were either U.S. Government or U.S. Governmenc agency debt securities, or U.S.
Government agency, issued mortgage-backed securities or collateralized mortgage obligation securities (CMO). As of December 31, 2004, QNB held no
securities.of any one issue or any dne, issuer (excluding the U.S. Government and its agencies) that were in excess of 10 percent of shareholders’ equity.
Average investment securities ‘incrcascd $18,085,000, or 7.3 percent, to $264,677,000 in 2004 compared with 1 $19,008,000, or an 8.4 percent, increase
in 2003. Average Federal funds sold decreased 39.2 percenc in 2004 to $6,834,000. This followed a 20.0 percent increase dunng 2003 o $11,236,000.
The higher level of Federal funds sold in 2003 was a result of the desire to have more liquidity to support the significant increase in deposits, particularly-
short-cerm time deposits and tranisaction accounts during 2003. In 2004, management made the decision ro reduce Federal funds sold balances by
purcha.slng short-term i investment sccuritics. Thhis was done for the purpose of improving net interest income. In addition, Federal funds sold, which would
be affected by the economic. stacus of the banking industry, and are short-term in nature, were only sold w banks with 2 minimum Sheshunoff rating of
“B", an mdcpendcnt rating service, at the date of che sale.

In light of the fact tha:.QNB's.“inv_estment portfolio represents a significant portion of earning assets and interest income, QINB actively manages the
portfolio in an attempt to _max’imizq,camings.;whilc still considcﬁng liquidicy needs and interest race risk. There was a significant amount of activity in the
portfolio during 2004, In response to both significant swings in interest rates and the shape of the yield curve, QNB performed several purchase and sales
transacions. Proceeds. from.the sale of investments were $66,715,000 in 2004, In addition, proceeds from maturities, calls and pécpaqunts of securities
were. $61,145,000. These proceeds wcrgp}scd.“té‘purchasc $130,878,000 in securities during 2004. Despite the amount of activity in the portfolio, the
composition of the portfolio remained, relatively unchanged berween 2003 and 2004. ‘ .
Management anticipates the investment portfolio activity will be minimal during 2005 as prepayment activity slows.and interest rates increase. [t is also
anticipated that loan growth will outpace deposit growth, resulting in less funds ro invest. Based on prepayment projections, QNB estimates that approxi-
mately $56,000,000, at a bookyield of,3t85,p‘er‘cen_t_.‘in cash flow from che portfolio will be available for reinvestmenc. Of this amounr, it.is anticipated
that $20,000,000 will be used to fund withdrawals of municipal deposits. .
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Investment Portfolio Weighted Average Yields

Under 1-5 5-10 Over 10 ]

December 31, 2004 1 Year Years Years Years Tocal
Investment Securities Available-for-Sale
U.S. Treasuries: ’

Fair VaIUE vttt v ss s e s stssasssar et s s s searresrasa e sones $§ 3,042 $ 3,072 - - $ 6,114

Weighted average yield ......oovveiviirceniniiensiin s 1.95% 2.11% - - 2.03%
U.S. Government agencies:

Fair valUL (.o secsissemsse s s s ssssenssses - $ 34325 $12,153 ~ § 46478

Weighted average yield ............rmmvrimncssessssrssssssnssssnssssse s - 3.49% 3.60% - 3.52%
State and municipal securities: ’

Fair Value oo e el $ 939 $ 14,304 $30,749 $ 45,992

Weighted average yield ...t - T 337% 5.72% 6.53% 6.21%
Mortgage-backed securities: .

Pl VALUE et ensenccietes s ses e ss s bbb ssbese b sssnas s essss - $ 67,510 ~ - $ 67,510

Weighted average yield ... sssnninsinens - 4.59% - - 4.59%
Collateralized mortgage obligations (CMO):

Fair value ..ot e snes - $ 69,904 $ 885 - $ 70,789

Weighted average yield .....oconvmiiininiiiin s = v 401% 4.10% - 411%
Other debe securities:. : : v

FAE VAIUE oottt sers et ees i saes s s ennniaes T8 5408 $11,537 $ 5027 $ 21972

Weighted average yield ..o - 7.17% 7.48 % 4.29% 6.61%
Equity securities: .

FAIE VAIUC oottt see s ses e bt be s et ensess s erosssantonanasrossasn - - - $ 8,706 $ 8,706

Weighted average FIEld oo e - T - 3.13% 3.13%
Tozal fair value ............ $ 3042 $181,158 $38,879 $ 44,482 $ 267,561
Weighted average yield 1.95% 4.22% 5.46 % 554% . 4.59%
Investment Securities Held-to-Maturity ' '
State and municipal securities: ' v

AMOTUZED COSE 1vrvverereereeiiieriasrssssssssecssriesiossesenssesssiranssssessserssrasessssssrans $ 300 $ 1,113 - 3 479 3 6,203

Weighted average yield ... “ 7.05% 6.00% - 6.96% 6.79 %
T0ta] 2MOITIZEA COST - ivvemrrereraeeesrieeeiseetsseeesaeseesesessseeresraessresessssensasesssnsonens 3 300 $ 1,113 - 3 4,790 $ 6,203
Weighted average yield oo s 7.05% 6.00% - 6.96 % 6.79 %

Sccurities are assigned to categorics based on stated contractual maturity except for mortgage-backed securitics and CMOs which are based on anticipated payment
petiods. See interest rate sensirivity section for practical paymenc and repricing characteristics, Tax-exempt securities were adjusted to a tax-equivalent basis and are ~
based on the marginal Federal corporate tax rate of 34 percenc and a Tax Equity and Financial Responsibility Act (TEFRA) adjusement of .15 percent. Weighted
average yiclds on investment securities available-for-sale are based on historical cost.

At Decermnber 31, 2004 and 2003, investment securities totaling $103,305,000 and $84,425,000 were pledged as collateral for repurchase agreements and

public deposits. The increase is a result of the continuing success of acquiring deposit relationships from municipalities and school districts.

QNB accounts for its investments by classifying its securities into three cacegories. Securities that QNB has the positive intent and ability to hold to
maturity ace classified as held-to-maturity securities and reported at amortized cost. Debt and equity securities that are bought and held principally for.che
purpose of selling them in the near term are classified as trading securities and reported at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses included in earnings.
Debt and equity securidies not classified as eicher held-to-macurity securities or trading securities are classified as available-for-sale securities and reported ac
fair value, with unrealized gains and losses, net of tax, excluded from earnings and reported as a separate component of shareholders’ equity. Management
determines the appropriate classification of securities at the time of purchase. QNB held no trading securities ac December 31, 2004 and 2003.

Investments Available-For-Sale

Available-for-sale investment sceurities include securities thar management incends o use as part of its asset/liability management strategy. These securitics may be
sold in response to changes in marke interest rates, related changes in the securities prepayment risk or in response to the need for liquidity. At December 31,
2004, the fair value of investment sccurities available-for-sale was $267,561,000, or $1,561,000, above the amortized cost of $266,000,000. This compares to a
fair value of $260,631,000, or $3,547,000, above the amortized cost of $257,084,000 at December 31, 2003. An unrealized holding gain of $691,000 was
recorded as an increase to sharcholders’ equity as of December 31, 2004, while an unrealized holding gain of $2,341,000 was recorded as an increase to sharchold-
ers’ equity as of December 31, 2003. The available-for-sale portfolio had 2 weighted average maturity of approximately 3 years, 7 months at December 31, 2004,
and 4 years, | month at December 31, 2003. The weighted average tax-equivalent yield was 4.59 percent and 4.61 percent at December 31, 2004 and 2003.
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“The weighted average maturity is based on the stated contractual maturity or likely call date of all securities excepe for mortgage-backed securities and
CMOs, which are based-on estimated average life. The maturity of the portfolio could-be shorter if interest rates would decline and prepayments on
mortgage-backed securities and CMOs increuse or if more securities are called. However, the estimated average life could be longer if rates were to increase
and principal payments on mortgigé-bdcked ‘s:‘cﬁridcs and CMOs would slow or bonds anticipated to be called are not called. The incerest rate sensitivity
analysis on page 32 reflects the repricing teem of the securities portfolio based upon estimated call dates and anticipated cash flows assuming management's
most likely interest rate environment. ‘

Investments Held- To-Maturity

Invescment securities held-to-maturity are recorded at amortized cose. Included in this porcfolio are state and municipal securities. At December 31,
2004 and 2003, the amortize:i cost of investment securities held-to-maturity was $6,203,000 and $12,012,000, and the fair value was $6,432,000
and $12,334,000, respectively. The held-to-maturity portfolio had a weighted average maturity of approximately 4 years, S months at December
31, 2004, and 2 years, 11 months at December 31, 2003, The weighted average tax-equivalent yield was 6.79 percent and 6.59 percent at Decem-
ber 31, 2004 and 2003. The increase in the wclghtcd average maturity is the result of the maturity or call of municipal bonds that had a short

average macurity at December 31, 2003.

Loans

QNB’s primary functions and rfesponsibilitics are to accept deposits and to make loans to meet the credic needs of the communities it serves. Loans
are a significant component of carning assets. Inherent within the lending function is the evaluation and acceprance of credic risk and incerest rate
risk along with che opportumcy cost of alternative deploymenc of funds. QNB manages credic risk associated with its lending activities through
portfolio diversification, undcrwrmng policies and procedures, and loan monitoring practices.’

QNB has comprchcnswe pohclcs and procedures that define and govern both commercial and Total Loans (in thousands)
rcml loan origination and managcmcnr of risk. All loans are underwritten in a manner chat $280,000 - .
cmphasxzcs the borrowcrs capacxty to pay. Thc ‘measutement of capacity to pay dclmcatcs the $268,048

potcntlal risk of non- paymcm ot defaule. The hlgher potcnual for defaule determines the need
$256,000

for and amount of collatera) required. QNB makes unsecured loans when the capacity to pay

N . . i . . . B N
_is considered substantial. As capacity lessens, collateral is required to providé a secoridary

source of repayment and to- micigate the risk-of loss. Various policies and proceduces pravide 5232127

T

$232.000
guidance to the lenders on such factors as amount, terms, price, macurity and appropriate

collateral fevels. Each risk factor-is considered critical to ensuring that QNB receives an . $212.691

adequate recurn for the risk undercaken, and that the risk of loss is minimized. ’ sioa‘.ooor
f v ‘ Co - e ’ $200,089

Al

QNB manages the risk associated with commercial loans, which generally have balances larger

$183.592
than retail loans, by having lenders work in tandem with credit underwriting personnel. In $184.000

addition, a bank loan commictee and a.commirttee of the Board of Directors review certain

loan requests on a weekly basis..w - - ., ; . : $160.000

2000 200 2002 2003 2004

QNB’s commercial lending activity is focused on small businesses within the local communicy. Commercial and industrial loans represent commer-

cial purpose:loans that are either secured by collateral ochér than real estace or unsecured. Real estate commercial loans include commercial purpose
loans collateralized at least in part by. commercial real estate. These loans may not be for the express purpose of conducting commercial real estate
transactions. Real estace residential loans include loans secured by one-to-four family units. These loans include fixed rate home equity loans,
floating rate home equity lines of credit, loans to individuals for residential mortgages, and commercial purpose loans.

Substantially all originations of loans to individuals for residential mortgages with maturities of 20 years or greater are sold in the secondary marker.
At December 31, 2004 and 2003, real estate residential loans held-for-sale were $312,000 and $1,439,000, rcspcctwely These loans are carried at
the lower. of aggregate cost or markct T ‘ :

'
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Loan-Portfolio

Decemnber 31, - 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
Commercial and industrial ©....ccoevveeriieieriieeni i eeereir s JRT $ 57,364 $ 47,196 $ 39,546 $ 39,694 $ 39,100
Agricpkural ................................................................. 8 - 14 176 2,622 3,027
Construction ........ e ettteresiesereaeeeerstereseaneeteenon e rataeesertearat et etenesenaraessesiersebarennes 7,027 9,056 7,687 3,989 380
Real estate-commercial .. 98,397 86,707 74,125 71,112 65,271
Real estate-residential ....uiviirveccriininiineereeneenessie s sessesetses s saessseseens 99,893 83,703 84,907 77,273 70,745
CONSUITIET ..oeverrerieeereseeesesssssereesesessessesessesesssssosessesssssessesesbsntoresessansesessssastsns 5,376 5,604 6,513 5,669 5,264
Total loans............ erereerrerrreteeateeta et s aeabbaa shbbenan et te R b enabaesnernrseernntaers 268,065 - 232,280 212,954 200,359 183,787
Less UNEAMEd INCOME cvevvevrrirverericirnrenseiesrenssressesssnessssonsesssssessssasensesessenesees 17 . 153 . 263 270 195
Total loans, net of unearned INCOME .......ooveiveeieeiirieeereeeree e secssreneees $ 268,048 $232,127 $212,691  "$200,089 $ 183,592
Loan Maturities and Interest Sensitivity
- : - Under 1-5 Over :
December 31, 2004 - . R 1 Year . Years 5 Years - Total
Commercial and IndUSEHl ...ooovciiiiierrieci ettt reasnas § 22,199 $ 22465 $ 12,700 $ 57,364
Agrigull:ural..................,..........; ........................................................ s - 8. - 8
CONSIIUCTION covvteeestee st sbs e s bt sa bbb st et b bbb b se bR s b s b e b bt 996 6,031 - 7,027
Real estate-commercial . 7,651 10,851 79,895 98,397
Real estate-residential ... 8,861 15,164 75,868 99,893
CCOMSIITIET ceseveiecneeiaecaestassssssssssessosesanmsssessasssssstesasssosatassessestansesassansnsinsserssssnestesssassassesssnssnaes 9217 4,290 169 5,376
TOUL oo s S $ 40,624  $ 58,809  $168,632  § 268,065

Demand loans, loans having no stated schedule of repayment and no stated maturity, are included in under one year.
The f;olIowing shows the amount of loans due after one year that have fixed, variable or adjustable intc_fesé rates at December 31, 2004:

Loans with fixed predetermined incerest rates 3 81,097

Loans with variable or adjustable interesc rates  $146,344

As mentioned previously, loan growth remains a major objective for 2005. Loan growth is to be achieved through the use of a formal business development
and calling program encompassing lending personnel, branch personnel and senior managemenc, This program was strengthened in 2003 by the appoint-
ment of a business development officer. The focus of this program is to both develop new lcnding and deposit relationships, as well as to strengthen
existing relacionships. This program has been successful as loans, nec of unearned income, increased $35,921,000 or 15.5 percent to $268,048,000 at
December 31, 2004. This followed growth of $19,436,000 or 9.1 percenc in 2003. Most of the-growth in loans in 2004 was centered in loans to small

businesses, both commercial and industrial, and loans secured by either commercial or residential real estate, and home equity loans.

The Allowance For Loan Loss Allocation table on page 25 shows how the composition of the loan portfolio has changed. The loan portfolio composition
changed slightly from year-end 2003 with commercial and industrial loans increasing from 20.3 percent of the portfolio ac ycar-enﬂ 2003 to 21.4 percent
of the portfolio at year-end 2004, and loans secured by residential properties increasing from 36.1 percent of the portfolio to 37.3 percent. Most of the
growth in loans secured by residential properties is home equity loans. Consumer loans as a percentage of loans continue to decrease as consumer loans,
especially auto loans, remain difficult to originate profitably because of the zero ratc or low rate loans offered by the automobile manufacturers.

For the second straight year, the commercial and industrial loan category experienced strong growth, increasing $10,168,000, or 21.5 percent, to
end the year 2004 at $57,364,000. This followed growth of 19.3 percent in 2003. Although a certain number of chese loans are considered
unsecured, the majority are secured by non-real estate collateral such as equipment, vehicles, accounts receivable and inventory. Loans secured.by
commaercial real estate increased by $11,690,000, or 13.5 percent, in 2004, following a 17.0 percent increase between Deccmbcr 31, 2002 and
2003. QNB’s commercial loans are not considered to be concentrated within any one industry, except those loans to real estate developers and
investors that account for $52,046,000, or 19.4 percent, of the loan portfolio at December 31, 2004. This is an increase from the $40,106,000, or
17.3 percent, of the loan portfolio, at December 31, 2003. Concentration is based updn Standard Industrial Classification codes used for bank
regulatory purposes and is considered to be 10.0 percent or more of total loans. Diversification is achieved through lending to various industries
located within the marker area. This diversification is believed to reduce risk associated with changes in economic conditions.



Residentcial real estate loans inr;re;scd $16,190,000, or 19.3 percent, to $99,893,000 at December 31, 2004. Growth in variable rate home equity lines of
credit concributed $8,795,000 to"'thc giowth in this category. Home equity loans, both term loans and lines, have been popular with consumers because
they have lower origination cosr.s than residential morxgage loans. The variable line of credit product indexed to the prime rate has been popular because of
the low interest rate environmenc. QNB anticipates some of these lines will be refinanced into fixed rate loans as the prime rate increases. Residential
mortgage loans increased $2, 139,000‘ to $22,443,000 at December 31, 2004, The increase in this category was centered in adjustable rate mortgages.

Nan-Perﬁmmng A.r:m

Non-| pcrformmg assets include accruing loans past due 90 days or more, non-accnung loans, restructured loans, other real estate owned and other

repossessed assets. The chart below shows che history of non-performing assets over the past five years. Total non-performing assets were $469,000 ac
December 31, 2004, or .08 percént of total assets. This represents a decrease from the December 31, 2003 balance of $829,000. Non-performing assets at
December 31, 2003 represented l 5 percent of total assets. Non-performing assets as a percenc of total assets remain at low levels both historically and
compared to peer groups. ;

Non- accrual loans are those on whlch the accrual of interest has ceased. Commercial loans are placed on non-accrual status immediately if, in the opinion
of management, collection is doubeful, or when pnncxpal or interest is past due 90 days or more and collateral is insufficient to protect principal and
interest. Consumer loans are not‘automatically plar.cd on non- -accrual status when principal or interest payments are 90 days past due, but, in most
instances, are charged-off when deemed uncolleceible or after reaching 120 days past due. Included in the loan portfoho are loans on non-accrual status of
$373, 000 and $818,000 at Dcccmbcr 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

There were no restructured loans‘as of Dcccmbér 31, 2004 or 2003, as defined in the Financial Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 15, “Account-
ing by Debtors and Creditors for Traubled cht R:structunngs, that have not alrcady been included in loans past duc 90 days or more ar in non-accrual

loans. There was no other real estate owned or rcpossesscd assets as of December 31, 2004 or 2003

Loans not included in past due, non- accruzl or festructured categorics, but where known information about possible credit problems causes management
to be uncerain as to the abilicy of the borrowcrs to corply with the present loan repajmient terms, toraled $4,328,000 and $5,348,000 ac December 31,
2004 and 2003, respectively. -

Non-Performing Assets
December 31, L ] 2004

Loans past due 90 days or more not on non-accrual status
Commercial and industrial ..
Agriculeural
Construction
Real estate-commercial .. -
Real estate-residential ......ccoiciiins LR SO RO PUE O TUUOON 68
COMSUMET vv.ovovreveerraesessesessnisssssesssssessesssesaniesssssssansenes ererrneneerasrsseesiesnae. 28

Loans accounted for on a non<accrual basis
Commercial and induscrial ... ...c.coeveviiveennnnnnnd DO Vevveeiarenne verrrreesireane . . 372
Agricultural ... “ TP RN ‘ -
CONSTEUCHION 1vrvvceiniciisi e iisassisnssassaseesssessernsssnosias -
Real estate-commercial ..
Real estate-residendial ...
CONSUMEL ..cvvvvreerrreeeeanens 1

Total non-accrual loans

Other real’estate owned .................. ............. fevennrnanens et aresennens -
Repossessed assets :

Total non-pérforming assets..

Toral as'a pcrccnt OF 101l 2SSETS L. ecievereicrucen vesinnernnnenesieannnesessecssssssesnanses . .08%
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Allowance For Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses reprc;cnts‘ management’s best estimate of the known and inherent losses in the existing loan portfolio. The determination of
an appropriate level of the allowance for loan losses is based upon an analysis of the risks inherent in QNB’s loan portfolio. Management uses various tools
to assess the appropriateness of the allowance for loan losses. One tool is a model recommended by the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency, the
Bank's primary regulator. This model considers 2 number of relevant factors including: historical loan loss experience, the assigned risk rating of the credit,
current and projected credit worthiness of the borrower, currenc value of the underlying collateral, levels of and trends in delinquencies and non-accrual
loans, trends in volume and terms of loans, concentracions of credit, and national and local economic trends and conditions. This model is supplemented
with another analysis that also incorporates commercial loan risk ratings, exceptions to QNB’s loan policy, and QNB’s portfolio exposure to borrowers with
large dollar concentration. Other tools include ratio analysis and peer group analysis.

QNB utilizes a risk weighting system chat assigns a risk code to every commercial loan. This risk weighting system is supplemented with a program that
encourages account officers to identify potentially deteriorating loan situations. The officer analysis program is used to complement the on-going analysis of
the loan portfolio performed during the loan review function. In addition, QINB has a committee that meets quarterly to review che appropriateness of the
allowance for loan losses based on the current and projected status of all relevanc factors pertaining to the loan portfolio.

A loan is considered impaited, based on current information and events, if it is probable that QINB will be unable to collect the scheduled payments of
principal or interest when due according co the contractual terms of the loan agreement. The measurement of impaired loans is generally based on che
present value of expected future cash flows discounted ac the effective interest rate, except that all collateral-dependent loans are measured for impairment
based on the fair value of the collateral. Ac December 31, 2004 and 2003, the recorded investment in loans for which impairment has been recognized
cotaled $372,000 and $796,000 of which $372,000 and $404,000 reé;uired no allowance for loan loss. As of December 31, 2003, $392,000 of loans
required an allowance for loan loss of $100,000. Most of the loans identified as impaired are collateral-dependent.

QNB had net charge-offs of $317,000 and $9,000 in 2004 and 2003, respectively. Included in net charge-offs in 2004 was a $350,000 charge-off related
to the relinquishment of assets by a borrower to the Bank as its sccured creditor, and the transfer of this loan to other assets as a cepossessed asset, Part of
this charge-off was recovered in the fourth quarter of 2004 through the liquidation of assets, which was recorded in non-interest income as a gain of

$141,000. Net charge-offs in 2003 were related primarily to consumer loans. QNB had net recoveries of $93,000 during 2002. Most of this recovery
relates to a loan charged off in 2001.

The allowance for loan losses was $2,612,000 ac December 31, 2004, which cepresents .97 percent of total loans, compared to $2,929.000, or 1.26
percent, of total loans at December 31, 2003. QNB did not add to che allowance for loan losses, with a provision for loan losses, during any of the past five

years because of the continued low levels of non-performing assets, delinquent loans, and charge-offs.

Management, in decermining the allowance for loan losses, makes significanc éstimates. Consideration is given to a variety of factors in establishing chese
estimates including current economic conditions, diversification of the loan portfolio, delinquency statistics, results of loan reviews, borrowers' perceived
financial and managerial strengths, the adequacy of underlying collateral, if collateral dependent, or the present value of future cash flows. The allowance
for loan losses is dependent, to a grear extent, on conditions beyond QNB's control. It is therefore possible that management’s estimates of the allowance
for loan losses and actual results could differ in the near term. In addition, various regulatory agencies, as an integral part of their examination process,

periodically review QNB's allowance for losses on loans. These agencies may require QNB to recognize additions to the allowance based on their judg-
ments using information available to them ac the time of their examinacion.

Allowance for Loan Loss Allocation

December 31, 2004 2003 ‘ 2002 2001 2000

Percent : Percent : Percent Percent Percent
Gross Gross Gross Gross Gross

Amount  loans Amount loans Amount loans Amount loans Amount  Loans

Balance at end of period applicable to:

Commercial and industrial .. 3 869 214% $ 685 203% § 521 186% § 531 198% $ 892 21.3%

Agricultural .......ccciiineene - - - - 2 A 32 1.3 41 1.6
CONSTIUCHION c.veevveevrrreenieeniee e nieees 79 2.6 123 39 103 36 62 2.0 10 .2
Real estate-commercial .................. 1,228 36.7 1,277 37.3 1,140 34.8 1,148 35.5 975 35.5
Real estate-residential ... 188 37.3 256 36.1 358 399 306 38.6 412 38.5
.2.0 21 2.4 25 3.0 23 2.8 42 2.9

567 789 743 578

100.0% . $ 2,929 100.0% $2,938 100.0% § 2,845 100.0%  $ 2,950 100.0%

Gruss loans represenc loans before unamortized net loan fees. Percent gross loans lists the percencage of each loan cype to total loans.
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Allowance for Loan Losses .
P R [ oo 2004 2003 2002. . 2001 - 2000

Allowance for loan lossas: .

Balance, january 1 $-2929. . $ 2938 $ 2,845 - $ 2950 . § 3,196

Charge-offs . . R :. Lo AR : - : K
Commercial and mdustnal" L £ 1353 - - - .. 86 163 .
Construction ..........c.... . = .- . o= - -
Real estate-commercial | e 17 - o= = 67
Real estate-residential....... ' : © 10 - 6 ' 32 27
CONSUIMIET .....eourerrerersieernsresrsassraesssssesrsssssssessasseseassnreseesessossranrans 26 ‘ 28 ) 33 N 31 7
Toral charge-offs... ‘ 406 28 39 . 149 264

Recoveries y o '
Commercxal am@ mdusmal X - - 83 6 2
Construction ........cuvnne . - - - - -
Real estate-commercial . 17 - - ’ 22 10
Real estate-residential . . 54 1 35 . 8 4
Consumer........ . i i 8 .. , 18 . 14 . e 8 2
Total recaveries ... R N T R 19 - 132+ . 44> . 18

Net (charge-offs) recoveries™.. ' GO e NI 93 ¢ (105) 't (246)

Provision for loan 10868 ....oocitonenen S L JBAGEL L L oy o - - : - RIS -

er U8 2612 0§ 2,929 $ 2,938 s 2885 $ 2950
$ 250,042 $ 229,001 $207,238 $ 190,290 $177.678
* Year-end .. 268,048 232,127 212,691 - - 200,089 7 183,592

Ratios: . .

Net chargc-offs (rccovcncs) s Co T : : e
Average LOBTIS oo ieearasess st s nseaest s raneesenne T 13% - (0% .06% .14%
L0305 AL YEAL-EN crorvrvoeviscvresiinrsnresissssscssssssssisssossssssstsesmssssnen 12 - (.04) .05 13
Allowance for loan 10sses.....covievrivicerieriiorinsnicnncnens PR 12.14 31% (3.17) 3.69 8.34
Provision farloan losses ... ‘ BN e .- . - foie L- . -

Allowance' fot loan Tosses 67 ¢ 737! 40 ! ) - : S :
Average loans : 1.04% - 1.28% 1.42 % 1.50% © 1.66%
Loans at year-end ‘ : 97 1.26 1.38 1.42 1.61
Non—perfqrrging !qans ....... s R 55693 ‘ 0 353,32 . 7447,18 . 477.35 ‘1411‘.48

e e R e v ! k

Depont.r

FLatTey e [ EETRTS

QNB pnmanly ateracts dcposxts from wn:hm its markct area by oﬁ”cnng various dcposu products mcludmg demand deposits, interest- bcarmg dcmand
accounts, money market accounts,. savmgs accounts and ccmﬁcatcs of deposic. . ... .

Total deposits increased $27,849,000, or 6.3 percent, to $466,488,000 at December 31, 2004. While still considered healthy growth, it represents a
decline from the 12.8 percent growth rates achieved in both 2002 and 2003 and the 17.3 percent growth rate in 2001. Similar to-the growth obrained in
2003,2 sngxuﬁcan: portio” ofthc,growth in 2004 was.a fesule of che ability of QNB to increase its relationships-with several school districts. Deposxt
growd’x in both 2002 and 2001 was more consumér dnvcn and was aided by continued lackluster performance in the scock market. Consumers were
looking for the relative safety.of bank deposits despite: the relatively low incerést rate environment. Most of the growth in 2004 was in money marker and
time deposits,‘while most of ‘tﬁcgrth in ZOOS.Wéslfn,noniintémt bearing' demand accounts and savings accounts. . ...

'QNB's “Free Chcc.kmg promotion; as  well as'the acquisition of new busiriess accounts were significant factors in the increase in non-interest bearing
deposits over che past rhrcc years. Non-incerest bcanng demand accounts mcrcascd 4 2 percent m 2004 co0 $52,603,000. Tbls compares to growth of 7.2
percent and 17.5 pcrccnt in-2003 and 2002, ) ‘

: 5,/ L o
Incerese- bcanng dcmand aéeounts dccrcascd $12,528,000, or 11.6 percent, to $95 120,000 ac December 31, 2004. This followed growth of $37,170,000,
or 52.7 percent,.in 2003 and $15 395,000, or 27.9 percent, in 2002. Much of the growth in 2002 and 2003 can be attributed to the development of
‘relationships with several schgg!:gikstr;qgs and munidipalitics’. The decline in balances in 2004 is related to a reduction in deposits of one of these school

districts. Some of this decline was offsec by.a 10.8 percentiincrease in personal interest bearing demand accounts. .




Money market balances increased $22,061,000, or 57.5 percent, to $60,434,000 at December 31, 2004. The additional deposits of a school district -
account for $15,000,000 of chis increase. These deposits are anticipated to be wichdrawn during the second quarter of 2005. The additional growth in
money market accounts can be parrially attributed to the Treasury Select Indexed Money Market account which reprices monthly, based on a percentage of
the average of the 91-day Treasury bill. This producr should gain in'popularity again as short-term interest rates increase.

Savings accounts continue to grow, increasing $3,503,000, or 6.7 percent, to $55,511,000 at December 31, 2004. This followed growth of
$6,670,000, or 14.7 percent, in 2003 and $8,178,000, or 22.0 percent, during 2002. It appears chat consumers are looking for the relative -
safety of bank deposits and the flexibility of savings accounts despite the low interest rates.

The growth in time deposits picked up during 2004 as these accounts were the primary beneficiary of rising interest rates; providing signifi-
cantly beteer interest rates than either savings and money marker accounts. Tocal time deposit accounts increased $12,678,000 or 6.7 percent to
$202,820,000 at December 31, 2004. Total time deposits increased only 1.9 percent, or $3,465,000, to $190,142,000 ac December 31, 2003,

An analysis of che change in average deposits provides a mare meaningful measure of deposit e ;o
change. Average total deposits increased 7.3 percent in 2004 and 12.7:percent in 2003, Average Dgposws fin m".md”
Avcrage non-intercest bearing deposits increased 7.2 peccenc to $52,691,000 in 2004, This : $4600001 , $449,743
followed a 12.8 percent increase in 2003. Average interest-bearing demand accounts
increased 15.0 percent in 2004, to $100,684,000, and 43.5 percent in 2003, to
$87,570,000. Average moncy market accounts increased 22.8 percent in 2004. This followed
2 2.8 percent decrease in 2003, As mentioned previously, the growth in interest-bearing
demand accounts in both 2004 and 2003 and che growth in money market accounts in 2004 $380000
ate primarily the result of the additional deposits from the school districes and municipali-
ties. Average time deposits increased .9 percent in 2004 compared o an increase of 3.9
percent in 2003. Much of the growth in time deposits in 2004 occurred later in the yearas a
result of the higher interest rates being promoted.

$420,000

$371.718

$340.000

. $300.000
Awcracting and retaining deposits, while not a significant concern invany of the past four years, may, -

once again become an issue facing the banking induscry. The equity markets rebounded in 2003
and 2004 from three down years and may once again be an attrgctivg alternative to low rate bank $260,000

2000 200! 2002 2003 2004

deposits. To continue to attrace and retain deposits, QNB plans to be comperitive with respect to
rates and to continue to deliver products that appeal to customers.

Maturity of Time Deposits of $100,000 or More..

Year Ended December 31, : 2004 . . 2003 2002
Three Months 0 LSS ..ot can e sseassesararaessianrns eeereroaias % 2134 $11,004 ’ $13,322
Over three months through six months ... 2,785 4,949 : 7,074
Over six months through twelve months ..o, o 14,117 . 7,906 11,667
Over twelve months . 22,939 14,979 8,765
TOtLoverevvvre e e et $4197 $ 38,838 $ 40,828
Average Deposits by Major Ciassification
2004 . . 2003 2002
“Balance”  Rate Balance Rate Balance Rate
Non-interest bearing deposits ..o, $ 52691 - $ 49,164 - $ 43,569 ~
Interest-bearing demand accounts . 100,684 68% 87,570 63% . 61,006 | 64%
Money market aCCOUNES ..cvvvcivereniicmmisii s 44,364 .99 36,138 83 372,171 1.51
i 54,613 .39 50,616 .64 41,764 - 119
156,511 - 2.65 152,321 2.96 141,854 4.12
40,880 2.42 43,289 2.49 46,354 . 3.48.
Total vt s evasersnes $ 449,743 1.44% $419,098 1.61% $371,718 2.40%
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Liguidity . Y Rl . :
Liquidicy represents an institution’s ability to generate-cash or otherwise obeain funds at reasonable rates to satisfy commirments to borrowers and demands
of depositors. QNB manages its mix of cash, Federal funds sold, investment securitics and loans, in order to match the volatility, scasonality, interest
sensitivity and growth trends of its dcpésit.fundi Liquidity is provided from asset sources through maturities and repayments of loans and investmerit -
sccurities, net interest income and fee income. The portfolio of investment securities available-for-sale and QNB's policy of selling cerrain residential
mortgage originations in the sécondary market also. provide sources of liquidity. Additional sources of liquidisy are provided by the Bank's membership in
the Federal Homc Loan Bank of Pitesburgh (FHEB) and 2-$10,000,000 unsecured Federal funds line granted by a correspondent bank. The Bank has 2
maximum bomwmg capacity with the FHLB of approxxmatcly $230,210,000. At December 31, 2004, QNB’s outstanding borrowings under the FHLB
credit Facxlmcs toulcd $55,000,000.

! o ML R S0 e oo L - h . o : .

Cash and duc from banks, Federal fuﬁds sold, available-for-sale securities and loans held-for-sale toraled $290,058,000 at December 31, 2004 and
$288,136,000 ac December 31, 2003. These sourcés should be adequate to meet normal Auctuations in loan demand or deposic withdrawals. For the most
pare, QNB has been able to fund che growth in carning assets during 2004 and 2003 chrough increased deposics. During the sccond quarter of 2004,

QNB used ovcrmght borrowmgs from the FHLB and its Federal funds line to help findithe significant loan growth at the end of the'quarter. QNB could
have sold investment secucicies msccad of using short-term borrowings to fund dhe loan growch, but decided ic made finanicial sense to use low cost funds as
opposed to sclling higher yielding investment securities. In addition, the Federal funds line was used several times during 2004 because of timing differ-
ences between the wichdrawal of funds by municipalities and the teceipt of the proceeds from the ‘securities matched against these deposits. '
Approximately $103,305,000 and $84.42§,000 of available-for-sale securities at December 31, 2004 and 2003 were pledged as collateral for repurchase
agreements and deposics of public funds. In addition, under cerms of its agreement wich the FHLB, QNB maintains otherwise unencumbered qualifying
assets (principally 1-4 family residential méftgéf';é loans and U.S. Government and agency notes, bonds, and mortgage-backed securities) in the amount of
ag least as much as its advances from the FHLB. The significant increase in pledged amounts relates primarily to the additional school districe deposics
received in 2004. These deposits were used to purchase available-for-sale securities thac were used to pledge against cthe deposics of the municipalities.

QNB's near-térm liquidity congern is che abilicy to meer che expected wichdrawal of 820,000,000 by a school districe duting the second quarter of 2005,
These funds are matched with callable agency securities with call dates that closely match the anticipated withdrawal dates. The risk is interest rates
increase enough that these sccurities are not called. In that case, QNB could use its credit facilities to fund the withdrawals, sell these callable securities,
probably at a loss, or sell other i investneént securities. A longer-term liquidity concérn is chat the equicy markets strengthen and the Bank suffers disinterme-
diation back to the equity market 2§’ it loses deposits chat it obrained during the years the equity markets were declining. During that time, many customers

prctcrrcd the safcty of FDIC-insured deposits compared to the uncertain equity market; despice historically low incerest rates.

Capital Adequacy

A strong capital posmon is fundamental o support contmucd growth and proficabilicy, to serve the needs of deposicors, and 1o }lcld an attractive return for
sharcholders. QNBs sharehoidcrs equity at Dcamer 31, 2004 ‘was $45,775, 000, or.7.84 percent of total assets, comparcd to sharcholders’ equity of
$43,440,000, or 7.89 percent of tocal assets, at December 31, 2003. A, December 31, 2004, sharcholders’ equity included a positive adjustment of
$691,000 related to the unredlized holding gain, net of taxes, on investment securities available-for-sale, while shareholders’ equiry at December 31, 2003
included a positive adjustment of $2,3}§_1 ,000. Withour these adjustments, sharehaolders’ equity to toral assets would have been 7.72 pcréent and 7.46
percent at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The increase in che ratio is a cesult of the race of capital retention exceeding che rate of asset growth.
Total assets increased 6.0 percent between De@:eml\)gr 31, 2003 and December 31, 2004 while shareholders’ equity. excluding the net unrealized holding

gains, increased 9.7 peccent,

Average shareholders’ equity and average rotal asscrs were $42,975,000 and 5562,581,0(50 during 2004, an increase of 9.4 percent and 6.8 percent,
respectively, compared ta'2003. The ratio of avérage totil equity to average total assecs was 7.64 percent for 2004, compared to 7.46 percent for 2003.

The Corporation is subject to restrictions on the payment of dividends ro its shareholders pursuant to the Pennsylvania Business Corporation Law as
amended (the “BCL"). The BCL operates generally to preclude dividend paymens, if the effect thereof would render the Corporation insalvent, as
defined. As a practical matter, the Corporation’s payment of dividends is contingent upon its ability to obtain funding in the form of dividends from the
Bank. Payment of dividends to the Corporation by the Bank is subject to the restrictions in the National Bank Act. Generally, the National Bank Act
permics the Bank to declare dividends in 2005 of approximately $7,261,000, plus an amount equal to the net profits of the Bank in 2005 up to the dace of
any such dividend declaration. QNB Corp paid dividerids co its sharcholders of $.74 per share in 2004, an increase of 12.1 percenc from the $.66 per
“share pald in 2003, Earmngs retained in 2004 were 63.1 pcrccnt compared to 63.8 percent in 2003. These earnings are retained in the form of capital to

support future groweh.
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QNB is subject to various regulatory capital requirements as issued by Federal regulatory authorities. Regulatory capital is defined in terms of Tier I capital
(shareholders’ equity excluding unrealized gains or losses on available-for-sale securities and intangible assets), Tier II capital which includes a portion of the
allowance for loan losses, and total capital (Tier I plus Tier II). Risk-based capical ratios arc expressed as a percentage of risk-weighted assets. Risk-weighted
assets are determined by assigning various weights to all assets and off-balance sheet arrangements, such as lecters of credit and loan commitments, based on
associated risk. Reguldtors have also-adopted minimum Tier I leverage ratio standards, which measure the radio of Tier I capital to total average assets. The
minimum regulacory capital ratios are 4.00 percent for Tier I, 8.00 percent for total risk-based capital and 4.00 percent for leverage.

Capital Analysis

December 31, ) . 2004 2003
Tieti

Sharcholdcrs cquxty $ 45775 $ 43,440
Net unrealized securities gains'.ai......... e e, e ereervrens e ererreaterte e e e et e e b e b ete ae e atat e s e ererabents 691) : (2,341)
Net unrealized losscs.cquxty Securities ........... e ereseesesessaterestesastasersensanosssbet st absshE e s s ebe st e bbb R et eb e R et e b e s n ey erbasaeresarenEasres : (1,019) - (14)
TNEANEIDIE ASSEES cvvvvereeesctciteitiesete s iaser s b reas s assee s res bbb L s8R e eR bR bbb (145) (208)
Total Tier [ risk-based capital .........cccoomiiceiiiii e e s 43,920 40,877
Tiec 1l

Allowable portion of the allowance

" forloan losses....cvoviienninnn, YO SO SO ST JRSRRRON s ens $ 2,612 $ 2,929
Total risk-based CAPITAl ................ooooooooooe s e $ 46,532 '$ 43,806
Risk-wciﬁhtcd ASSELS 1everrerrriernennrnnsns teibetretiatrateretiaeereehensetabeRe ek eRsehesre s ass et ebese b estebteretasentere s eRestestaraetarsebbatarresrrerneane $ 358,407 . $327,243
Capital Ratios. -

December31,- . o : ) ) - 2004 - 2003
Tier | c,apnal/nsk—wclghtcd 2SSCLS evrerrrerrens ST e b s eeres et tn cervvrreerens i L 12.25% L 12.49%
Total risk-based capital/risk-weighted assets ... 12.98 ‘ 13.39
Tier I capital/average assets (leverage FATID) vvveveeeeeeesesseseeseeesseetesestssemeessoeresesse s eeaeseesens e st ereses s st rnesee e reneeeeeseeeeees 7.44 7.38

Based on the rcqunrcmcnts. QNB has a Tier [ capital ratio of 12.25 percenc and 12.49 percent, a total risk- bascd ratio of 12 98 pcrccnt and 13.39 percent,
anda leverage ratio of 7.44 bcrcent and 7 38 percent at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The decline in both the Tier | capiral ratio and rotal
risk-based ratio rcﬂccts thc changc in the balance sheet composition wich growth in loans, primarily commercial loans, outpacing the growth in investment
securiies. Loans are usualky assngncd a hlgher risk welghnng than investmenc securities. The increase in net unrealized losses on equity securities in 2004

also had a negative impact on both ratios. The toal nsk-bas:d capital ratio was also negatively impacted by the net charge-offs in 2004, whlch reduced the
allowanee for loan losscs mcludcd m 'ﬁcr 2 capltal

The Federal Deposit Insumhéé'Corpi;mtion Improvement Act of 1991 established five capital level designations ranging from “well capitalized'; to
“critically undercapitalized.” At December 31, 2004 and 2003, QNB met che “well capitalized” criteria, which requires minimum Tier [ and total risk-
based capiral ratios of 6.00 percent and 10.00 percent, respectively, and a leverage ratio of 5.00 percent.
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Contm:iuﬂ Obligations, Comsitments, and Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

QNB has various financial obligations; including contractual obligations and commitments, that may require future cash payments,

. . ‘.A‘J“A“.l' L
Commm’m[ Obligatz'am TR g S
The following tablé presents, as'of December 31, 2004, significant contractual obligations to third parties by payment date. Further discussion. of the
nature of each obligation can-be found'in the notés to the consolidated financial statements. -

: Under | Year 1 to 3 years 3105 Years  Over5 Years - Total
Time Deposits .....ooe. eitedossssseseisissesessnivbsssessi esssseessasns .«  $103405 . §89915 $ 9454 $ 46 $ 202,820
Short-term borrowings....ccivsivernitivnnsenirernaenn: ereressraareneseasresnanne 13,374 - - - 13,374

Federal Home Loan Bank advances - 2,000 3,000 26,500 23,500 . 55,000
OPerating 16ases ......vcecrvivniercvnsisisieniseiess e senasssnss 274 504 ‘ 467 2,077 3,322
R O $ 119,053 $ 93,419 $ 36,421 $ 25,623 $ 274,516

Commitments ) i , _ )
The following table p‘rcscnts, as bf December 31,‘2004, the amounts and gxpectcd maturities of significant commitments, Discussion of the obligations
can be found in the notes to the conso[idatcd financial statements :

R L . Under 1 Year 1 to 3 years 3t05 Years  Over 5 Years Total

Cbmm_itmcnrs to extend credit ‘ ) .
Commercial S 3 $ 57317 - $ 1081 - § - 58 - $ 58,398
Residential real ESEALE i s 1,042 - - - . 1,042
Other. i eeeeeserens .. ) - - - 22,348 22,348
Standby letters of credit 2,569 1,068 - - 3,637
Toal................ veerereeieaereeenes T A - $ 60,928 - § 2,149 $ - - $22,348 $ 85,425

Commitments to extend credit, inclulding loan commitments, standby letters of credit, and commercial lcttcrs of credit do not necessarily represent future
cash requirements, as these commitments oftent cxpu‘c without being drawn upon.

Recently lssucd Accounting Standards

Refer to Note 1 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statemencs for discussion of recently issued accounting standards.

Critical Accounting Policies and Es'ti_x:na‘:es
Discussion and analysis of the financial c»ondition and results of operations are based on the consolidated financial statements ‘of QNB, which are prcpa}cd
in accordance wich U.S. gcncmlly acccptcd Jcc.oummg prmupl:.s (GAAP). The preparation of these consolidated financial statements requires QN Bto
make estimates and judgments chat aﬁ'cct thc rcportcd amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses, and related disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities. QNB evaluates esnmatcs on an on-gomg basls, mcludmg those related to the allowance for loan losses, non-accrual loans, other real estate
owned, other-rhan—tcmpomry investment lmpalrmcnts. mtanglble assets, stock option plans and income taxes. QNB bases its estimates on historical
experience and various other factors and assumptlons thar are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for
making judgments abouc the carrymg values of assets and liabilicies cha are not teadily. apparent from other sources. Actual resules may differ from chese
estimates undcr different a.ssumpnons or condmons e

QNB believes the following critical accounting palicies affect its more significant judgments and estimates used in preparation of its consolidated financial
statements: allowance for loan losses, income taxes and other-than-temporary investment security impairment. Each estimate is discussed below. The
financial impact of each estimate is discussed in the applicable sections of Management’s Discussion and Analysis.

Allowance for Loan Losses

QNB considers that the decermination of the allowance for loan losses involves a higher degiee of judgment and complexity chan its ocher significant
accounting policics. The allowance for loan Ios;cs is calculated with the objective of maintaining a level believed by management to be sufficient to absorb
probable known and inherent losses in the outstanding loan portfolio. The allowance is reduced by actual credit losses and is increased by the provision for
loan losses and recoveries of previous losses. The provisions for loan losses are charged to earnings to bring the total allowance for lean losses ¢o a level

considered necessary by management.




The allowance for loan losses is based on managemenc’s continuing review and evaluation of the loan portfolio. The level of the allowance is determined by
assigning specific reserves to individually identified problem credits and general reserves to all other loans. The portion of the allowance that is allocared to

internally criticized and non-accrual loans is determined by estimating the inherent loss on each credic after giving consideration to che value of underlying
collateral, The general reserves are based on the composition and risk characteristics of the loan portfolio, including the nature of che loan portfolio, credit

concentration trends, historic and anticipated delinquency and loss experience, as well as other qualicative factors such as current economic trends.

Management emphasizes loan quality and close monitoring of potential problem credits. Credi risk identification and review processes are utilized in order
to assess and monitor the degree of risk in the loan portfolio. QNB's lending and loan administration staff are charged with reviewing the loan portfolio
and identifying changes in the economy or in a borrower’s circumstances which may affect the ability to repay debe or the value of pledged collateral. A
loan classification and review system exists that identifies those loans with a higher than normal risk of collectibility. Each commercial loan is assigned a
grade based upon an assessment of the borrower’s financial capacity to service the debt and the presence and value of collateral for the loan. An indepen-
denc loan review group tests risk assessmentes and evaluates the adequacy of che allowance for loan losses. Management meets monthly to review the credit
quality of the loan portfolio and quarterly to review the allowance for loan losses.

In addition, various regulatory agencies, as an integeal part of their examination process, periodically review QNB's allowance for losses on loans. Such
agencics may require QNB to recognize additions to the allowance based on their judgments about information available to them at the time of their
examination. ‘

Management believes that it uses the best information available to make dererminations about the adequacy of che allowance and that it has established its
existing allowance for loan losses in.accordance with GAAP If circumstances differ substantially from the assumptions used in making determinacions,
future adjustments to the allowance for loan losses may be necessary and results of operations could be affected. Because future events affecting borrowers
and collateral cannot be predicted with cerrainey, there can be no assurance that increases to the allowance will not be necessary should the quality of any
loans deteriorate as a resule of the factors discussed above.

Income Taxes

QNB accounts for income taxes under the asset/liability method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attribur-
able to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases, as well as operating loss
and tax credit carryforwards. Deferred rax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in
which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of 2 change in tax rates is
recognized in income in the period that includes che enactment date. A valuation allowance is established against deferred tax assets when, in the judgment
of management, it is more likely than not that such deferred rax assets will not become available. Because the judgment about the level of future taxable
income is dependent to a great extent on matters that may, at leasc in parc go beyond QNB's control, it is at least reasonably possible that managements
judgment about the need for a valuation allowance for deferred taxes could change in che near term.

Other-than-Temporary Investment Security Impairment

Securities are evaluared periodically to decermine whether a decline in cheir value is other-than-temporary. Management ucilizes criteria such as the magnitude
and duration of the decline, in addition to the reasons underlying the decline, to determine whether the loss in value is other-than-temporary. The term “other-
‘than-temporary” is not intended to indicate that the decline is permanent, but indicates that the prospect for a near-term recovery of value is not necessarily
favorable, or chat there is a lack of evidence to support a realizable value equal to oc greater than the carrying value of the investment. Once a decline in value is

determined to be other-than-temporary, the value of the security is reduced and a corresponding charge to carnings is recognized.




ITEM 7A. : QUANT!TATIVEANDQUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK . e wi

[~ E l«‘“' coomre AN . . .. .o L. N o B S A 4
As'a financial institution, the:Céifporation s siibject to’ 'three primary risks. - S : ERR R
e’ Credierisk - -t w0 < :

-

‘o 'Liquidicy risk
 Interest rate risk

The Board of Directors has established an Assct Llabllx:y Commirtee (ALCO) to measiare, monitor and maniage incerest rate risk for the Bank. The Bank's

Assét Llablh:y Pohcy has msntutcd g\udclmcs covcnng ithe three pnmary risks.: : P . ] R PVE T I
For discussion on credx: risk’ rcfer to the secnons on non- pcrformmg assets, allowance for loan losses, Note 5 and Note G:of the Notes'to Consohdated
Finanicial Statements.- - . Lo oL ‘ . L e
S o ST S : . o N i RIS, . - L R ",

For discussion on liquidity risk refer to the section on liquidity at page 28 in Item 7 of this Form 10-K filing, - - Cotey e T
Interest Rate Sensitivity... & - R . . i

T ' T gEae oo - Within - 3t 6 . -6 months - 1tw3 305 v Afer U -
December 31, 2004 .3 months months to 1 year years years Syears - . Total
Assets '
Interest-bearing balances .. $, 981 - - - o= me o= 8 98l
Federal funds sold ......... 3159 - ] - - = o= . 31%
Investmeric securities® ....... 13,392 $ 28574 $ 21,190 " § 89,656 $ 55799 $°63,592 272,203
Non-matketable equity securiries: ‘ -~ e - - - Yoo 73,9470 - 3,947
Loans, including loans held-for:sale 91,082 . 201,598 - - 40,080 - ... .72,909 - - -31,038. - :11,653.:. . 268,360
Bank-owned life insurance .... : C - - 7,906 C C = agre= .. 7,906
Tortal rate sensitive assets .c.o.ecvvevniviiirmniicisevnnne 108,614 50,172 69,176. 162,565 86,837 79,192 $556,556
Total cumulative assets .....o.oovcevvverevioiiiciiennnn, $108,614 $ 158,786 $227,962 $ 390,527 $477,364 $556,556 1 :
Liabilicies B f' S Co N . AR L T
Interest-bearing non- matunng deposits ... $ 20,000 3 - . § 5876 $ 13,560 8§ 79455  .$.211,065

Time deposits less than $100,000...... 25,353 . 51,79t . 63355 . 6801 . . - 26 160,845
Time deposits over $100,000 ...... 2,785 C14,117 20,289 26)0 , 2 41975
Short-term borrowmas.............J... 13,374 - : - . o : e T 13,374
Fedéral Home Loan Bank advancesi i/ Sednains - 0 5,000 ¢ U - ©— . 265005 - 235000 - - 55,000
Toul fate sensitive liabilities £.5.5. e 126,201 48,138 65,908 89,520 49,51F 102,981  $482,259
Toral cumulative liabilities s 8126201 - $174,339° . $240,247  $329,767  $379,278- . $482,259 -

Gap during period $(17587) 'S '2034 'S 3268 § 73,045  § 37336 $(23.789) © § 74,297

Cumulative gap ....ocvcecvinriirireaneeis e 9 (17,587) 3 (15,553} $(12,285) § 60,760. $ 98,086 $ 74,297
Cumulative gap/rate sensitive assets...... (3.16 )% 2.79)% - (221)% - 10.92% .. .17.62% . 13.35% ER
Cumulative gap catio ...oiiee. 86 . 91 . .95 - 1.18: 126 - v 115

* Excludes unreatized holdmg gaia'on’ 1vmlabl=-for-sa]c securities of $1,561.

The table below suminarizes cmmatcd cha.ngca it net mtcrcst incofne over :hc next twclvc mon:h period, undcr various intcrest ratc séenarios.

PR A e s

Change in Interest Rates v . Net Interest Income Dollar Change Percenc Change
December 31, 2004

+300 Basis POINLS +rvecvevevresrvrsssvrsernsessrssssessssssssssesenscssnns S $ 15632 $  (508) (3.15)%
+200 Basis Points ... : ' 16,191 51 32
+100 Basis Points “ 16,388 248 1.54
FLAT RATE ..ottt esstesssssssassassssssssssmssmssssssssssessisses 16,140 - -
-100 Basis Points e . feerrenes eeereinininrsress s renes 15,123 (1,017) (6.30)
December 31, 2003 :

+300 Basis Points ......... OO S $ 15887 $ 146 93%
+200 Basis POINCS covvrvercrrecrrnee et e s e 16,209 468 2.97
+100 Basis POINES covcveernceiiiincnii i 16,182 441 2.80

FLAT RATE .......... 15,741 - -
-100 Basis Points ' 13,890 (1,851) (11.76)




Interest Rate Sensisivity

Since the assets and liabilities of QNB have diverse repricing characteristics that influence net interest income, management analyzes interest sensitivity
through the usc of gap analysis and simulation models. Interest rate sensitivity management seeks to minimize the effect of interest rate changes on net
interest margins and interest rate spreads and to provide growth in net interest income through periods of changing interesc rates. ALCO is responsible for

managing interest rate risk and for evaluating the impact of changing interest rate conditions on net interest income.

Gap analysis measures che difference berween volumes of rate sensitive assets and liabilities and quantifies these repricing differences for various time
intervals. Static gap analysis describes interest rate sensitivity at a point in time. However, it alone does not accurately measure the magnitude of changes in
net incerest income because changes in interest rates do not impacr all categories of assets and liabilities equally or simulraneously. Interest rate sensitivity
analysis also involves assumptions on certain categories of assets and deposits. For purposes of interest rate sensitivity analysis, assets and liabilities are stated
at their contractual maturity, estimated likely call date, or earliest repricing opportunity. Mortgage-backed securities, CMOs and amortizing loans are
scheduled based on their anticipated cash flow. Savings accounts, including passbook, scacement savings, money market, and interese-bearing demand
accounts, do not have a stated maturity or repricing term and can be withdrawn or repriced at any time. This may impact QNB’s margin, if more
expensive alternative sources of deposits are required to fund loans or deposit run-off. Management projects the repricing characteristics of these accounts
based on historical performance and assumptions that it belicves reflect their rate sensitivity. The Treasury Select [ndexed Money Market account reprices
monthly, based on a percentage of the average of the 91-day Treasury bill.

A positive gap results when the amount of interest rate sensitive assets exceeds interest rate sensitive liabilicies. A negative gap results when the amount of
interest rate sensitive liabilicies exceeds interest rate sensitive assets.

QNB primarily focuses on the management of the one-year interest race sensitivity gap. At December 31, 2004, interest carning asscts scheduled to mature
or likely to be called, repriced or repaid in onc year were $227,962,000. Incerest sensitive liabilities scheduled to mature or reprice within one year were
$240,247,000. The one-year cumularive gap, which reflects QNB's interest sensitivicy over a period of cime, was a negative $12,285,000 ac December 31,
2004. The cumulative onc-year gap equals -2.21 percent of total rate sensitive assets. This negative or liability sensitive gap will generally benefit QNB in a
falling interest rate environment, while rising interest rates could negacively impact QINB.

QNB also uses a simulation model to assess the impact of changes in interest rates on net interest income. The model reflects management’s assumptions
related to asset yields and rates paid on liabilidies, deposic sensirivity, and the size, composition and maturity or repricing characteristics of the balance
sheec. The assumprions are based on what management believes, at that time, to be the most likely interest rate environment. Management also evaluates
the impact of higher and lower interest rates by simulating the impact on nec interest income of changing rates. While management performs rate shocks
of 100, 200 and 300 basis points, it believes, given the level of interest rates at December 31, 2004, that it is unlikely that interest rates would decline by
200 or 300 basis points. The simulation results can be found in the chart on page 32.

Actual results may differ from simulated results due to various factors including time, magnitude and frequency of interest rate changes, the relationship or

spread between various rates, loan pricing and deposit sensitivity, and asset/liabilicy scrategies.

Management belicves chat the assumptions utilized in evaluating the vulnecabilicy of QINB's net interest income to changes in interest races approximate
actual experience. However, the interest rate sensitivity of QNB's assets and liabilities as well as the estimated effect of changes in interest rates on net

interest income could vary substantially if differenc assumptions are used or actual experience differs from the experience on which the assumptions were

based.

In the event QNB should experience a mismatch in its desired gap ranges or an excessive decline in its net interest income subsequent to an immediate and
sustained change in interest rates, it has a number of options that it could utilize to remedy such a mismatch. QNB could restructure its investment
portfolio through the sale or purchase of securities with more tavorable repricing actributes. It could also emphasize loan products with appropriace
maturities or repricing attributes, or it could attract deposits or obtain borrowings with desired macurities.

The nacure of QNB’s current operation is such that it is not subject to foreign curtency exchange or commodity price risk. Additionally, neither the
Corporation not the Bank owns trading assets. At December 31, 2004, QNB did not have any hedging transactions in place such as interest rate swaps,
caps or flooss.

QNB anticipates a rise in interest rates through 2003. Given this assumption, the asset/liabilicy strategy for 2005 is to achicve a positive gap position for
periods up to a year.
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INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM’S REPORT

The Board of Directors
QNB Corp:

We have audited the accompanyingconsolidated balance sheets of QINB Corp. and subsidiary as of December 31, 2004 and the related consolidated
statements of income, shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for-the year then ended. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the
Corporation’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. The accompany-
ing consolidated financial statements of QNB Corp. and subsidiary as of December 31, 2003 and for cach of the years in the two-year period ended
December 31,2003, were audited by other auditors whose report thercon dated February 20, 2004, expressed an unqualified opinion on those

statements,

We conducted our audit in accordance with. the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require
that we plan and perform che audir co obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audic also includes assessing che
accounting principles used and significant estimaces made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation, We believe that
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. :

In our opinion, the 2004 consolidated financial stacements referted to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of QNB Corp. and
subsidiary as of December 31, 2004, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles.

/s/ S.R. Snodgrass, A.C.
March 3, 2005
Wexford, Pennsylvania
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lNDEPENDENT.REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM’S REPORT
To the Sharcholders and Board of Directors of QNB Corp.:

We have audited the accompﬁnying.consolidated balance sheet of ‘QNB Corp. and subsidiary (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2003, and the related
consolidated statements of income, sharcholders’ equity, and cash flows for sach of the years in the cwo-year period ended December 31, 2003. These

consolidated financial statements are- the rcsponslblllty of the Companys management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on ‘our audis,

We conducted our audits in accordancc wich the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board {United States). Those standards-require
that we plan and perform the audit to obrain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements arc free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence suppomng the amounts and disclosures in the financial statcements. An audir also includes assessing the
accounting principles used and slgmﬁcant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe
that our audits prowdc a msonal_)lc basis for our opinion... o

In our opinion, the consolidated, financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial posicion of QNB Corp. and -
subsidiary as of December 31, 2003, and the results of their opcrauons and their eash flows for each of the years in the two-year pcnod ended December
31, 2003 in conformity wich U.S. gcncrally acccptcd accounting principles.

/s/ KPMG LLP )
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania .
February 20, 2004
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(in thousands, except share data)

December 31, 2004 2003

Assets

Cash and QUE FIOM DANKS 1v.oiviiiriesiieiitiiseeerressairsre s et ressessesrrosssstesssssersssssessassestsshsensesssosecsnssssnssssstsrstessessassssessontan 3 19,026 $ 21,534

Federal FUIAS SOI ovvevvreeeeeeeeereetiseeseeeseeeseeastasessssensesens seasassesssersssesestasssssmesessnsssssstssnsrenssssstontabsssessnsosessatsssssomsastatsnestmnss 3,159 C o 4,532
Total cash and cash equivalents ............ O N R . 22,185 26,066

Investment securicies

Available-for-sale (amortized cast $266,000 and $257,084) .ceoveieeiinncenrcinnrnenesesesnerarens et et 267.561 260,631

Held:to-maturity {market value $6,432 and $12,334) ... e e 6,203 12,012
Non-marketable equity securiries .... 3,947 - 3,810
LoanS RElA-fOr=5ale .....c..ooveiiririsisiistie e cere s esb b a e e rasbrsrsebes e s s tas b sr s abessbosbessaabisbbssosasssbsstssrnsesssosstssoberrasentensrestsinsesss 312 1,439
Total loans, net 0F UNEAINEd INCOME ....ooivveiviiieriree ettt e e et et e s be b e s abbe s e brbaa e e b bessesaensobensarasssee i 268,048 232,127

AllOWANCE £Or LOAN L0SSES . o.vuruitiiciicrirsitetresrecatsrasssssiaesat assstasanasassassssssssssesssasastsssstsssstasssasatstassssnssssantossasosesssonasonsn (2,612) (2.929)

Net lo;ns ........................................................................................................................................................... 265,436 229,198
Bank-owned life insurance 7.906 7,585
Premiscs and equipment, net ... . 5,640 5,090
ACCIUCA INLEIESE FECEIVADLE .....voreeeree e bt cireesr s see e srebeses s sess st sbosesessbsbserastssssssearaeRe s R s b sasensarsessasnranntsansnsonssrtrenes 2,531 2,823
Other as5€t5 .ooovvninierirnrencnnnnee 00 000000 0 U000 EP SO SO OSSPSR PEOPOO 1,923 2,177
TOCAL ASSELS v.eevereeiteiiisresieerestssaasessessbenessersssessessstasnsssessensasschssessatssanssesssesesaosansssertsteshbesansens s4saseenesamesssessbanessnanssaseernrreres $583,644 $550,831
Liabilicies
Deposits

Demand, NON-IAterest-Dearing ...c.ovvcrireiisiimninmi st sras st et s r bbb st st e $ 52,603 $ 50,468

[nterest-bearing demand accounts 95,120 107,648

Money market accounts . 60,434 38,373

SAVIES oottt et e b AR R R SRR RS RS enSeb e e s r bRk s R s 55.511 52,008

TEITIE oo 2es ks s R R . 160,845 151,304

Time over $100,000 : 41,975 38,338

Total deposits ...... 466,438 438,639
Short-term borrowings 13,374 | 10,416
Federal Home Loan Bank adVances ...ccoviiiviriieniiiice et eeee ettt bttt b et e et tean s rens et 55,000 55,000
Accrued TNEErest PAYADIE c...oiiiiiiiiie e e bR R b sttt eae e et [,179 1,285
Other HaBIlILIES ovivviicmiieeiic ettt sttt b s s e b et (et b saras e s se b bt e b e b aR e R se e ssaassb e st rassbb et b s et stansinabonas 1,828 2,051
Total Habilities .ottt et st e aa s b s b st stes 537,869 - 507,391
Sharcholders’ Equity
Common stock, par value $0.625 per share;

auchorized 10,000,000 shares; 3,204,764 shares and 3,202,065 shares issued;

3,098,078 and 3,095,379 shares outstanding e eee et e e s st st s b et s e maee s e r e sttt s et e s 2,003 2,001
SUIPIUS - eiveivieincrit ettt bten st sease s sebee b seses s s as et b et s sk b e s b as et e ehr R s keSS bt d £ eh e S an bt easa e n s aatans 9,005 8,933
RELANCA CAMNINES ..vvve ettt s b e edsh e s S b et bR b bbb s s et e b bbb as e b sr et s 35,570 31,659
Accumulated other comprehensive INCOME, AE ..uvireciinoniiiceeie i e s sasassiins e 691 2,341
Treasury stock, at COST; 106,685 Shares ...........covvvermnvcrsiosmninisresssossssisssisssmsersssssssantsosessssssasssssssssmssssissssmssessssesossssoessoos (1,494) (1,494)
Total sharcholders' EQUILY ......ovciieeircicre et res s st s s 45.775 43,440
Toul liabilities and sharcholders’ equity $ 583,644 $550,831

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements.




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS. OF INCOME

(in thousands, except share daca)

Year Ended December 31, 2004 2003 2002
Interesc Income
Interest and fees on loans .. $ 14,229 314,208 $ 14,892
Incerest and dividends on mvestmcnt securities: ‘
“Taxable . rereessienes remresnsssrsasions 8,945 8,603 . 10,060
Tax-exempt ...... ‘ : 2,224 <2,112 - 1,979
Interest on Federal funds sold 23 126 152
Inccrcst on xntcmt-bcanng balances and other interest incore 80 90 108
' Total iNterest IOOME .ol eoereseessiirrrssre oo sesseaseesasnae ettt e s ere st st ana st en 25,571 25,139 27,191
Interest Expense o
Interest on deposits
Interest-bearing demanid accounts 681 554 393
" Money market ACCOURLES vttt o o i e 441 298 559
SAVIRES oo enans st e AR R 215 o324 497
TIME ooertrcrsarere e i b e et asessmsestnsas e s ssasne b E LR b s SRR SR bR SR SRR RSB SAR AR e h SRR tn 4,153 4,511 5,843
Time over $100,000 ...ttt s e b e s e s e s bbb 990 1,080 1,614
Interest on short-term BOLIOWIRES (... vru ettt s s st 124 106 264
Incerest on Federal Homc Loan Bank advances i iveveiconnineciniiiinnnnsinesennasd bt rosne 2,902 2,881 2,906
Total INELESt EXPENSE vvvruveterr Luererereesrsasieresrsressnaceens erernnes 9,506 9,754 12,076
NCEINEETEST IMEOME -vitturicvermsecrivssesisbestsenseivescsesssonsns b P (X [ X 15,385 15,115
Provision fOr L0an L0SSES «.u..ivirsirreeerersireserorsirssaareersressressenermasisecssssiesstanesiasstsasessrasssanssessrassassosscssorsseserssnsesans - - -
‘ Net interest income afzer provmon FOL10RD 10SSES oo seescvereescessrssssessreoesres e 16,065 15,385 15,115
Non-Interest [ncome v ‘ ‘
Fees fOr SETVICES [0 CUSTOMIEES .uuvccririimeuernenrerinssiatses sstatisssssssrsecssnstasssioses osssbesthis s reasastssss et s sbe L st b e b ebesaseeeres 2,000 1,849 1,634
ATM and debit card.income ....coeiininricnnniis ; e s st he bttt r s 598 541 509
Income on bank-owned life iNSUrANCE ...ovuvmsivriie st b, . 300 330 372
MOTTGAEE SEIVICING FEES woovvvevieruininnne s sssseasn s 112 12 .97
Net gam (loss) on mvcs:mcn( securiries av:ulablc for-salc .............. 849 (134) (779)
Net gain on sale OF JOBIIS vvvuvvmsssassesesessnssoisssoesassss s osssssansssss st sS85 sttt e sssa 154 923 676
Othcr OPErAtiNG INCOME ..ovvervierirsivenrireiiiinns OO O PO O OSSOSO RU U RO OSOE IO ' 674 679 480
| TOtal MOM-IMCELESTIICOME voveveveivvemarisseesnsiseassaesesseseseensssaasssssessasss s s sntss s snsasasi e st anese e saasrenes 4,687 4,200 2,989
Non-Interest Expense
Salaries and employee benefits P PRSI 7.163 © 7,195 6,531
Net occupancy expense ... . 1,013 859 86!
Furniture and equipment cxpcnsc . 1,148 1,111 1,060
Markering CXPENSE 1rivrvvsensenscnnss 557 536 598
Third party services ‘ 680 741 640
Telephone, postage and: supphc.s cxpcnsc 521 556 545
SEALE TAXCS wornnvvnsnsas i LT Sl T e D] Lo e e 375 331 335
Orther eXpense ....covciieeisievorecencres ieeireneseetrersesestesttastertaeateetrte e ereeher e oA tebaes s e b aabes s eeatan s e Rt set e araebenseseeeresaeabrenraeaas 1,388 1,354 1,375
Toral non-interest expense ... 12,845 12,683 11,945
Income before INCOME tAXCS cvuvvvevreniiiirinnerriirsesis s ssrsnes s 7,907 - 6,902 16,159
Provision fOr INCOME LAXES ....ceuvierectirettresitientieecierieesr s etsecas s cesasrst s srsncisesenns ettt sttt e serens 1,704 1,254 1,204
INEE TOCOME cueeeresieerricrirsrassesivrseassesssonsessesaesssnsstassrsssossacssessessesssenssnotassssstontsssesarsssvansssesses 3 6,203 $ 5,648 $ 4,955
- Net Income Per Share - Basic .. $  2.00 $ 1.83 $ 161
" Net Income Per Share - Diluted ......ccoinorivevoiivnininrininiiion.s Fuesentsessinnsseens b ssnsstasinsess -8 1.95 $ 179 - 3% 1.59

The accompanying notes.are.an insegral pars of the consolidaied financial stasemenss.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Accumulated
‘ ' Other
Number Comprehensive Comprehensive Common Retained  Treasury
(in thousands, except share data) of Shares Income  Income (loss) Stock  Surplus  Earnings Scock Total
Balance, December 31, 2001 ....cocoecrirnnnrienennn 3,072,718 - $ 109 $1987 $8681 $24946 $§ (I ,494-) $35,219
NEL IRCOME oviveeriaceraerenrenrcesrrnsereserssereansreeses - $4,955 - - - 4,955 - 4,955
Other comprehensive income, net of tax
Unrealized holding gains on
investment securities available-for-sale ... - 1,930 - - - - - -
Reclassification adjustment for
losses included in net income ... - 514 - - - - - -

Other comprehensive income ... vvvernnn, - 2,504 2,504 - - - - 2,504
Comprehensive income ..o - $7,459 - - - - - -
Cash dividends paid .

(8.60 per share)} ..ocrmcerieirciiisinscnninnnn. - - - - - (1,848) - (1,848)
Stock issue - Employee stock purchase plan ..., 3,304 - - 2 50 - -~ 52
Stock issued for options exercised .................... 5,572 - - 4 28 - - 32
Balance, December 31, 2002 ....coviivcniinsnnnne, 3,081,594 - 3,603 1,993 8,759 28,053 (1,494) 40,914
NECINCOME .o - $5,648 - - - 5,648 - 5,648
Other comprehensive income, net of tax

Unrealized holding losses on ‘ ,

investment sccurities available-for-sale ... - (1,350) - - - - - -
Reclassification adjustment for
losses included in net income ... - 88 - - - - - -

Other comprehensive income ......vovuunn - (1,262) {1,262) - - - - (1,262)
Comprehensive income ..., - $4,386 - - - - - -
Cash dividends paid

(.66 per share) ..o.ooevcceunnririccneene - - - - - (2,042) - (2,042)
Stock issue - Employee stock purchase plan ... 3,415 - ~ 2 62 - - 64
Stock issued for options exercised ..o, 10,370 - - 6 72 - - 78
Tax benefits from stack plans ..oovcvvnrvcnnnnnn - - - - 40 - - 40
Balance, December 31, 2003 .vvovvovoveererrn, 3,095,379 - 2,341 2,001 8,933 31,659 (1,494) 43,440
NEE INCOME 1viiirnieirerisirnes e sresnesesesresessenses - $6,203 - - - 6,203 - 6,203
Qther comprehensive income, net of tax

Unrealized holding losses on

investment securities available-for-sale ... - (1,090) - - - - - -
Reclassification adjustment for )
gains included in net income ................. - (560) - - - - - -

Other comprehensive income ... - (1,650) (1,650) - - - - (1,650)
Comprehensive inCOME oo - $4,553 - - - - - -
Cash dividends paid

(8.74 per share) .ovvvevcrivericnnniveiiinnn, - - - - - (2,292) - (2,292)
Stock issue - Employee stock purchase plan ..... 2,679 - - 2 72 - - 74
Stock issued for options exercised ... 20 - - - - - - -
Balance, December 31, 2004 .....ovovovvoeeencnns 3,098,078 - $ G691 32003 $9,005 $35570 $(1,494) $45,775

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial




CONSOLIDATED. STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(in thousands)

Year Ended December 31, : : 2004 2003 2002
Operating Activities . o . .
Net ircome ...ou..rvvrererenns e eresesevetarestesestassrest e an s asineraens et s b s sansasaens ettt s oa sttt neen 5 6203 3 5648 3 4955
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provndcd by op:rmng activities B ‘ : :
Depreciation and amortization ....... e teensessseseantante e et era R bt eho b e st AR b A e e SRt s s naet et ase s re s ebe s sttt s e 907 873 835
SCCULITIES (ZRINIS) 1OSSES vucvvlunerurusirerssnsisin issntsssss stssees s smus b s ts s e b e s R b R ettt e (849) 134 779
- Net gain on sale of repossessed assets ... ieesresegsesssraraseressrsererasasronaans ereere et es et e ra et b se et s ererenran {141) - - -
Proceeds from sale of rePOSSESSEd ASSELS covvueverrsiersesserssmssminssssrssstsir s s s ss s s bbb ass it et s s 1,167 - -
Net gain on sale 0f L0ANS ...vvuivsiiiie i st (154) . (923) -(676)
Loss on disposal of premises and €qQUIPIMENT w..iuoiueiiiininmiinnir s et bt s ssenssssens "3 . 13 2
Loss on equity investment ifi Gitle COMPANY .ocvuveriiriecimminnins it 26 - - . -
Proceeds from sales of residential MOFLGAZES ..cccirrririnmcmcrnmmsimsirriinisnieissia sttt srascansssa sasnarssssassasascss 9,162 41,904 24,472
Originations of residential mortgages held-for-sale oo (8,055) (39,244) (27,276)
Proceeds from sales of student loans............ reresreaet e SRS e R e RS et r e b Re e saRa bRt aRe st betessebese b Enperabesa - 403 1,896
Originations of StUAEnt l0aNs ..ot e ety s - {160) - (1,121}
Income on Bank-0Wiied 1 ISURANCE cucviviviriree ettt inte ettt er st se st see s sr s ers et e se s s s ans suraesasennssensans (300) (330 - (372)
Life insurance (premiums) proceeds/Ret .. i ccnnnnnnnesesnnins eeresrere st vt et r et e nee e beseanaeeresaaseneny 1) 142 27)
Deferred income tax provision L...c.cee. 299 Y] 79)
Change in income taxes payable " 282 (121) C(132)
Net decrease (increase) in accrued interest rcccwablc eeera et ety st as et e ses et e e e b e R s s Re s e e e R Re R b b nR s e nEnr e st neae e 292 (113) (213)
Net amortization of premiums and discouncs ... e ! ‘ cervereresvesaiseenenenee 933 - 1,447 901
Net decrease in accrued interest payable ..o i sttt (106) (270) (588)
(INCrease) decrease N OLNET ASSETS ...eevrmrresiviveries e s reserhetsrs et sbebass s s sasn s asns s bt ss e ss e sare st nes 67) 45 69
(Decrease) increase in other Habilities ..ol (280) 206 . . (1,336)
Net cash provided by operating activities ......ouiriivvnriorerisersserssenneess et iesest et sttt ba e et abme st snben 9,301 9,652 -2,089
Investing Activities ' : '
Proceeds from maturities and cdls of investment sccunnes ,
available-for-sale ., ‘ 55,334 87,380 63,296
held-to-maturity 5,811 17,706 18,877
Proceeds from sales of invesemenc securities ) : )
AVAIDIE-FOE-SALE ...t fieiiciriiie e et etk bt e et s 66,715 54,591 17,245
Purchase of investment securities " ) . .
AVAIIABLE-FOE-SAIE ©vrveviierecrerereie fegueceeiae ettt et bbbt sttt (130,878)  (194,743)  (123,909)
held-to-maturity .ocoovnnneniirinns PO ~ .- (5,955)
Net increase in loans-........ et S ; e © (37,156) (19,050) (11,934)
Net change in non-marketable sccurities.... (137) (225) . (843)
Net purchases of premises and equipment (1,460) (479) (720)
Net cash used by investing activities e eereeteren ey eta Rt ta et 48P A et aa bR Yot tessebeseerotr e es e s e R bt eteatteb et ee e et arts (41,771) (54,820) {43,945)
Financing Activities : :
Ner increase in non-interest-bearing deposits .....buvvucrvnionvcnrecscinnenncsnn: et st es e e 2,135 3,389 7,001
Nert increase in interest- bcarmg non- matuncy dEPOSIES covveercrrei e e 13,036 42,872 27,315
Net increase in time deposits . 12,678 3,465 9,866
‘Nert increase (decrease) in-short-term DOIOWINGS ..coovvviiiiiiie e ) 2,958 ° (4,069) 1,034
Proceeds from Federal Home Loan Bank advances . ... iesenisicene e seesssscainnncsscssaenns - - 2,000
Cash dividends paid : (2,.292) (2,042) (1,848)
Proceeds from issuance of common s:ock .......... et branesetissrere v ey Sh e e s s e e R e b e s n bR H O e AR ab st es b s At e s ebnb st s rarunn 74 142 84
Net cash provided by ﬁnancmg ACEIVILIES Javrrererssreisrirrinsins 28,589 43,757 45,452
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash‘cquwa.len,ts . (3,881)  (1,411) 3,596
Cash and cash equivalencs at beginning of FOAD wvvreeasrcenmmnbvesetios st ibasssssesenesebss v bbbt s r st sh et st sn 26,066 27,477 23,881
Cash and cash equivalents 2t end O Year.....oc.ccimmnmniiniee s i sb s $ 22,185 § 26,066 $ 27477
Supplemental Cash Flow Disclosures '
INEEEESE PAIA .vevvravrvsieinesrasisnssessssssesesisssrisisssossnsssss s sssniss abs s ass RS 003 kb 5 b 4 5828 b R bbb 1000 $ 9,612 $ 10,024 $ 12,664

. Income taxes paid 1,042 1,368 1,400
Non-Cash Transactions v
Change in net unrealized holding gains, net of taxes, on investment securicies

Transfer of [0ans 10 rEPOSSESSEA ASSELS 1vuvvierirnsriorsresrisrinsinsssrsarssssssssssnssessesssisies

(1,630) 1,262) 2,504
1,026 - -

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consalidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 1 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Business

QNB Corp. (the Corporation), chrough its ' wholly-owned subsidiary, The Quakercown National Bank (the Bank), has been serving the residents and
businesses of upper Bucks, southern Lehigh,"and northern Montgomery counties in Pennsylvania since 1877. The Bank is a locally managed community
bank chat provides a full range of commetcial, recail banking and trust and investment management services. The Bank encounters vigorous comperition
for market share in the communitics it serves from bank holding companies, other community banks, thrift inscicutions, credic unions and other non-
bank financial organizations such as mutual fund companies, insurance companies and brokerage companies. QNB Corp. manages its business as a
single operating segment.

The Corporation and the Bank are subject to regulations of certain state and Federal agencies. These regulatory agencics periodically examine the
Corporation and the Bank for adherence to laws and regulations.

Use of Estimates

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Corporation and its wholly-owned subsidiary, the Bank. The consolidated entity is
referred o herein as “QNB”, These scatements are prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) and predominant
practices within che banking industry. The preparation of these consolidaced financial statements requires QNB to make estimates and judgments thac
affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilitics, revenues and expenses, and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. QNB evaluates
estimates on an on-going basis, including those related to the allowance for loan losses, non-accrual loans, other real estate owned, other-than-tempo-
rary investment impairments, intangible assets, stock option plans and income taxes. QNB bases its estimates on historical experience and various other
factors and assumptions thar are belicved to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making judgmencs about the

carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different
assumptions or conditions.

All significant inter;company accounts and transactions have been eliminated in the consolidated financial statements. Tabular information other than share
data is presented in thousands of dollars. Certain previously reported amounts have been reclassified to conform to current presentation standards. These

reclassifications had no effect on net income.

Stock Split

Lo

On August 19, 2003, che Board of Directors authorized a two-for-one splic of the Corporacion’s common stock, effected by a distribucion on October
14, 2003 of one share for cach one share held of record at the close of business on September 30, 2003. All earnings per share and common stock
information is presented as if the stock split occurred prior to the earliest year included in these financial statements.

Investment Securities

lavestment securities that QNB has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity are classified as held-to-maturity securities and reporred at
arnortized cost. Debt and equity securitics that are ‘baught and held principally for the purpose of selling in the near term are classified as trading
securities and reported at fair value, with unrealized gains' and losses included in carnings. Debt and equiry sccurities not classified as cicher held-to-
maturity securicies or trading securities are classified as available-foe-sale securities and reported at fair value, with unrealized gains and losses, net of tax,
excluded from carnings and reported as accumulated other comprehensive income or lass, a separate companent of shareholders' equity. Management
determines the appropriate classification of securiries at the rime of purchase.

Available-for-sale securities include securities chat management intends to use as part of its asset/liability management strategy and that may be sold in
response to changes in market interest rates and related changes in the securities’ prepayment risk or to meer liquidity needs.

Premiums and discounts on debe securities are recognized in interest income using a constant yield method. Gains and losses on:sales of investment
securities arc computed on the specific identification method and included in non-interest income.

Non-marketable Equity Securities

Non-marketable equity securities ate comprised of restricted stock of the Federal Home Loan Bank of Picesburgh (FHLB), the Federal Reserve Bank,
and Aclantic Cencral Bankers Bank. These restricted securities are carried at cost.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Other-than-Temporary Impairment of Investment Securities

Securities are evaluated periodically to determine whcjjl'ltr a decline in their value is other-than-temporary. Management urilizes criteria such as the
magnitude and duration of the decline, in.addition to the reasons underlying the decline, to determine whether the loss in value is other-than-
temporary.’ The term “other-than-temporary”.is not intended to indicate that the decline is permanent, but indicates that the prospects for a near-term
recovery of value is not necessarily ,favorable,’or;’d"\at there is.a lack of evidence to support realizable value equal to or greater than carrying value of the
investment. Once a decline in value is determined to be other-than-temporary, the value of the security is reduced and a corresponding charge to

earnings is recognized. AR e

lLoans

Loans are stated art the principal amoust outstandmg, nétof deferred loan fees and casts. Interest income is accrued on the principal amount outstand-
ing. Loan origination and commitment fees and related direct costs are deferred and amortized to income over the term of the respective loan and loan
commitment period as a yield adjustment.

Loans held-for-sale consist of resideritial mortgage loans and are carried ar the lower of aggregate cost or market value. Gains and losses on residential
mortgages held-for-sale are included in non-interest income:- -,

e PR

Norn-Performing Assets . . ...

Non-performing assets are comprised of non-aécrual loans and other real estate owned. Non-ac¢rual loans are those on which the accrual of interest has
ceased. Commercial loans-are p‘la‘ccd"on' non-accrual statds immediately if, in the opinion of management, collection is doubtful, or when principal oc
interest is past due 90 days or more'and collateral is msufﬁucnt to cover principal and interest. lntcrcst accrued, but not collected at che date a loan'is
placed o non- -accrual status, is reversed and charged against interest income. Subscqucnt cash receipts are applied either to the outstanding principal or
recorded as interest income, depending on managcment s assessment of the ultimate collectibility of principal and interest. Loans are returned to an
accrual status when the borrower's abilicy to make periodic pnncxpal and interest payments has returned to normal (i.e. brought current with respect to
principal or ificerest or restruccured) and the paying capacuy of che- borrower and/or the underlying collateral is deemed sufficient to cover principal and
interest. Consumer loans are not automatically’ placcd on non-accrual status when principal or interest payments are 90 days past due, but in most

instances, are charged-off when deemed uncollectible or after reaching 120 days past due.

At.c.oummg for impairment in the pcrformamc of a loan is required when it is probable that all amounts, including both principal and interest, will noc
be collcctcd in accordance with the loan agrecrﬁ'c’r;[_ I;nvpzured loans are measured based on che present value of expected future cash flows discounted ac
the loan’s effective i interest rate or, asa pracucal cxpedlcnt, at the loan’s observable market price or the fair value of the collateral if the loans are
collateral dcpcndcnt lmp:urmcnt criteria are applied to the loan portfoho exclusive of smaller homogencous loans such as residential mortgage and

consumer loans which are evaluated collectively for impairment.

Other real estate owned is compnscd ofpropcrucs acquxred through for:closurc proceedings. or acceptance of a deed in lieu of foreclosure. Other real
estate owned is recorded at thc lower ofrhc carrymg value of the loan or the fair value of the property less disposal costs. Loan losses arising from che
acquisition of such properties are chargcd ;gamst the allowancc for loan’ losscs Holdmg expenses related to the operation and mamtcnancc of propertices
are cxpcnscd as incurred. Gams and losscs upon dxsposmon are rcﬂec(cd in cammgs as rcnlxzcd

Allowance for'Loan Losses e

QNB maincains an allowance for loan losses, which is intended to absorb probable known and inherent losses in the outstanding loan portfolio. The
allowance is.reduced by actual credic losses and is:increased by the provision for loan losses and recoveries of previous losses. The provisions for loan

losses are charged to carnings to bring the total:allowance for loan losses to a level considered necessary by management.

The allowance for loan losses is based on'managemenc’s continuing reviéw and evaluation of the loan portfolio. The level of the allowance is deter- -
mined by assigning specific reserves to individually identified problem credits and general reserves to all other loans. The portion of the allowance that
is allocated to incernally criticized and non-accrual loans is determined by estimating the inherent loss on each credit after giving consideration to the
value of underlying collateral. The gencral reserves are based on the composition and risk characteristics of the loan portfolio, including the nature of
the loan portfoho. credit conu:ntmtlon trcnd:.. hxstoru. and antxcxpatcd dclmqucncy and loss experience, as well as other qualicative factors such as
current economic trends. '
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Management emphasizes loan quality and close monitoring of potential problem credits. Credit risk identification and review processes are utilized in
order to assess and monitor the degree of risk in the loan portfolio. QNB’s lending and loan administration staff are charged with reviewing the loan
portfolio and identifying changes in the economy or in a borrower’s circumscances which may affect the ability to repay debt or che value of pledged
collateral. A loan classification and review system exists chat identifies those loans with a higher than normal cisk of uncollectibilicy. Each commercial
loan is assigncd a grade based upon an assessment of the borrower’s financial capacity to service the debe and the presence and value of collateral for the
loan. An independent loan review group tests risk assessmencs and evaluates the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses. Management meets monthly
to review the credic quality of the loan portfolio and quarterly to review the allowance for loan losses.

In addition, various regulatory agencies, as an integeal part of their examination process, periodically review QNB's allowance for losses on loans. Such
agencies may require QNB to recognize additions to the allowance based on their judgments using information available co them at the time of their
examination.

Management believes that it uses the best information available to make determinations about the adequacy of the allowance and that it has established
its existing allowance for loan losses in accordance with GAAP. If circumstances differ substantially from the assumptions used in making determina-
tions, fucure adjustments to the allowance for loan losses may be necessacy and results of operations could be affected. Because future events affecting
borrowers and collateral cannot be predicted with certainty, there can be no assurance that increases to the allowance will not be necessary should the
quality of any loans deteriorate as a result of the factors discussed above.

Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets

QNB continues to carry servicing assets, relating to mortgage loans it has sold. Such servicing assets are recorded based on the relative fair values of the
servicing assets and loans sold at ¢he date of cransfer. The servicing asset is amortized in proportion o and over che period of net servicing income.
Servicing assets are assessed for impairmenc based on their disaggregated fair value.

Premises and Equipment

Premises and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Depreciation and amortizacion are calculated principally on
an acceleraced ot seraight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows: buildings—10 to 40 years, and equipment—3 to 10 years.

Expendicures for maintenance and repairs are charged to operations as incurred. Gains or losses upon disposition are reflected in earnings as realized.

Bank-Owned Life Insurance

The Bank invests in bank-owned life insurance (BOLI) as a source of funding for cmploy& benefic expenses. BOLIL involves the purchasing of life
insurance by the Bank on a chosen group of employces. The Bank is che owner and beneficiary of the policies. Income from the increase in cash

surrender value of the policies is included on the income statement.

Stock-Based Compensation

At December 31, 2004, QNB had a stock-based employce compensation p‘lan,“which is _dcscribcd‘mor_e fully in Note 14. QNB accounts for this plan
under the recognition and measurement principles of APB Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees,” and related interpretacions.
No stock-based employee compensation cost is reflected in net income, as all options graﬁtcd under :his‘plian had an exercise price equal to the market
value of the underlying common stock on the date of granc. The following table illustrates the effect of net income and earnings per share if the
Corporation had applied the fair value recognition provisions of FASB Statement No. 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” to stock-based
employce compensacion.

December 31, 2004 70032002

INEE INCOME, 85 FEPOTIEd ...ovvrrreineierriei st ccass s s d e s ar bbb e bbb bbb st vabanranan $6.203 $5.648 $4,955

Deduct: Total stock-based employee compensation expense determined under _

fair value based method for all awards, net of related tax efFECES ..o seeees e e resean 95 104 91

PIO FOTMNA MOUINCOMIE 1..ovuviovtriess et ettt eeaceseereeesehossetor et aastsesatsre fesaatssssatesesemssatstataesesstasictasstsantessssnssasnessinseses $6,108 $ 5,544 $ 4,864

Earnings per share S .
BSIC = 25 TEPOLIET o.uineniisieet ittt ettt emtr et n s st RS RbeEsS SR e et aegabenes $ 2.00 5 1.83 3 1.61
BaSIC = PO FOIMIA touvureeeseetirctei sttt ettt e b s sttt ettt sene e annnes $ 1.97 $ 1.79 $ 1.58
DHIUEEA - 85 FEPOTTEA ..vevivviiietieeietsetiecerer e ttespaesreeeeseeratese s sestaetanesoseresasaenresasstarstbanstanntoeatssenessnatsnsssnannssrsrese $ 1.95 $ 179 $ 159
Diluted - Pro fOrma v Lo $ 1.92 3 1.76 $ 1.57
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SFAS No.:123 provides.an alternative method of accouhring-fof stock-based compensation arrangements. This method is based on fair value of the srock-
based compensation detzrmined by an option pricing modcl urilizing various assumptions régarding the underlying attributes of the options and QNB's.
stock, racher than the existing method of accouhting for stock-based compensation which is provided in Accounting Principles Board Opinion No.:25
(APB No. 25), “Accounting for Stock Issued'to.: Employees.” The Financial Accounting Srandards Board encourages eatities to adope the fair value based
method, but does not require; che:adoption of this methad. QNB applies APB No. 25 and related Interpretations in accounting for the Plan:

S et L d RN T VR . Lo TR VR . . .. . :
For purposes of computing pro forma results, QNB estimated the fair value of stock options on the date of the grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing
model. The model requires the use of numerous assumptions, many of which are highly subjective in nature. Therefore, the pro forma results are, of
necessity, estimates of results of operationsas if-‘compensation:expense had been recognized for-all stock-based compensacion plans and are not indicative of
the impact on future periods. The! rfglloﬁng.mmpﬁons were used in the option pricing model for purposes of estimating pro forma results. A

Year ended December 31, 2004 2003 2002
Riskfree interest race OO T R e, "4.39% - 3.97% " 4.83%
Dividend Yield w...vveeoerisovrsernrissisisniin 220 . o+ - 3.30 372+
Volarility .....covnrene - 13.61 - 2453 21.63
Expeceed life .. 10 yrs. 10 yrs. - 10 yrs.

The weighted average fair value per share of options granted during 2004, 2003 and 2002 was $7.18, $4.67 and $3.43, respectively.

lncome TaX@S: - « e s .

QNB accounts for income -taxes under thc assetlllablllty mcthod Dcfcrrcd tax assets and lnablhucs are rccogmzcd for the future tax consequenccs
atmburablc to differences bcrwccn rhc financial statement carrying amounts of cx;stmg assets and liabilities and their. respective tax bases, as well as
operating loss and tax credit carryforwards Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacred rax rates expected to apply to taxable income
in che years in which chose temporary differences are expected ta be recovered or settled. The effece on deferred cax assets and liabilicies of 2 change in
tax rates is rccogmzcd in income inthe pcnod that includes the énactment datc ‘A valuacion allowance is established” agamst defeired tax asscts when, in
che ;udgmcnt of managcmcnt. itis'more hkcly :h:m not that such dcfcrrcd tax assets will not become available. Because the ]udgment about the level of
future taxable income is depcndcnr to 4" great ‘extent on miatters that'may, at least in part, go beyond QNB’s control, it is a least reasonably pOSSlble that

ma.nagcmcnts judgment about the need for valuauon allowance for defetted taxes could change in the near term,

Net Inc‘ome Per Share

N e e . - - FFaN

Basic eammgs per share cxcludcs any dllunve cﬁ'ccts ofopnons and is computcd by dmdmg net income by thc wenghted average numbcr of shares outstandmg
during the period. Diluted catnings per f'share gives effect to all dilutive po:mua.l common shares that were outstanding during the period. For che purpose of
earnings per share, share and per share data, for all periods prcscn(cd have been restated to refléce the two-for~onc stock sph: distributed October 14, 2003.

FT

Comgprehensive Income

(.omprchcnslvc income is dcfncd as the changc in’ cquxty of a business entity dunng a period duc to transactions and other evénts and circumstances, |
cxcludmg those resultmg from i ifvéstments by and"distributions to owners. For QI\B the prlmary componcnt ofother comprehenswc income is the

unrealized holdmg gams or losscs on avanlablc-fohsalc investment sccurmcs

A B Paoloaoen Muion

Recent Accdunting‘Pi"dhOuﬂcémen‘ts

Stock—Based Compcnsatlon . :

In December 2004, the Finahial Accounnng Standards Board (FASB)«:ssucd Statemenc No. 123(R), “Sharc-Bascd Paymcnt Smtcmcnt No 123(R) replaces
Statement No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” and supersedes' APB Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued co Employees.”

Statement No. 123(R) requires compensation costs relared to share-based payment transactions to be recognized in the financial statcmcnrs over thc period that
an employee provides service: in- :xchangc for.che-award. Public ¢ companies are required to adopt the new standard using a modificd prospective ' method and may
elect to restate prior periods ¢ mmg the modified recrospecuvc -method. Under the modified prospective method, companies are required to record compensation
costs for new and modifi ed awards over the related vstxng period of such awards prospectively and record compensacion costs prospectively For the unvcstcd
pomon. at che dace of adopnon of previously issued'and outstanding awards over the remaining vesting period of such awards. No change to pnor periods -
presented is permitted under the modified prospective method. Under the modified retrospective method, companies. record compensation costs for prior
periodsretroactively through restatement of, such periods using the exact pro forma amounts disclosed in the companies’ footnotes. Also, in the period of
adoption and after, companies tecord comp:nsauon cost based on the modified prospective method. Statement No. 123(R) is effective for periods bcglnmng
after June 15, 2005. The Corporauon is currcndy cxammmg the effects of chis statement and has not yet determined the method of adoptlon
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Loans or Certain Debt Securities Acquired in a Transfer

In December 2003, the Accounting Standards Executive Commitcee issued Statement of Position 03-3 (SOP 03-3), “Accounting for Cerain Loasns or
Debe Securities Acquired in a Transfer.” SOP 03-3 addresses accouncing for differences becween contractual cash flows and cash flows expecred to be
collected from an investor’s initial investment in loans or debt securities acquired in a transfer, including business combinations, if those differences are
atttibutable, at least in part, to credit quality. SOP 03-3 is effective for loans for debt securities acquired in fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2004. The Corporatien intends to adopt the provisions of SOP 03-3 effective January 1, 2005, and does not expect the initial implementation to have a
material effect on the Corporation’s consolidated financial statements.

Loan Commitments

In March 2004, the SEC released Staff Accounting Bulletin (SAB) No. 105, “Application of Accounting Principles to Loan Commitments.” SAB No. 105
provides guidance about che measurements of loan commitments recognized at fair value under FASB Seatement No. 133, “Accounting for Derivacive
Instruments and Hedging Activities.” SAB No. 105 also requires companies to disclose their accounting policy for those loan commitments including methods
and assumprions used to estimate fair value and associated hedging strategies. SAB No. 105 is effective for all loan commitments accounted for as derivatives
that are entered into after March 31, 2004. The adoption of SAB No. 105 did noc have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements.

Other-Than-Temporary Impairment of Investment Securities

In December 2003, the FASB’s Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) issued EITF 03-1, “The Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary Impairment and Its
Application to Certain Investments.” The EITF addresses disclosure requirements regarding information about temporarily impaired investments. The
requirements are effective for fiscal ycars ending after December 15, 2003 for all entities that have debe or marketable equity securities wich market
values below carrying values. The requirements apply to investments in debt and marketable equity securities that are accounted for under SFAS No.
115, “Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Sccurities.” The requirements apply only to annual financial statements. As of Decem-
ber 31, 2004, QNB has included the required disclosures in cheir financial statements.

In March 2004, the EITF reached a consensus on EITF 03-1, “The Meaning of Other-Than-Temporary Impairment and Its Applicadion to Certain
Invesements.” EITF 03-1 provides guidance regarding the meaning of other-than-temporary impairment and its application to investments classified as
cither available-for-sale or held-to-maturity under FASB Statement No. 115, “Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and Equity Securities,” and
to equity securities accounced for under the cost method. Included in EITF 03-1 is guidance on how to account far irpairments that are solely due w©
interest rate changes, including changes resulting from increases in sector credit spreads. This guidance was to become effective for reporting periods
beginning after June 15, 2005. However, on September 30, 2004, the FASB issued a Staff Position char delays the effective date for the recognition and

measurement guidance of EITF 03-1 until additional clarifying guidance is issued. Management is not able 1o assess the impact of the adoption of EITE
03-1 unil final guidance is issued. :

Statement of Cash Flows

Cash and cash equivalents for purposes of this starement consist of cash on hand, cash items in process of collection, amounts due from banks, incerest
carning deposits in other financial insticutions and Federal funds sold.

Note 2 - Earnings Per Share

The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted earnings per share (share and per share data have been restated ro reflect the two-
for-one stock split paid October 14, 2003 and are not in thousands):

2004 2003 2002
Numerator for basic and diluted earnings per share - nEUINCOME .....vicrvvcriiiircricrcnrreee e e $ 6,203 $5,648 $4,955
Denominator for basic earnings per share - weighted average shares outstanding ......ooevvceviecvcnccinnniineennisisienin 3,096,360 3,091,640 3,078,550
Effect of dilutive securities - employee S0k OPLONS ......covvieiciiricirierininseesseaissinissesssses st e ses s s ass s 81,792 61,665 30,803
Denominator for diluted carnings per share - adjusted weighted average shares outstanding ......ccevveevnriovvincrrennn, 3,178,152 3,153,305 3,109,353
Earnings Per share = Basic ..ot ettt et e e $2.00 $1.83 $1.61
Earnings per share - diluted ..o e st et aee 1.95 1.79 1.59

There were 20,000 stock options that were anti-dilutive as of December 31, 2004. These stock options were not included in the above calculation.
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Note 3 - Cash And Dué [From Banks

Inctuded in cash and due from: baiks are resérves in the-form of deposits with'the chcral Reserve Bank of $8,445,000 and $9,165,000-to satisfy Federal
regulatory requnrcmcms as of Decémber 31, 2004 and 2003 S o o

CRlude e e T .
Note 4 - Investment Securities Available-For-Sale

The amortized cost and csti‘ma’tféd.fai‘r valiies of investmerit securities available-for-salé at December 31, 2004 and 2003 were as follows:

December 31, » . 2004 2003

Gruss Gross Gross Gross
i oo fmr holding holding Amortized fair halding holding  Amortized
, S value™ - gains  losses © ‘oot value - " gains’ losses ' cost
U.S. TIEQSULY ©oovvererrsrrssrees e 8 61147 § 0 -8 538 6167 $ 6792 8 19 8 1§ 6774
U.S. Governmicnt agencies ... i 46,478 40 - 65 = 46,503 43,279 339 © 67 43,007
State and municipal securities!. . 4509927 .- 1,162 - 137 44,967 41,076 L,162 - " 217 40,131
Mortgage-backed securities .....cocvenrriiinine 67.510 566 185 67,129 66,476 835 159 65,800
Colhteralized mortgage obligatons (CMOs) ... 70,789 127 865 71,527 68,761 364 1,086 . 69,483
Other debt securities ‘ 21,972 2000 . - 19972 25214 2,379 - 22835
Equity sc‘cu’rides § 8706 698 1,727 " 9,735 9,033 951 972 9,054
Total i lnvcs:mcnt sccuntlcs o ‘ R : ) )
avaxlablc-for—salc ...... Y RO | 267 561 .$ 4,593  $3,032 " § 266,000 $ 260,631 $6,049  $2,502 $257,084

The amortized ‘cost and estimaced faic value of 's“ccuriti'cs available-for-sale by contractual maturicy ac December 31, 2004 are shown in the following table.
- Expected macurities will differ from contractual maturities because borrowets may have the right to call or prépay obligations with or without call or

prepayment penalties.

T EN PN I g v . Aggregate Amorrized
December 31,2004~ - ¢ & [N : ’ : K . fair value . cost
Due in oné year or léss : ; e $ 3,042 $ 3,060
Due after one year chrough fiveyears-........ rereervieniae e e et sidastsseenesatarbesens S eeurelehee st e ere et i et b e ar st ae e et e e r e s e s st eanranenntreneen 43,160 - 44,723
Due after five years chrough ten years ......... SOOI POTOI R RSP 54,596 52,774
Due after ten years PPN 156,057 155,708
Equity securities .........coccunn..... - . - ‘ . 8,706 9,735
T O] SECULITIES AVALADIE-FOT-SA1E 1. o ore oo oo eeoe e eseeesessareessaessessseeseesses s sessessesesaaeeasesenmesesesseeeeseesssesssessseasseseesees oot $ 267,561 $ 266,000
Proceeds from sales of investment securities available-for-sale are as follows:. . A ‘ . .

2004 2003 - 2002
U R e et e et ren et eee e .. 866,715 $54,591 $17,245
GOS8 GRS oottt e ieueateerieretvareseertatarereeesbbbetesan b bt e Rt so ke R e e R e eRsattsusr e e s s s raraeten _ 1,207 455 165
Gross lossc’s....‘...........: ............... ‘ ............ s s e R e s ’ 358 589 944

There were no othcr-than-tcmpomry lmpaumcnt chargcs in 2004. Included in gross losses for 2003 and 2002 were othcr-than-temporarv nmpzurmcn:
chargcs of $ 126,000 and $702 000; rcspccnvcly o ‘

R o o
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Held-To-Maturity

The amortized cost and estimated fair values of investn_xér'xt securities hcld‘ro.—_maturi‘;y at Decghber 31, 2004 and 2003 were as follows:

December 31, ) 2004 2003
Gross Gross Gross Gross
’ cost gains losses value cost gins losses value
State and municipal securitics ....c.ocereeeee. § 6,203 $229 $ - % 6432 7 - $11,180° $317 $ - 311497
Collateralized mortgage obligations (CMOs) - - - ~ 832 5 - 837
Total investment securitics o o T
Held-to-Matusity «orveerrreereirennrerenerensreones $ 6,203 - $229 $ - 3 6432 T $12,012 -$322 $ - $12334
The amortized cost and estimated fair values of securities held-to-maruricy by contractual maturity at December 31, 2004, are shown in the following table.
Expected maturities will differ from contractual macurities because borrowers may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without penalties.
‘ ‘ ‘ Aggregate Amortized
December 31, 2004 ] ) fair value cost
Due in one year of less......cccuvenns et es st eth e e e b s s e erasa s s s s eseenae et . " ; $ 304 $ 300
Due after one year chrough five years... 1,159 1,113
Due aftet five years through (o0 yEars ..ot bbb et - -
Due after ten YEATS ...ttt et be s ettt s seae et s sens e e pasenees 4,969 4,790
Toral securities held-to-maturity ...... $ 6,432 $ 6,203

There were no sales of investment securities classified as held-to-maturicy during 2004, 2003 or 2002. At December 31, 2004 and 2003, invescrment
securities totaling $103,305,000 and $84,425,000 were pledged as collaceral for repurchase agreerments and deposits of public funds.

The rable below indicates the length of time individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position at December 31, 2004:

Less chan {2 months 12 months or longer » Toral

Faic = Unrealized Fair  Unrealized Fair  Unrealized

) value - losses value losses value losses

US. Treasury c.ooooovccrcrnnan. SO $ 6,114 $§ 33 8 - $ - $ G114 $ 53
U.S. Government agencies ....occuurevcerniernrinceesinmiensscsnsionsioncecnnes 24,875 45 980 20 25,855 65
State and municipal SECUMEIES ...c.ovvveeerriecvicie s 10,152 137 - - - 10,152 137
Mortgage-backed seCUfities ..o, 21,834 157 1,517 .28 23,351 185
Collateralized mortgage obligations (CMOs) ..ccvvvrrrirnrirviniinnninnann. 34,099 368 18,355 497 52,454 865
Equity securities coovvvoiiiiiiiii i OO 1,365 255 4,028 1,472 5.393 1,727
Total et R TITTOPNTORURON : $98,439 $1,015 $ 24,880 $ 2,017 $123,319 $ 3,032

The unrealized losses in QNB’s investment holdings are related to the dynamic nacure of interest rates. One of QNB's prime objectives with che invest-
ment portfolio is to invest excess liquidiry that is not needed to fund loans. As a resule, QINB adds new investments chroughout the year as they become
available through deposit inflows or roll-off from loans and securities. The unrealized losses in certain holdings are the result of these being purchased when
market interest races were lower than at year end. As interest.rates increase, fixed rate securities generally fall in market price to reflect the higher market
yield. If held to maturity, all of the bonds will mature at par, and QNB will not realize a loss. .

A portion of the uarealized losses is also related to four adjustable rate Fannie Mac and Freddie Mac preferred stocks. The dividend on these holdings resets
ac regular intervals at a specific spread o a predetermined index (such as the two year Treasury yield). The dividend is also eligible for the dividend received
deduction (DRD), which exempts 70 percent of the dividend from Federal taxes. As interest rates fell sharply and the dividends on these decreased, the
benefic of the DRD decreased as well. As a resul, the market price fell to compensate buyers for the decreased tax benefit. As interest rates rise and the tax
benefit widens, we expect the market price of these stocks to rise as well,
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Note 5 - Loans

. n : : . 2004 2003

December 31, " e

Cqmm:pci{al‘ and industrial ....ooveipen. et et e e e e ren st s et s e oo - $ 57,364 8§ 47,196
Agriculeural .............. ! . 8 14
Construcuon eeleeeaies R At 7,027 9,056
Real éstate- corpmcrcml . e s bt e ettt e b st 98,397 86,707
Real estate-residential " ‘ 99,893 83,703
Consumer .......ovverne ‘ 5,376 5,604
Total 005 ..ovennervrensreresnes : S ‘ SRR S 268,065 ‘232,28(?
Less unearned income.... s : . . ’ 17 " 153
Total loans, net of unearned income reiitenshenseseeneeneirestaribseses siasn s e et esetesssasrenteterensbe R e eRTareteanranenesanatetaneetsnterer ...  $268,048 $232,127

P BITAL Ll e

Real estace commercial loans include all loans collateralized ac least in parc by commercial real estace. These loans may not be for the expressed purpose
of conducting commercial real estate transactions.

At December 31, 2004 and 2003; the tecorded investment in loans for which impairment has been recognized totaled $372,000 and $796,000 of
which $372,000 and $404 000 required no allowance for loan loss. As of December 31, 2003, $392,000 of loans required an allowance for loan loss of
$100;000. Most of the ioans identified as impaired are collateral-dependent. For the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, the average
recoeded investmenc in impaired loans was approximately $507,000, $508,000 and $699,000, respectively. QNB recognized $111,000, $56,000 and
$68,000 of interest income on thcse |oans in 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. »

Included wuhln the loan portfoho are Joans on'non-accrual stacus of $373,000 and $818,000 ac December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. These
loans are included in.che impaired loan total above. [f interest on non-accrual loans had been accrued throughout the period, interest income for the
years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, would have increased approximacely $21,000, $40,000 and $19,000, respectively. The amount of
interest income on chese loans that was included-in nét income in 2004, 2003 and 2002 was $0, $55,000 and $31,000, respectively.

QNB generally lends in its ttade area which is comprised of Quakertown and the surrounding communities. To a large extent, QNB nakes loans
collateralized at least in part by'realestare; Iis'lending activities could be affected by changes in the general economy, the regional economy, or real estace
values. QNB’s commercial loans are not consldcrcd to be concentrated within any one industry, except those loans to real estate developers and investors
which account for $52,046, 000 of, 19 4 pcrant of the loan porttohu at December 31, 2004. This is an increase from the $40,106,000, or 17.3 percent,
.at December 31, 2003, Conccntranon is bas:d upon bcandnrd Industrlal Classxﬁcatmn codes used for bank regulatory purposes and is comxd:rcd to be
10 percent or more of total loans. o

Note 6 - Allowance For Loan Losses

Activity in the allowance for loan losses is shown bclow:

December 31, " RS ‘ S 2004 2003 2002

Balanice at beginning of year . $2,929 $2,938 32,845
Chargc-oﬂ"s (406) - (28) - (39)
Recoverics poenes [ -89 ; 19 - - 132
Net (charge-offs) recoveries ...l et Ceeetietee b e res s e R b e bttt eeapa et e st eebe et srerat e rerent et et erer (317) 9) 93
Provision for loan losses .. . . Ceriesniie. . ; : - : -
Balance at end of year $2,612 - $2,929 $2,938
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Note 7 - Premises And Equipment

Premises and equipment, stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization, are summarized below:

December 31, ‘ 2004 2003
Land and BUIINGS ..u.vveiiriiircriiecectiis s csses e ssssaars st s s s RS R AR b s b e eR e an $ 5,543 $ 4,928
FUINITULE AN EQUIPIMENT ..vcvuimmniiiiniisriiresiesiitisses s sssssss s sr st s a e bs bR e RS e bbb AR seb b s s 7.648 7,162
Leasthold IMIPIOVEMENTS .......cveceeinrierriei ettt s s b cases s bs et b ea st rs s bt s bbb pmer s st b nec st anac s 1,655 1,593
BOOK VAILE 1eoreeeeetiie st ettt st st b s srsss s s e b s stes s sab b e e shaaa s R e s R e R e ta L Re b e R e AR AR oY st aRB SR s hsms e s bsa e SR e R bRk oe b b et e se et vasteaestnrstesnennaan 14,846 13,683
Accumulated depreciation and WMOMTZAUON ......cvviirivrivi it st serastess b e ce et seree s a e s saes st aas (9,206) (8,593)
INEEDOOK VAIUE vttt et ettt et e aeneevesesetasanssseseesesnsanssesaseesssebsnsventesesanseasensessssssaansassnsousessransebarestessonsss $ 5,640 $ 5,090

Depreciation and amortization expense on premises and equipment amounted to $907,000, $873,000 and $835,000, for the years ended December
31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Note 8 - Intangible Assets

As a result of the purchase of deposits in 1997, QNB recorded a deposic premium of $511,000. This premium is being amortized, for book purposes, over
ten years and is reviewed annually for impairment. The net accumulated amortization was $145,000 and $196,000 at December 31, 2004 and 2003,
respectively. Amortization expensc for core deposit intangibles for each of the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002 was $51,000.

The following table reflects the co-mponcnts of mortgage servicing rights as of the periods indicated:

Years Ended December 31, : 2004 2003 2002
Mortgage servicing rights beginning balance ... s $ 582 $ 429 $ 240
Mortgage servicing rights capitalized 66 345 246
Mortgage servicing rights MOLHZEA ......c.cviririniriciiie i i st eca st st st (122) (174) o1
Fair market value adjustmMEnts .c..cociiic i i ettt ne s seb s 26 (18) 34
Mortgage servicing rights ending balance’ 3552 $ 582 $ 429
Moregage loans serviced for ochers $78,904 $74.857 §71,621
Amortization expense of intangible assets for the years ended December 31 \73 225 142

The annual estimated amortization expense of intangible assets for cach of che five succeeding fiscal years is as follows:

Estimared annual amortization expense for the year ended December 31, 2005 $ 159
for the year ended December 31, 2006 144
for the year ended December 31, 2007 119
for the year ended December 31, 2008 62
for che year ended December 31, 2009 50

49




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 9 - Time Deposits

The aggregate amount of time deposits including deposits in denominacions of $100,000 or more was $202,820,000 and $190,142,000 ar December 31,
2004 and 2003, respectively. The scheduled macuricies of time deposits as of December 31, 2004 for the years 2005 chrough 2009 and rhcrcaﬁer are
approxlmatcly $103, 405 000 $48 221 000 541 694 doo, $4, 510, 000, $4 944,000 :md $46 000 rcspccuvcly :

i

Note 10 - Short-Term Borrowmgs v

v o e - Securities Soldunder -+~ ’ Other
December 31, IR e © . Agreements to Repurchase *  Short-term Borrowings ®
2004 T e . . P : . : N
Balance ......ivuiveinn. eveeuseeeaiie e e et AT e eneranns ireierieneeesans ORI M areesssreeesinenrieeeraansrasnes $12,774 . . . -~ $ 600G
Maximum indebtedness at any month end . - 14,033 8,549
Daily average indebtedness outstanding 10,735 : : 1,203 -
Average rate paid for the year.........coc..... . 99% : 1.42%
Average rate on period-end borrowings 1.47 2.03
2003 .

, s $ 9,816 $ 600
Maximum indebtedness at any month end . 11,550 . " 600
Daily average indebtedness 6ut§f§ﬁding '9,802 B 424
Average rate paid for the year 5 it e Do s st vereeenteneens 1.04% - - 1.10%
Average rate on period-end borrowmgs .............................................................................................. .85 .73

“ Securitics sold under agreements to repurchase mature within 30 days. The repurchase agreements were collateralized by U.S. Government agency securities, morrgage-backed secusiries and CMOs
with an amortized cost of $15,287,000 and $14, 827 000 and a fair value of $15,210,000 and $14,814,000 at December 31, 2004 and 2003, rcspecuvely These securities are held in szf:k:epmg at the
Federal Reserve Bank,  © - o o cueen [ B . ..

i Othcr shorl ~termm borruwmgs include: ch:nl funds purchucd overnighe burruwmgs from FHLB and Treasury tax and loan notes.

Note 11 FHLB Advances ‘

Under terms of i l[S agreement wich the EHLB, QN B :ﬂakmajﬁs otherwise unencumbered qualifying assets (principally 1-4 Fathily residendial morrgagc. loans
and'U.S. Government and agcncy notcs, bonds and’ mortgage- -backed securmes) in the amounc of at least as much as its advances from the FHLB. QNB’s
FHLB stock of $3,857,100 and. 33, 720,000, at December 31, 2004 and. 2003, respectively, is also plcdgcd to sccure these advances.

At December 31, 2004 and 2003, there were $55,000,000 in outstanding advances with a weighted average rate of 5.29 percent and 5.16 percent, respectively.
Advances are madé pursuant to several different credit programs offered by the FHLB, At December 31, 2004, $35,000,000 of these advances are convertible,
whereby the FHLB has the option ar 2 predecdrmined time (o convert the fixed interest rate to an ad;ust:lble rate tied to LIBOR. QNB then has the option to

prepay these advances if the FHLB converts the interest rate.

Outstanding borrowings as of December 31 , 2004 mature as follows:

Loans maturing in 2005 with a-race of 2.64% $ 2,000
Loans maturing in 2006 with a rate of 2.61%.... 3,000
2007 oo e eSS R8s -
2008 ittt b et e oL A e RS E AR SRR e b b SRS A SRR L sEe S E AR S LA AR LS RS b R SRR S s RS a SRR SRR e b eeR R e SN e s eEE LN RS e st e Ea RO ane -
Loans maturing in 2009 with rates ranging from 5.05% te 5.97% ... 26,500
Loans maturing in 2010 wich rates ranging from 5.86% to 6.02% ... 9,500
Loans macuring in 2011 with races ranging from 4.99% to 6.04% 14,000
Tortal FHLB advances ........icccnniinvecriinnnnennnns reveerieeerrraenteettesarseasee s eeaaareasearanse st st aerat e s a e nrasrene s re £ e ekt senbesresenntsenabresanbeesantenntesenteesrteasenessennrssre $55,000
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Note 12 - Income Taxes

The components of the provision for income taxes are as follows:

Year Ended December 31, 2004 2003 2002
Current: :

Federal income taxes ............ . . .- . . £ 1,405 $1.256 $1,283
Deferred Federal iMCOME TAXES ..ovuvvruirreeireriinirisisicesenternmiessressreseresssesssansasissssssssatsssssssaesssessssassosesssess sassssssessesnssnsns 299 2) (79)
INCE PIOVISION covvvcvvvevinireriassenteesaseisinecestssesss st nsss s sstsss sttt b a8 ms bt bbb st a s $1,704 $1.254 $1,204

At December 31, 2004 and 2003, the tax effects of temporary differences that represent the significant portion of deferred tax assets and liabilities are as

follows:
Year Ended December 31, 2004 2003
Deferred tax assets .
Allowance For 10an LS55 .......cvenrrirriceriecicnirien s e resssessenesess ettt e et e r e e s oS A AR be R e e s bR oR b seR e erebn $ 697 § 750
Impaited EQUITY SECULITIES oooviiiiir it e b b e bR R sa AR s a bR bR R a4 Sh bbb atee 52 272
Deferred COMPENSALON .........comiiiteteiite s bbb e b b b bR bbb e R R bbbk raba s s 0 b et s et et et abe st s snanee 199 202
Deposit premium ........ 42 36
RCE ettt e st s e b s e e st erbabe e st sb e e st b rete TS baa s he R e b ere R A e R e RS R e et R R se e h et ek e R s easare e R ebe e R e R bRt ars e aRs e beRaenbonssaennersanrenn 14 35
TOAl dEfErred 1aX ASSEIS covrrivrererrivriiieei ettt st en et tsste st s re s aasem e sster e b oo tarsa st araessssesssssssasssseess tase st esesaeseserssaansesanatasesRtaneersn 1,004 1,295
Deferred tax liabilities
Depreciation ....ccieciveivcsnssssnsssennnnns 158 138
Mortgage servicing rights 188 198
Net unrealized holding gains on
investment securities available-for-sale ... 870 1,206
T ettt ettt et e et ettt r et er e eaeas cteaae b e et s b eaea R Rseb oAt st S es b e ke s A SR Re e ede ettt et et hes et eenn e e Rt ee s e ot e ss st s e te et ek et ensseteanen 37 39
Total deferred tax HADILEIES .ovvvivieeeiiii e b st re e et b st b b et et s as s et bt st et esat e it st eenseenssaesneenn 1,253 1,581
INCT deferred tax Habilithes ...oocvoiviiveeoieriiei ittt et et ereees et se s sstsnbessesrasetsseaemasaneeseasenann st ereaseeanerasereanseasennsesssesaseses $(249) 8 (286)

The realizability of deferred rax assets is dependent upon a variety of factors, including the generation of future taxable income, the existence of taxes paid and
Y B P

recoverable, the reversal of deferred tax liabilities and tax planning strategies. A valuation allowance of $95,000 was established during the year ended

December 31, 2002 to offset a portion of the tax benefits associated with certain impaired securities that management belicved may not be realizable. This

valuation allowance was reversed during 2003 as a result of the ability to realize tax benefits associated with certain impaired securities, due to the increase

in unrealized gains of certain equicy securities. Based upon these and ocher factors, management believes it is more likely than not thac QNB will realize the

benefits of these remaining deferred tax assets. The net deferred tax liability is included in other liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet.

A reconciliation between the statutory and effective tax rate for net income was as follows:

Year Ended December 31, . 2004 2003 2002
ProViSiON at STATULOLY FALE 11evuvuersscriisrseninscaresiseseresaersnensorensnrsssasennarorsasesssescssareseenes e e sttt $2,688 $2,347  $2,094
Tax-cxempr interest income .... (879) (843) (840)
Bank-owned life insurance ... (102) (112) (126)
Life insurance proceeds .......... " - (37} -
Change in valuation allowance - (95) 95
Other........... (3) (6) (19)
Total provision $1,704 $1,254 31,204
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Note 13 - Employee Benefit Plans

Until December 31, 2002, QNB maintained a money purchase defined concribution plan which covered all employees who met the age and service
requirements. QNB made conmbutlons w0 lhe moncy purchasc plan cqu\valcnt to 5 percent of total compensation (as defined by the plan). QNB
contributed and cxpcnsed 5217 039 to thxs plan in 2002 QN B also had a 401(k) proﬁt sharing plan pursuant to the provisions of 401(k) of the
Internal Revenue Code, The plan covered substa.nually alt employees who met the age and service requirements. The 401 (k) plan provided for clective:
employee contributions up-to 9 percent of compensation and a matching company contribution limited to 3 percent. QNB made contributions to the
profit sharing plan as directed by its Board of Directors: For 2002, QNB contributed and expensed $119,063 to the 401(k) profit sharing plan.

Effecive ]anﬁary 1, 2003, these cwc; p.lua-n’s were mcr‘g‘cd> and restated into The Qual;cftow;m National Bank Rctir;:ment Savings Plan. The plan provides
for elective employee contributions:up to.20 percent of compensation and a matching company contribution limited to 3 percent. In addition, the plan
provides for safe harbor nonelective contriburions of 5 percent of total compensation by QNB. For 2004 and 2003, QNB contributed $140,131 and
$141,597 asa matching cont%i'bu:ion and 5259,981 and $257,927 as a snfc vharbgl: contribution to the plan.

QN B's E.mp!oycc Stock Purchasc Plzn (rhc "Plan") offcrs cllgxblc cmployccs an opportumry to purchase sharcs of QNB Corp. Common Sxock ata 10
percent discounc from che lesser of fair market value on the fiest or last day of each offering period (as defined by the plan) The Plan authorizes the
issuance of 42 000 shares As of Dcccmbcr 31 2004 1, 1 l sharcs were 1ssued under the plan

Shares issued pursuanc to tthIan, were as fél:iows: ‘ , B

Yeéar Ended Deceniber 31, " 7 Tt n B R ’ ' Shares ™ Price per Share

2,679 $2745 and $2745
3,415 18.00 - and- 19.82

3,304 14.85 and  17.10

Note 14 - Stock Option Plan

QNB hasa scock option plan (die “Plan”) administered-by a-cormittee which consists of three or more members of QN B's Board of Directors. The Plan provxdcs
for the granting of cither (i) Non-Qualified Stack Options (NQSOs) or (ii) Incentive Stock Options (ISOs). The exercise price of an option is the fair markec value
of QNB’s coritmon stock ac the date of grant, as defined by the Plan. The Plan provides for the exercise cither in cash or in securities of the Lorporatlon orin

any combinarion thereof,

i

The Plan authoizes the issuance of 220;500 shates. The time period by which any option is exercisablé under che Plan is determined by the Commitcee
but shail n6c commence before thé expitation 'of six months oricontinue beyond the expication of ten years after the date cthe option is awardcd Asof
Dcccmber 31, 2004, there'were 196, )58 opuons grantcd and 182 392 options- oulstandmg under the Plan

- DS ‘ _ .,

Changes in :otal options: outsta.ndmg during'2004, 2003 and 2002, weie as follows:-

Number of Options - - Exercise Price per Option Average Exercise Price

December 31, 2001 - 137,960 $13.09 - $1670 $14,53
“Exercised T ormmen e TUU(28,100) 7 77 ) 13.09 - 1670 ‘ 1458
Grameed | 7t e : 40,000 SR 16.13 ' 16.13
December 31, 2002 . | L S . 148,206 13.09 - 16.70 1497
Exercised . . ) , . (25,794) . ) 13.09 - 16.70 - . 15.30
Granted N ) ] . 40,000 ‘ 20.00 - ) . 20.00
December 31,2003 ° e . 162,412 © 13.09 < 2000 16.15
- Exercised - ; pe o o (20) . . 13.09 : 13.09

* Granted - c v o S I s +20,000° o i : 33.25 © 33.25

December 31, 2004 ‘ ‘ , 182,392 $13.09 - $33.25 $18.03
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The following table summarizes information about stock oprions outstanding at December 31, 2004:

Exercisable
Exercise Price Range Options Avcrasgifc‘ Average Exercise Price
$13.09 - § 13.30 o . 56,378 5.58 o $13.20
1613 - 20.00 ‘ . 106,014 6.70 17.73
33.25 20,000 9.34 33.25
Toul ' ] ‘ 182,392 G.64 $ 18.03

! Average contractual life remaining in years

Note 15 - Related Party Transactions

The following table presents acrivicy in the amounts due from'directors, principal officers, and their related interests. All of these transactions were made in
the ordinary course of business on substandially the same terms, including interest rates and collateral, as those prevailing at the time for comparable
transactions with other persons. Also, they did not involve 2 more than normal risk of collectibility or present any other unfavorable features.

Balance, December 31, 2004 ...

QNB allowed its directors to defer a portion of their compensation. The amount of deferred compensation accrued as of December 31, 2004 and 2003,
was $584,000 and $593,000, respectively. o - ‘ .

During 2003, QNB entered into an agreemenc wich a Director for the renovation of the Bank's operation center. This agreement was approved by the
Board of Directors. The total paid during 2003 was $62,000. ‘

On July 21, 2004, che Bank éntered into an agreement with a director of QNB Corp. for the purchase by che Bank of a cwo stary building for 2 pucchase
price of $600,000. The price was determined through an indeperident third party appraisal. Management of QNB Corp. and the Bank believe that the
taansaction reflects arm’s-length negotiated terms. The Bank intends to use the acquiced property for addicional office space. ’

Note 16 - Commitments And Contingencies

Financial ins uts with off-balance-sheec ri ’ ] )

In the normal course of business there are various legal proceedings, commitmér{is, and cénting;:nt liabilities which are not reflected in thc'ﬁnancial
statements. Management does not anticipate any material losses as a rcsult‘o_f these transactions and activities. They include, among other things,
commitments to extend credit and standby letters of credit. Qutstanding sfandby letters of credit amounted to $3,637,000 and $5.632,0‘00, and
commitments to extend credit and unused lines of credit totaled $81,788,000 and $59,406,000 at December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. The
maximum exposute to credit loss, which represents the possibility of sustaining a loss due to the failure of the other parties to a financial instrument to
perform according to the terms of the contract, is represented by the contractual amount of these inscruments. QNB uses the same lending standards

and policies in making credit commitments as it does for on-balance sheet instruments. The activity is controlled through credic approvals, control

limits, and monitoring procedures.

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a clistomer as long as there is no violation of any condition established in the conceact.
Commitments generally have fixed expifation dates or other termination clauses and may require the payment of a fee. Since many of the commit-
mencs are expected to expire without being drawn upon, the total commitmenc amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. QNB
evaluates each customer’s creditworthiness on a case-by-case basis.

Standby letcers of credit are conditional commitments issued to guarancee the performance of a customer to a third party. The credit risk and collateral

policy involved in issuing letters of credit are essentially the same as those involved in extending loan commitments.

The amount of collateral obrained for letters of credic and commitments to extend credit is based on management's credic evaluation of the customer.

Collateral varies, but may include real estate, accounts receivable, marketable securities, pledged deposits, inventory or equipment.
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QNB has committed to various;gperating-leases for several of their branch and office facilitics. The minimum annual rental commitments under these
leases outstanding ac December 31,.2004 arc as follows: _ .
Minimum Lease Payments

§ 274
260
244
244
223
2,077
Rent expense under leases for cach.of the years-ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, was $299,000, $264,000 and $273,000, respectively.
Note 17 - Other Com‘[‘:rehehs‘i',v"e"ﬂncg‘)‘me o N
The tax effects allocated to each compog‘tént of other comprehensive income are as follows:
R R __Before-Tax Amount Tax Expense (Benefit) Net-of-Tax Amount
Year Ended December 31, 2004 R T ' ‘ ) -
Unrealized losses-on securitiés=i : ’ e Do - ) - -
Unrealized holding losses arising dunng rhc pcnod .................................... - $(1,137) $ 47 $ (1,090)
Reclassification adjustment for gams included in netincome ..oo...civennee (849) 289 (560)
Other comprehensive fEOME ...cu.veveweervarerieicisiiniseecissiiersisriassss .$ (1,986) 3 336 $ (1,650)
Year E L, 2
Unrealized losses on sccurities - ‘ .
Unrealized holding losses arising durmg thc pcnod .................................... $ (2,1L1) $ 761 $ (1,350)
Reclassification ad]us:mcnc For lossea mcluded N NeLinComMe wvvvvvrerevennannn o134 (46) 88
Qther comprchcnswc income™! .. ) $ (1,977) ‘ $ 715 ] $(1,262)
Year Ended December 31, 200
Unrealized gains on securities
Unrealized holding gains arising durm;, the period i - 33,079 - _ $ (1,089) $ 1,990
Redlassification adjustment for losses included in ret income ...oveeveennnn.e 779 (265) 514
Other comprchcnswc LELCOMIC f1ovteeeeiss e etiveeesess st evesss s v aveensreseaentstnnses $ 3,858 3 (1,354) ’ $ 2,504

Note 18- Dlsclosures About Faur Value of Flnam:lal Instruments

Al entitigs are required o, dxsclosc csumatcd Faxr valucs for rhctr ﬂnanc:a.l instruments, whether or not rccogmzed in the balance sheet. For QNB, as for

most financial institutions, substannally all of its dssets and lxabllmcs are considered financial instruments.

Esumaccs of faic value are madc ata spectﬁc pomc in ctmc, bascd upon, where avadablc, relevant markec pncn.s and mform.mon about chc financial
instrument. Such estimates do not include any premium or discount that could result from offering for sale at one time QNB's entire holdings of a
particular financial instrument. For a substantial porrion of QNB's financial instruments, no quoted marker exists. Therefore, estimates of fair value are
necessarily based on a number of sxgmﬁcan: a.ssumpuons regarding the amount and timing of estimated future cash ﬂows, which are discounted to reflect
varying dcgrccs of risk. Given ‘the unccrtamucs surroundmg these assumptlons, the reported fair values may not represent actual values of financial
instruments that could have been realized as of ycar-cnd or [hat will be rcahzcd in the futute. Use of different assumptions or mechodologies is likely to
result in stgmﬁcamly different fair value estimates.
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The estimated fair values and carrying amounts arc summarized as follows:

December 31, 2004 2003
Carrying Amount Estimated Fair Value Carrying Amount  Estimated Fair Value
Financial Assets : )
Cash and due from banks .......ooooievieiiriiieeee $ 19,026 $ 19,026 ‘ $ 21,534 $ 21,534
Federal funds sold 3,159 3,159 4,532 4,532
Investment securities available-for-sale .......coovvveenennnnn. 267,561 267,561 260,631 260,631
Investment securities held-to-macurity ... 6,203 6,432 12,012 12,334
" Non-marketable equity securities ....... 3,947 - 3,947 3,810 3,810
Loans held-for-sale ..o N 312 ) 305 1,439 1,462
Net loans ooveeiivivcvineen s 265,436 ) 265,810 229,198 232,404
Bank-owned life insurance .......ooevvvvviviinevreinnneins s 7,906 © 7,906 7,585 7,585
Mortgage servicing rights ..o 552 637 582 582
Accrued interest reccivable ..ooviiivinevcecicreeee 2,531 » 2,531 2,823 2,823
Financial Liabilities
Deposits with no stated maturities ...o..ccoccevierinnsnn, 263,668 263,668 248,497 248,497
Deposits with stated maturities ..oevvcovanricninns 202,820 203,152 190,142 193,253
Short-term bOrroWINgs .......vcvveeeenricnmreireiecensrraerns .13,374 13,374 ’ 10,416 10,416
Federal Home Loan Bank advances 55,000 58,656 55,000 58,751
Accrued interest payable ..o 1,179 T L179 1,285 1,285

The estimarted fair value of QNB’s off-balance sheet financial instcuments is as follows:

December 31, 2004 : 2003

Notional Amount  Estimated Fair Value Notional Amount  Estimated Fair Value
Commitments to extend credit .....o.oocveveevecrncnnennnn, et $81,788 - $58,770 -
Seandby letters oF credit .oecrininiieccniiee e s 3,637 - ’ ' 5,632 -

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each major classification of financial inseruments ac December 31, 2004 and 2003.

Cash and due from banks, Federal funds sold, bank-owned life insurance, accrued interest receivable and accrued interest payable: Current carrying
amounts approximate escimated fair value.

Investment securities: Quoted market prices were used to determine fair value.

Non-marketable equity securities:; The fair valuc of stock in Atlantic Central Bankers Bank, the Federal Reserve Bank and the Federal Home Loan
Bank is the carrying amount.

Loans and mortgage servicing rights: The fair value for loans and mortgage servicing rights is estimated by discounting contractual cash flows and
adjusting for prepayment estimates. Discount rates are based upon rates generally charged for such loans wich similar characteristics.

Depoasit liabilities: The fair value of deposits with no stated maturity {c.g. demand deposits, interest-bearing demand accounts, money marker accounts
and savings accounts) are by definition, equal to the amount payable on demand at the reporting date (i.e. their carrying amouncs). This approach to
estimating fair value excludes the significant benefic thac results from the low-cast funding provided by such deposic liabilities, as comparced to alterna-
tive sources of funding. Deposits with a stated maturity (time deposits) have been valued using the present value of cash flows discounced at races
approximating the current market for similar deposits.

Short-term borrowings and Federal Home Loan Bank advances: Short-term borrowings and advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank have been

valued using the present value of cash flows discounted at rates approximating the current market for similar liabilicies.

Off-balance-sheet instruments: Off-balance-sheet instruments are primarily comprised of loan commitments which are generally priced at markert ac
the time of funding. Fees on commitments to extend credic and standby letters of credit are deemed to be immaterial and chese instruments are

expected 10 be setcled at face value ot expire unused. It is impractical to assign any fair value to these instruments.
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Note 19 - Parent Company Financial Informatlon
Condensed financial stacements. of QNB Corp only

Balance Sheets.. ~ .‘}‘.;.-""'."f.l ".' ’.“:"'

December 31, SN 2004 2003
Assets ) - E o S L o . . R ) .

Cash and due from BANKS vivveesirensesrrsessnssssnres E T PO Cersesirsigiasnniresrans R eereshenneases 5 .. 6 .8 2
Invcstment sccurities avallablc-for-salc ........... ERUR . 3869 13,50

42,127. 39,864

Invesement in subsidiary ..

OUhEr AS56LS .oevvivirveceenereenreiiebrorerieessstssecesrsaersesasseesieessersssiensesiesssseseessssersnens retreresnantas et stsae et berareteseasseres PPN N 173
Total aSSELS oevvrvvrenerrrrnn S ORI OSSO evserais s ieressrsaens eessesmiesensisreas $ 46,010 $ 43,564
Liabilicies v “ : i :
Other fiabilities .......ccooerrerel-hueciinniecciircnsreciiniines ettt enes s Coertrraereeeserenne e e tes -8 235 $ 124
Sharcholders’ cquit}; e A Co - '
Common stock ... STV direre st nes cereseereteeeeasateae sttt ens - © 2,003 2,001
SUPIUS rvcocnrrirrereereses et aenns . ’ : .0 9005 8933
RECAUNE CAMMINBS .ocvrrrvevrissicursensssnessesssnressmssessasssins desasssasssissmsecssss s ssss s s srss ER s e beR AR S s e sr st e 35,570 . 31,659
Accumulated other compr. cnstvc TEEOITIE ..oivvtivatsesesssr s trn sy ees bbb E S r bt b S an e e 691 2,341
Treasury stock . (1,494 (1,494)
Toral sharcholders’ equity vovuvrvensrccinsenssernnns e e SO ORI TPRAOVOPIY Heieees 45,775 . 43,440
Toual liabilities.and s'harcholdcrs".cquity...,;..............., ........ U OO PRSI $46,010 . $43,564
Statements 0' Income ‘ R v BT N . j'.‘ - - . o . .- e - B R “ " . " . * .
Year Ended December 31, 7. - ) - -~ 2004 . 2003 2002
Dividends from subsidiary ......ccoocrreeneiciniriiceciinirececs e s e aeees $ 2,182 $ 2.050 $ 1,913
Interesc and dividend income . eues et ae b a s oS R R b e s s 48 39 40
Securities gains (losses) il o i il L e e e erveaian 613 : 223 - " (663)

Total income .ot e e e e e e 2,843 2,112 1,290

EXPCHSCS ............... ivieeas e B SR NCTRCEE U AT RN NP RN DS O 203 153 - ’ 149
Income before applicable incomie taxes and equity in uﬁdistribptcd income of subsidiary ........cccceinnn 2,640 1,959 1,141
InCOME 1XES (BENEAL) .ovviiie et et ecv ettt ste et e et e s ae e aresasstesbe st e aanebaes s eab s sbas e b seane bt asneare et 144 (135) (197)
Incoame before equity in undistributed income of subsidiary ......ocoivvcvinnienecc: ot i, © 2,496 2,094 1,338
Equity in undlstnbutcd income ofsubsldlary 3,707 3,554 3,617

Net income L S A ! y ‘ o

" .
1.
)
ty
1




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Statements of Cash Flows A
Year Ended December 31, L 2004 2003 2002
Operidﬁg Activities Co ) : : ‘
INCE ENCOMMIE 1. vvvereareeeteeteteseeeeeesentat e b s e baaesaee s et e bebe b sees oo e bt s b ket bkt n e e s s s b s es b ear s e emeeasase st s sanbenne $ 6,203 $ 5,648 $ 4,955
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Equity in undistributed income from subsidiary .....ccvvvvrneriniiciinn e, (3,707) (3,554) (3,617)
Securities (GINS) l0SSTS 1uvvvrrvinrrmrisitiirrniie s ererereeteeeenrentetaae e resaeraaes 613) (23) 663
Decrease (iRCrease) in 0CRET ASSELS .oveuercecrrrirricerrecrrmiessserererrrresstseanasesastsresesesannaserarassssrsssissasanes 165 (173) -
Increase (decrease) in other liabilities . 71 (9) ~(61)
Deferred iNCOME taX PLOVISION .....ovvvvrmecccririinitiniiinctcnes s sissssec s ssrssasesss b sres s s aeeson 147 50 (136)
Net cash provided by operating activities c.o...cvcvevimicisiiimniiirsse i ssissssssserenie 2,266 1,939 1,804
[nvesting Acrivities . .
Purchase of investment securities ...........oouen. oot (1,623) (744) (695)
Proceeds from sale of investment securicies 1,555 699 686
Net cash used by InVESHNG ACHVILES «..cvvinruenciriciiesse s st setateians (68) 45) )
Financing Activities A
Cash dividends paid .......coccconvne, OO PO OSOUOUR PO PP (2,292) (2,042) (1,848)
SEOCK TSSHIE vvrevienreerrreesreseiesssesessseeasessssessetsassnssasrasessassessesisessissessisssessesssrnsssonerarasssnesonsessonnssosessans 74 142 - 84
Net cash used by financing activities ..............ccccoooucverrinn S i (2,218) (1,900) (1,764)
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents ... e (20) (6) 31
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning 0f year ... eseisanssis 26 32 {
Cash and cash equivalents at end of Year .....c..ccveciicirniii e s $ 6 $ 26 $ 32
Supplemental Cash Flow Disclosure
Non-Cash Transactions
Change in net unrealized holding gains or losses, net of taxes on investment securities ..., $  (207) $ 596 3 (51)

Note 20 - Regulatory Restrictions

Dividends payable by the Corporation and the Bankare subject to various limitations imposed by statutes, regulations and policies adoprcd by bank regulatory
agencies. Under current regulations regarding dividend availabilicy, the Bank may declare dividends in 2003 to the Corporarion toraling $7,261,000, plus
additional amounts equal to the net profit camed by the Bank for the period from January 1, 2005, through the date of declaration, less dividends previously
declared in 2005. :

Both che Corporation and the Bank arc subject to regulatory capital requirements administered by Federal banking agencies. Failure to meet minimum capiral
requirements can initiate actions by regulators that could have an effect oni'the financial stacements. Under the framework for prompt corrective action, both
the Corporation and the Bank must meet capiral guidelines that involve quantitative measures of their assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance-sheet items.
The capital amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators. Management belicves, as of December 31, 2004, chac the
Corporation and the Bank meet alt capital adequacy requirements to which it is subject.

As of the most recent notification, the Federal Reserve Bank and the Comptroller of the Currency considered the Corporation and the Bank to be "well
capitalized” under the regulatory framework. There are no conditions or events since that notification that management believes have changed the classifica-
tion. To be categorized as well capitalized, the Corporation and the Bank must maintain minimum ratios set forth in the able below. The Corporation and
the Bank’s actual capital amounts and ratios are presented as follows: )
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Capital Levels
e T * Actual  Adequately Capitalized . Well Capitalized
As of December 31, 2004 Amount - Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
Total risk-based capital (co risk weighted assets):’ * | : o ' k
CONSONARLEd o.vrrieeerres e ieeerereeesssseesse S $46532  12.98% $28,673  8.00% $35,841  10.00%
BanK vovvveevecconssenssinsreseeciens et s 42,885 1210 28362 8.00 35,453 10.00
Tier [ capiral (to risk weighred assets):’ . .
Consolidated ......... reernereseeereeseneseseenens rereesssessaenraeniens 43920 1225 : 14,336 4.00 21,504 6.00
BANK cooeveresss e senen e © 40273 1136 . . 14181 4.00 21,272 6.00
Tier I capital (to average asscts):! P o o , ‘
Consolidated 43920 7.44 23614 4.00 29517 5.00
Bank .o vvresrsdiniresesenensas 40,273 6.86 23,481 4.00 29,351 5.00
Capital Levels
‘ ) : Actual : Adequately Capitalized Well Capitalized
As of December 31, 2003 . . o Amount Ratio" Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
Total risk-based capital (o risk.weighted dssets):' S . . . ' ) ‘
Consolidated .....oovvierecereicnrnnnenninnnd! ieverrereensesseneiiannen : $43,806 13.39% $ 26,179 8.00% $32,724 10.00%
Bank .ooerrrriiiennene rresenans eeeeeeiareb e beesenarensrasaressabeesas : 40,230 12.43 25,885 8.00 32,356.  10.00
Tier ] cap:\t;] (to risk weighted gssq;;)g‘ B )
Consolidated ....c.cureevierinncnas L ..................................... 40,877 12.49 . 13,090 4.00 19,635 6.00
BaNK covveeeeeiriiireeecrre e s see e sseste s ateserne st 37.301 11.53 12,943 4,00 19,414 6.00
Tier | capital (to average asscts):“ )
Consolidated ......c.oovviirreiiirenecrirete e siesrasrens 40,877 7.38 22,169 4.00 27,711 5.00

Bank ..o e e e 37,301 6.77 22,045 4.00 27,556 5.00

b As defined by the regulators

-
3

Note 21 - Consolidatedlouarte‘rly Financial Data

The unaudited quarterly results of operations for the years ended 2004 and 2003 are in the following table: ’
Co Quarters Ended 2004 X Quarters Ended 2003

March31  June30  Sept. 30 Dec. 31 * - March 31 June30  Sept. 30 Dec. 31
Interest income $6,136 © $6,172 . $6,519 $6,744 $6,333 $ 6,241 $6,203 $6,362
Interest expense 02,210 2,219 2,425 2,652 2,505 2,471 2,405 2,373
Net INTErest INCOME .vriiveierieirirereernieeessreenieneaies 3,926 3,953 - ' 4,094 4,092 3,828 3,770~ 3,798 3,989
Provision for loan losses - - - - - - - -
Non-interest income ...... 1,370 . - 1,173 .99t 0 1,153 1,238 1,426 938 398
Non-interest expense .............. rerqpeeaerennnsasrasnars . 3,078 3,181 3,246 3,340 3,079 3,077 3,206 3,321
Income before income taxes ........ ' rrbeianens 2,218 1,945 . . 1,839 . 1,905 1,987 2,119 1,530 1,266
Provision for income taxes .........occvvvermrerreeirnenas 496 426 386 396 456 489 118 191
Net INCOME ...cvvcreiveeeneriirieirnniersnrerecnerrossversane $1,722 51,519 $ 1,453 $ 1,509 $1,531 $ 1,630 $1,412 $1,075
Net Income Per Share - Basic ivvvvvevvvcercns $_ 56 8§ 49§ 47 § 49 $ 50 $ 53 8 46 5 35

$ 54 $ 48 § 46 0§ .47 $ 49 $ 52 $ 45 § .34




ITEM9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE

On August 16, 2004, QNB Corp. (QNB) retained S.R. Snodgrass, AC. (Snodgraﬁs) as its new independent accountants to audic QNB's financial
statemencs for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004. KPMG LLP (KPMG) was dismissed on August 16, 2004. The decision to change independent
accountants was recommended and approved by the Audit Committee of QNB. -

During each of the fiscal years ended December 31, 2002 and 2003, none of KPMG'’s reports on the financial statements of QNB contained an adverse
opinion or a disclaimer of opinion or was qualified or modified as to uncertainy, audit scope or accounting principle and there were no disagreements
berween QNB and KPMG on any matter of accounting principles and practices, financial stacement disclosure, or audit scope or procedure, which
disagreement, if not resolved to the satisfaction of KPMG would have caused it to make reference to the subject matter of the disagreement in connection

with its reports. There were no “reportable events™ as that term is defined in Item 304 (a) (1) (v) of Regularion 5-K occurring within QNB in the two most
recent fiscal years.

During QNB’s two most recent fiscal years, QNB has not consiilted with Snodgrass regarding any of the matters or events set forth in Irem 304 (a) (2) of
Regulation 5-K. : : '

QNB provided KPMG with a copy of the foregoing disclosures and requested that KPMG review such disclosures. KPMG provided 2 letter addressed to
the Sccuritics and Exchange Commission stating that they agrec with such statements.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Disclosure Controls and Procedures

QNB's principal exccutive officer and principal financial officer, after cvaluating, together with management, the cffectiveness of the design and operation
of QNB’s disclosure concrols and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) as of December 31, 2004, the end of the period
covered by this repori, have concluded that, as of such date, QINB’s disclosure concrols and procedures were adequate and effective to ensure thar material
information relating to QNB and our consolidated subsidiaries would be made known to chem by others within those endities.

QNB expects to conclude its testing and evaluation of internal controls ver financial reporting and management’s assessment of such control prior to filing
its amended annual reporc on Form 10-K/A with the 45-day period provided by the exemprive order issued by the Securities and Exchange Commission

on November 30, 2004. The Form 10-K/A will include a management report and audicor report on the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting,

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in'QNB’s internal control over financial reporting that oceurred during the fourth quarter of 2004 thac have materially affected, or
are reasonably likely to materially affect, QNB's internal control over financial reporting,

ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION

None.
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SRS o PART IiI

i

ITEM 10.  DIRECT ORS AND ]EXECUTWE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT

The mformauon required by Item 10 is: mcorporatcd by reference to information appearing in QNB Corp.’s definitive proxy statement to be used in
conncction with the 2005 Annual Mceting of Sharcholdcrs under the captions
“Election of Directors”
“Governance of, the Company”
“Section 1G(a) Beneficial Owncrshlp Compliance”
“Mcc:mgs and. Commlttecs of the Board of Directors of QNB and the Bank”
“Executive Oﬂ’xgcrs of QNB and/or the Bank”

-

ITEM 11.  EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by Trem 11 is incorporaced by reference to the information appearing in QNB Corp.’s definitive proxy statement to be used in
connection with the 2005 Annual Meeting of Shareholders under the captions
“Compcnsation of the Board of Dircctors”
“Executive Compcnsanon
Compensanon Committee lntcrlocks and Insider Pamcxpauon
“Stock Performance Graph”

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OFﬂCERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The information required by Irem 12 is incorporated by reference to the information appearing in QNB Corp.’s definitive proxy statement to be used in
connection with the 2005 Annual Meeting of Sharcholders under the captions
. ‘fSccurityAOwncrs;bép:o_f_M_anagcmcn:"

* “Equity Compensation, Plan Information”

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AN D RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The information required by Itcm l.’) is mcorpomtcd by reference to the information appearing under the. caption "Certain Relationships and Related

Party Transactions” in QNB Corp‘::s definitive proxy statement to be used in connection with the 2005 Annual Meeting of Shareholders.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING FEES AND SERVICES
The information required by Irem 14 is incocporated by reference to the information appearing in QNB Corp.’s definitive proxy statement to be used in
connection with che 2005 Annual Meeting of Shareholders. under the captions :
* “Audic Committee Pre-Approval of Audit and Permissible Non-Audit Services of Independenc Audicors”
* “Audit Fees, Audit Relzted Fccs,‘Tax Fees, and All Ocher Fees”




PART IV

ITEM 15.  EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a) 1. Financial Statements
The following financial statements are included by reference in Pact [1, Teem 8 hereof.

Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm's Report
Consolidated Balance Sheets
Consolidated Statements of Income
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Sharcholders’ Equity
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Financial Seatement Schedules

The financial statement schedules required by this ltem are omitted because the information is either inapplicable, not required or is in the
consolidated financial statements as a part of this Report.

3. The following exhibits are incorporated by reference herein or annexed to this Form 10-K:

3(i)- Articles of Incorporation of Registrant, as amended. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3(i) of Registranc’s Form 10-K filed with the
Commission on March 30, 2004.)

3(ii)- By-laws of Registrant, as amended. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3(ii) of Registrant’s Form 10-K filed with the Commission on
March 30, 2004.)

10.1- Employment Agreement between the Registrant and Thomas J. Bisko. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibic 10.1 of Registranc’s Form
10-Q filed with the Commission on November 15, 2004.)

10.2-  Salary Continuation Agreement between the Registrant and Thomas J. Bisko. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibir 10.2 of
Registrant’s Form 10-Q filed with che Commission on November 15, 2004.)

10.3- QNB Corp. 1998 Stock Incentive Plan. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to Registration Statement No. 333-91201 on Form
§-8, filed with the Commission on November 18, 1999,)

10.4- The Quakertown National Bank Retirement Savings Plan. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of Registrant’s Form 10-Q filed
wich the Commission on Augusc 14, 2003.)

10.5- Change of Control Agreement between Registrant and Robert C. Werner. (Incorporated by reference ta Exhibit 10.7 of Registrant’s
Form 10-Q filed with the Commission on November 13, 2000.)

10.6-  Change of Control Agreement berween Regiscrant and Bret H. Krevolin. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 of Registrant’s
Form 10-Q filed with the Commission on November 13, 2000.)

10.7- QNB Corp. 2001 Employee Stock Purchase Plan. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibic 99.1 to Registration Statement No. 333-
67588 on Form $-8, filed with the Commission on August 15, 2001).
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11-  Statement re: Computation of Earnings pec Share as found on page 45 of Form 10-K, which is included herein.
12- Statement re: Compu:atioﬁ of Ratios as found on page 10 of Form .10-K, which is included herein, . ..

14- R:gistrani’s Code of Ethics. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 14 of Registrant’s Form 10-K filed with the Com;ni.:ssio‘rx on March 30, 2004.)
21- Subsidiaris of the Registranc e

23.1- Consent of S.R. Snodgrass, A.C., Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

23.2- Consent of KPMG LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
31.1- Rule 132-14(2)/15d-14(a) Certification of the CEO. .
31.2- Rule 13a-14(2)/15d-14(a) Certification of the CFO.

32.1-  §1350 Certification of Prinicipal Execucive Officer.

32.2- §'1350_Ccriiﬁbiiiﬁn'of [’:in'cipa!'Financiaf Officer. © 7+




SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Sccurities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registranc has duly caused
this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunco duly auchorized.

QNB Corp.
March 15, 2005
BY: /s/ Thomas], Bisko
Thomas J. Bisko
President and
Chief Executive Officer

Pursuanc to the requirements of the Securities Ex;:hangc Act of 1934, chis repore is signed below by the following persons on
behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicaced.

{s/ Thomas ], Bisko President, Chief Executive March 15, 2005
Thomas J. Biske Officer and Director
s/ Robert C, Werner Vice President March 15, 2005
Robert C. Werner )
Is! Bret H. Krevolin Chief Financial Officer March 153, 2005
Bret H. Krevolin and Principal Accounting Officer
fs/ Norman L. Baringer Director March 15, 2005
Norman L. Baringer
/s Kennech E Brown Ig Director Ma.rch 15, 2005
Kenneth F. Brown Jr.
/s/ Deanis Helf Director, Chairman Match 15, 2005
Dennis Helf
1s/ G, Arden Link Direcror March 15, 2005
G. Arden Link
Director

Charles M. Meredich, 111

[s/ Anpa Mae Papseo Director March 15, 2005
Anna Mae Papso

{3/ Gary S. Parzych Direcror ‘March 15, 2005
Gary S. Parzych

Ls/ Henry L. Rosenberger Dircector ‘ March 15, 2005
Henry L. Rosenberger

[s/ Edgar L, Stauffer Director March 15, 2005
Edgar L. Stauffer
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:Exhibit 23.1

Consent of S.R. Snodgrass, A.C., Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors
QNB Corp.:

We consent to incorporation by reference in the registration statemencs (Nos. 333-91201 and 333-67588) of QINB Corp. on Form $-8 of our report dated

March 3, 2005, on QNB Corp.’s consolidated financial stacements appearing in the annual report on Form 10-K of QINB Cosp. for the year ended December
31, 2004. : ‘ s . :

ML Strdprass, a.C.

Wexford, Pennsylvania
March 10, 2005
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. Exhibic 23.2
Consent of KPMG ELD, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Dicectors
QNB Corp.:

We consent to the incorporation by teférence in the fegistration statements (Nos. 333-91201 and 333-67588) on Forms $-8 of QNB Corp. of our report
dated Febritary 20, 2004, with:respecc 10 che consolidared balance sheets'of QNB Corp. as of December 31, 2003, and the related consolidated scatements
of income, sharcholders’ equity, and cash flows, for each of the years in the two-year period ended Deceraber 31, 2003, which report appears in the -
December 31, 2004, annual report on Form 10-K of QNB Corp.

KPMer P
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
March 14, 2005 ‘




Exhibit 31.1
CERTIFICATION

I, Thomas J. Bisko, President and CEQ, certify, that:
1. I have reviewed this annual report on Form 10-K of QNB Corp.

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material face or omit co state 2 material face
necessary to make the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect
to the period covered by this annual report.

3. Based on my knowledge, che financial statements, and other financial information included in this repor, fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the Registrant as of, and for, the periods presenced in this report.

. 4. The Registrant’s other certifying officer and [ are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(¢)) for the Registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
supetvision, to ensure that material information relating to the Registrant, including its consolidared subsidiarics, is made known to

us by others within those entiries, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

(b) [Reserved)

{c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the Registranc’s disclosure concrols and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about
the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such
evaluation; and

{d) Disclosed in this report any change in the Registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the Registrant’s
most recent fiscal quarter that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Registrant’s internal control
over financial reporting; and

5. The Registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our mest recent evaluation of internal contro!l over financial reporting,
to the Registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of Registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a) All significant deficiencies and marcerial weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are

reasonably likely to adversely affect the Registrant’s ability to'record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(d) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other emplayees who have a significanc role in the Registrant’s
internal control over financial reporting.

Date: r 00 By: /s/ Thomas J. Bisko
Thomas J. Bisko
President and CEQ
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Exhibic 31:2
CERTIFICATION
1, Bret H Krevolin, Chief Financial Oﬁcer, certify, that:
1. 1 have reviewed this mnugl rcportt‘ c;n Fo;xn 10-K of QNB Corp.

2. Based on my knowledge, this.report does nor contain any untrue statement of 2 material fact or omit to state-a material fact necessary to make
- .- the statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period
- covered by this annual report.

.:13: Based on my, knov-il:lcdgc. the financial statéments, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects
_ the financial condition; r;s'uks of operations and cash flows of the Registranc as of, and for, the periods presented in this report.

s« .- 4. The Registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined
in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(¢) and 15d-15(e)) for.the Registrant and have:! :

{a) .Designed such: disclosure controls and procedures, or. caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our
cnai . .. ... supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the Registrant, including its consolidatéd subsidiaries, is made known to
us by-others. within those entities, particulacly during the' period in which this repore is being prepared;

(b} [R:sc;vcd]

.-(c)-Evaluated. the effectiveness of the, Registrant’s-disclosure controls-and-procedures and presented in this report our conclusions
* .abouc the effectiveness of the.disclosure controls and procedures, a5 of the end of the period covered by this report based on such
evaluation; and ) C o

... (d) Disclosed-in chis:report any. change in the Registranc’s internal control over-financial reporting that.occurred during the Registrant's
mosg recent fiscal quarcer chat has materially affected, or-is-icasonably likely to macerially affect, the Registrant’s inteenal control
over financial reporting; and

.~ 5. The Registrant’s other cercifyingofficer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control.over financial reporting,

- .» 1o the Registrantsauditors’and the:audic commitee of Registranc’s board of directors {or persons performing the equivalent functions):

22 -+ f(a) Allsignificane deficiencies and material weaknesses-in .che design-or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are

wote s reasonablylikely to adyerscly: affect the Registrand’s ability to record, process, summarize and report. financial information; and

wee w4 - o (b)-Any fraud, whether.or not material, thac involves management or other employees-who have a significant role in the Registrant’s

internal control over financial reporting.

Date: Mach | - . st Byrt fsf Breg H, Krevolin L )
‘ : SRR TR Bret H. Krevolin
DT e s Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADDED BY
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

 In connection. with the Anaual Report on Form 10-K of QNB Corp. (the “Corporation”) for the period ended December 31, 2004, as filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Report™), I, Thomas ]. Bisko, President and CEO, of the Corporation, certify, pursuant 1018 U.S.C.
§1350, as added by.§.906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that chis periodic report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15 {(d) of

the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and that information contained in this report fairly presents, in all material repsects, the financial condition and resules
of operations of the issuer.

Date: March 15. 2005 -~ .. By .[s/ThomasL Bisko

Thomas J. Bisko
Presidenc and CEOQ
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Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350
AS ADDED BY
SECTION:906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report on férin’ 10-K of QNB Corp. (the “Corporation”) for the period ended December 31, 2004, as filed
with the Secirities and Exchange' Commission (tic “Report”), 1, Bret H.Krevolin, Chief Financial Officer, of the Corporation, ceitify, pursuant to 18
U.S.C. §1350, as added by § 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that this periodic report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15

(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and thar'information concained iri this report fairly presenits, in alf material repsects, the financial condition and
results of operations of the issuer. :

Date:  March 15,2005 . - By: (s/BretH. Krevolin

Bret H. Krevolin
Chief Financial Officer
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P.Q. Box 9005

Quakertown, PA 18951-9005
TEL (215)538-5600

FAX (215)538-5765

April 18, 2005

Dear Shareholder:

The 2005 Annual Meeting of Shareholders of QNB Corp. will be held at the offices of The
Quakertown National Bank, 320 West Broad Street, Quakertown, Pennsylvania 18951 con Tuesday,

May 17, 2005, at 11:00 a.m., local time. Notice of the annual meeting, QNB's proxy statement,
proxy card and 2004 annual report are enclosed.

At this year's annual meeting, you are being asked to 1) elect four Class II directors and 2) approve
certain amendments to the Corporation’s Articles of Incorporation and 3) approve the 2005 Stock

Incentive Plan. The proposals are fully described in the accompanying proxy statement, which you
are urged to read carefully.

YOUR BOARD OF DIRECTORS HAS UNANIMOUSLY ENDORSED THE NOMINEES
FOR ELECTION. WE RECOMMEND THAT YOU VOTE "FOR" ALL FOUR
NOMINEES, AND “FOR” THE ADOPTION OF THE AMENDMENT OF THE

CORPORATION’S ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION , AND “FOR” THE ADOPTION
OF THE STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN,

YOUR VOTE 1S IMPORTANT. Whether or not you plan to attend the meeting in person, please
mark, date and sign the enclosed proxy card and return it in the envelope provided.

If you have any questions with regard to the annual meeting, please contact Jean Scholl at (215)
538-5600, extension 5719.

Thank you for your cooperation and continuing support.

Toneo § Aok

Thomas J. Bisko
President and
Chief Executive Officer







NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

QNB CORP.

TO BE HELD ON MAY 17, 2005

Notice is hereby given that the 2005 Annual Meeting of Shareholders of QNB Corp. will be held
at the offices of The Quakertown National Bank, 320 West Broad Street, Quakertown, Pennsylvania
18951, on Tuesday, May 17, 2005 at 11:00 a.m., local time, for the following purposes:

N To elect four Class II directors; and
2) To approve certain amendments to the Corporation’s Articles of Incorporation; and
3) To approve the 2005 Stock Incentive Plan; and

(4) To transact any other business properly presented at the annual meeting or any
adjournment(s) or postponement(s) of the meeting.

The Board of Directors fixed the close of business on April 1, 2005 as the record date for the
purpose of determining those shareholders entitled to notice of, and to vote at, the annual meeting, either
in person or by proxy.

All shareholders are cordially invited to attend the annual meeting. Whether or not you plan to
attend the annual meeting, you are requested to mark, date, sign, and mail the enclosed proxy in the
envelope supplied, as soon as possible. At any time prior to the proxy being voted, it is revocable by
written notice to QNB in accordance with the instructions set forth in the enclosed proxy statement,
including by voting at the meeting in person. If you attend the annual meeting, you may withdraw your
proxy before it is voted and then vote your shares in person.

By Order of the Board of Directors,

(S tesmet

Charles M. Meredith, 111
Secretary

Quakertown, Pennsylvania
April 18, 2005







QNB Corp.
15 North Third Street
P.O. Box 9005
Quakertown, Pennsylvania 18951
(215) 538-5600

PROXY STATEMENT

2005 ANNUAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS - MAY 17, 2005

This proxy statement is being furnished to holders of the common stock, par value $0.625 per share, of
QNB Corp. in connection with the solicitation of proxies by the Board of Directors for use at the 2005 Annual
Meeting of Shareholders. The annual meeting will be held at the offices of The Quakertown National Bank at 320
West Broad Street, Quakertown, Pennsylvania 18951, on May 17, 2005 at 11:00 a.m,, local time.

As of the date of this proxy statement, the Board of Directors knows of no business that will be presented
for consideration at the annual meeting other than that referred to in the accompanying Notice of Annual Meeting
and described in this proxy statement. As to other business, if any, properly presented at the annual meeting,
executed proxies will be voted in accordance with the judgment of the person or persons voting the proxy or the
recommendation of the Board of Directors.

The cost of solicitation of proxies will be paid by QNB. QNB will reimburse brokerage firms and other
custodians, nominees, and fiduciaries for reasonable expenses incurred by them in sending proxy materials to the
beneficial owners of QNB’s common stock. In addition to solicitations by mail, directors, officers, and employees
of QNB and the Bank may solicit proxies personally, by telephone or other electronic means without additional
compensation.

These proxy materials are first being mailed to shareholders on or about April 18, 2005,

Date, Time and Place of Meeting

The annual meeting will be held on Tuesday, May 17, 2005 at 11:00 a.m., local time, at the Bank’s offices
at 320 West Broad Street, Quakertown, Pennsylvania 18951.

Outstanding Securities; Quorum; Voting Rights; and Record Date

The close of business on April 1, 2005 was fixed as the record date for the purpose of determining those
shareholders entitied to notice of, and to vote at, the annual meeting and any adjournments or postponements of
the meeting. As of the close of business on the record date, QNB had issued and outstanding 3,100,302 shares of
common stock.

Shareholders are entitled to one vote for each share of common stock held of record on the record date with
respect to each matter to be voted on at the annual meeting.

The presence, in person or by proxy, of the holders of a majority of the outstanding shares of the common
stock on the record date is necessary to constitute a quorum at the annual meeting.

QNB’s Bylaws and Pennsylvania law govern the vote needed to approve the proposals. Directors are
elected by a plurality of the total votes cast. The affirmative vote of a majority of the votes cast must approve the
amendment and restatement of the Corporation’s Articles of Incorporation and the 2005 Stock Incentive Plan,




Broker non-votes, votes withheld and abstentions will be counted for purposes of determining whether a
quorum has been reached. Because abstentions will be included in tabulations of the votes entitled to vote for
purposes of determining whether a proposal has been approved, abstentions have the same effect as negative
votes. Broker non-votes, however, are not counted as shares present:and entitled to be voted with respect to the
matters which the broker has not expressly voted. A broker “non-vote” occurs when a nominee holding shares for
a beneficial owner does not vote on a particular proposal because the nominee does not have the discretionary
voting power with respect to that item and has not received instructions from the beneficial owner. Broker non-
votes are not counted in determining whether the afﬁrmatwe vote requrred for the approval of Proposals 1, 2 and 3
has been cast. . © o

- Solicitation of Proxie‘s;c

The ‘Board of Ditectors is'soliciting proxies for use at QNB’s2005 Annual Meeting of Shareholders.
b oL u'/v'."ysilt'-“"‘ - AT R S BN T

W : b AT e
Voting and Revocablllty of Proxnes

Shares-of common stock repreSented by properly executed proxies will, unless the proxies have previously
been revoked, be voted.in accordance with the instructions indicated on the proxies. If no instructions are
indicated on:the proxies! the shares will be voted FOR the election ‘of QNB’s nominees to the Board of Directors,
and FOR the:adoption of the proposed amendments to the Corporation’s Articles of Incorporation, and FOR the .
adoption of the proposed 2005 Stock Incentive Plan. The Board of Directors.does not anticipate that any matters
will be presented-at the annual meeting other than as set forth in the accompanying Notice of Annual Meeting. In
the event that any.other:matters are properly presented at the annual meeting, proxies will be voted at the
drscrctlon of the proxy‘holders as'to such matters upon-the recommendatlon of the Board of Directors. .

| . PSR (T A

A shareholder who executes and retums a.proxy has the power to revoke it at any time before it is voted by
delivering to Mr. Charles M. Meredith, 111, Secretary of QNB, at the offices of QNB, at the address indicated on
the previous page, either a written notice of the revocation or a duly executed ]ater—dated proxy, or by attending

the annual meeting and.voting in:person after giving notice of the:revocation.”
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SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF MANAGEMENT

The following table sets forth, as of April 1, 2005, the number of shares of common stock, par value $.0625
per share, beneficially owned by each current director and nominee for director, by each executive officer, and by
all directors, nominees and executive officers of QNB and the Bank, as a group. Unless otherwise indicated,
shares are held individually. The address for each person is 320 West Broad Street, P.0. Box 9005, Quakertown,
Pennsylvania 18951.

Amount and Nature of Percentage of
Name of Beneficial Owner Beneficial Ownership (1) Class (2) (3)
Norman L. Baringer, Director 14,100 (4) *
Thomas J. Bisko, Director 48,078 (5) 1.47%
President/Chief Executive Officer (Corp. and Bank)
Kenneth F. Brown, Jr., Director 140,120 (6) 4.29%
Heather J. Gossler, Senior Vice President/ ‘,16,81 5 () l *
Sales and Branch Administration (Bank)
Dennis Helf, Director/Chairman of the Board 15,422 (& *
Bret H. Krevolin, Executive Vice President/ 31,055 %) *
Chief Financial Officer (Bank) '
Chief Financial Officer (Corp.)
Bryan S. Lebo, Senior Vice President/Senior 29,152 (10) *
Lending Officer (Bank)
G. Arden Link, Director 7,600 (11) *
Charles M. Meredith III, Director 81,644 (12) 2.50%
Scott G. Orzehoski, Senior Vice President/ 16,951 (13) *
Commercial Lending (Bank)
Anna Mae Papso, Director 1,000 *
Gary S. Parzych, Director 8,709 (14) *
Henry L. Rosenberger, Director 33,872 (15) 1.04%
Mary Ann Smith, Senior Vice President/ 34,879 (16) 1.07%
Chief Information Officer (Bank)
Edgar L. Stauffer, Director 100,462 (17) 3.08%
Robert C. Werner, Executive Vice President/ 33,382 (18) 1.02%
Chief Operating Officer (Bank)
Vice President (Corp.)
Current Directors, Nominee
& Executive Officers ,
as a Group (16 persons) 613,241 18.78%

* Less than 1.00%
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The securities "beneficially owned" by an individual are determined in accordance with the definitions of
"beneficial ownership" set forth in the General Rules and Regulations of the Securities and Exchange
Commission and may include securities owned by or for the individual's spouse and minor children and

. any other relative who has the same home, as well as securities that the individual has, or shares, voting
. or investment power or-has the right to acquire beneficial ownership within 60 days after April 1, 2005.

Beneficialiownership may be disclaimed as to certain of the securities.
Numbers are rounded-off to the nearest one-hundredth percent.

Includes 95 212 1mmed1ate1y exermsable options in the aggregate and 70,300 options in the aggregate that
become exercisable over time or that could be exercisable immediately upon a change of control of QNB
by the named executive officers; thus, the percentages calculation is based upon an aggregate of
3,265,814 shares outstanding.

Includes 6,028 shares owned jointly by Mr. Baringer"Witi:n his wife, Nancy, and 3,320 shares held in her
individual capacity.

Includes 15,290 shares owned jointly by Mr. Bisko with his wife, Barbara, and 16,416 exercisable options
and 11,800 options that become exercisable over time awarded under the Stock Incentive Plan

Includes 138,356 shares owned jointly by Mr. Brown with his wife, Pamela.

Includes 1,273 shares owned jointly by Ms. Gossler with her husband, Barry; and 7,566 exercisable
options and 7,900 options that become exercisable over time awarded under the Stock Incentive Plan.

Includes 13,658 shares owned jointly by Mr. Helf with his wife, Mary.

Includes 4,389 shares owned _|omt1y by Mr. Krevolin with his wife, Susan, and 15,516 exercxsab\e opnons and
10,750 options that become exercisable over time awarded under the Stock Incentive Plan.

Includes 1,914 shares owned jointly by Mr. Lebo with his wife, Elaine, and 15,916 exercisable options -
and 10,600 options that become exercisable over time awarded under the Stock Incentive Plan.

Includes 800 shares owned jointly by Mr. Link with his wife, Dorothy.

Includes 11,112 shares owned jointly by Mr. Meredith with his wife, Elizabeth; 5,030 shares held in her
individual capacity; and 3,738 shares held of record by Franklin & Meredith, Inc.

Includes 7,566 exercisable options and 7,900 options that become exercisable over time awarded under
the Stock Incentive Plan.

Includes 2:438 shares owned by Mr. Parzych’s wife, Karen, and 2,559 shares held of record by Eugene T.
Parzych, Inc.

Includes 6,296 shares owned by Mr. Rosenberger’s wife, Charlotte.

Includes 1,788 shares owned jointly by Ms. Smith with her husband, Randall, and 15,916 exercisable
opnons and 10,600 options that become exercisable over time awarded under the Stock Incentwe Plan.

Includes 65,034 shares owned jointly by Mr. Stanffer with his wife, Mary Blake, and 10, 664 shares held
in her individual capacity.

Includes 6,716 shares owned jointly by Mr, Wemer with his wife, Judith, and 15,916 'exéfcisabl_q options and
10,750 options that become exercisable over time awarded under the Stock Incentive Plan.




BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP OF SECURITIES

On April 1, 2005, 3,100,302 shares of common stock, par value $0.625 per share were issued, outstanding
and entitled to vote. The following table sets forth the names of persons who, directly or indirectly, are known to
QNB’s management to be the beneficial owners (as determined in accordance with Rule 13d-3 under the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934), of at least 5% of QNB's outstanding common stock as of April 1, 2005,

Name and Address of Number of Shares Percentage of

Beneficial Owner Owned (1) ' Class (2)
James C, Ebbert 259,368 8.37%

303 Edgemont Avenue
Quakertown, PA 18951

(1) The securities "beneficially owned” by an individual are determined in accordance with the definitions of "beneficial
ownership” set forth in the General Rules and Regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and may include
securities owned by or for the individual's spouse and minor children and any other relative who has the same home, as well
as securities to which the individual has, or shares, voting or investment power or has the right to acquire beneficial
ownership within 60 days after April 1, 2005. Beneficial ownership may be disclaimed as to certain of the securities.

(2) - Numbers are rounded off to the nearest one-hundredth percent.




PROPOSAL 1 .

. . ... . ELECTION OF DIRECTORS .

v
Pt

'The Board of Directors .

QNB’s Articles of Incorporation and Bylaws provide that the Board of Directors consists of ten members
divided into three classes, Class I, Class II, and Class 111, as nearly equal in number as possible. The four dlrectors
currently constituting Class 11 have been nominated for re-election at the annual meeting. Directors in Class nr.
and Class | w111 hold office until thc 2006 and 2007 annual meetings, respectively.

The Nominees S

At the annual meetmg, four dxrectors will be elected. Each director so elected will hold office until the 2008
Annual Meetmg of Shareholders and until his or her successor in office is duly qualified and elected.

To the extent given discretion, the persons named in the accompanying proxy intend to vote FOR each of
the nominees listed below. Each nominee has consented to being nominated as a director and, as far as the Board
of Directors and management‘of QNB are aware, will serve as a director if elected. In the event that any nominee
should decline to serve or be unable to serve, the persons named as proxies may vote for the election of such
person or persons as the Board of Dtrectors recommends

Set forth on the followmg page, with respect to each director and director nominee, is his or her name, age,
the time period served as a director and his other principal occupation(s) or employment and business affiliation(s)
at present and during the last five years.

Voting Requirements

The four director candidates are required to be elected by the affirmative vote of a majority of the
outstanding shares on the record date. Votes may be cast in favor or withheld for any or all of the nominees.

Abstentions and broker non-votes will neither be counted for nor against a nominee, but the shares

represented by any abstention or broker non-vote will be considered present at the annual meeting for quorum
purposes.

RECOMMENDATION

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS THAT EACH OF THESE NOMINEES
BE ELECTED AS A CLASS I DIRECTOR,




CURRENT CLASS II DIRECTORS AND NOMINEES FOR THREE YEAR TERM EXPIRING IN 2008

Kenneth F. Brown, Jr.

Age 49; President, McAdoo & A]len Inc. (manufacturer of pigment dispersions and high performance coatings),
Quakertown, PA from September 1989 to present; a Director of QNB and the Bank since 1993.

Anna Mae Papso

Age 61; Retired, West Pharmaceutical Services, Inc. (manufacturer of specialized pharmaceutical packaging &
medical device components), Lionville, PA-Corporate Vice President/Chief Financial Officer from 2000 to 2001
and prior thereto Vice President & Corporate Controller from 1989 to 2000; a Director of QNB and the Bank
since QOctober 2004. .

Henry L. Rosenberger

Age 59; President of Rosenberger Companies, Ltd. from 1998 to present; owns and operates Tussocks Edge
Farms, President, Dock Woods Community, Inc. (retirement community) from January 1978 to December 2002;
a Director of QNB and the Bank since 1984,

Edgar L. Stauffer
Age 67, Retired, Stauffer Manufacturing Corporation (manufacturer and impaorter of industrial work gloves and
safety equipment), Red Hill, PA; a Director of the Bank since 1983; a Director of QNB since 1984,

Contimjing Directors Serving Until 2006 (Class III Directors)

Dennis Helf

Age 58; Registered Investment Advisor from 1995 to present; a Director of the Bank since January 1996; a
Director of QNB since 1997.

G. Arden Link '
Age 65; Owner, Link Beverages, Inc.; a Director of the Bank since March 1997; a Director of QNB since
December 2001.

Thomas J. Bisko

Age 57, Chief Executive Officer of the Bank and QNB from March 1988 to present; President of the Bank from
September 1985 to present; Treasurer of QNB from February 1986 to present; President of QNB from May 1986
to present; a Director of the Bank since 1985; a Director of QNB since 1986.

Continuing Directors Serving Until 2007 (Class I Directors)

Gary 8. Parzych ‘

Age 49; President, Eugene T. Parzych, Inc. (construction company), Trumbauersville, PA from 1980 to present;
President, Finland Leasing Company, Inc. (real estate holding company), Trumbauersville, PA from June 1986
to present; Director of Quakertown Community School Board from January 1987 to present; a Director of QNB
and the Bank since 1995. ‘

Norman L. Baringer
Age 74; Retired, Baringer Assoc. Inc. (insurance, real estate brokerage), Quakertown, PA; a Director of QNB
and the Bank since 1992.

Charles M. Meredith, 111

Age 69; Newspaper Columnist; Co-owner, Franklin & Meredith Inc. (commercial publisher), Quakertown, PA;
Secretary of QNB and the Bank from April 1994 to present; a Director of the Bank since 1968; a Director of
QNB since 1984.




PROPOSAL 2

TO APPROVE AND ADOPT
AMENDMENT OF THE CORPORATION S ARTICLES OF lNCORPORATHON

The Board recently determined that it would be beneficial to the Corporation to undertake a general,
comprehensive review of the Corporation’s Articles and Bylaws in order to make sure that these charter
documents implerient’corporate governance practices that are endorsed by the Board, are not inconsistent with
orte another and-comport, on an overall basis, with the current corporate governance climate resulting from the
enactment of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002. As a result of this comprehensive review, the Board believes that it
is appropriate to amend and restate the Corporation’s Articles of Incorporation to delete from the Articles of
Incorporation topics that are more appropriately addressed in, and administered through the Corporatron s Bylaws
and:to also delete provrslons that'are extraneous .

. BTy . :

The Corporation’s Amcles of Incorporatron may not be amended wrthout shareholder approval. However,
the Board of Directors does not need shareholder approval to amend the Corporation’s Bylaws. Therefore,
removing topics from the Articles to the Bylaws effectively transfers power over these topics from the
shareholders to the'Board of Directors.: Thus, the Board of Directors could easily amend any provisions
transferred from:the Articles to the Bylaws whether ot not the shareholders supported such amendments. -
However, the shareholders have the power to amend the Bylaws and can, therefore by appropnate vote, undo any
action taken by the Board of Directors to amend the Bylaws. S

The amended and restated Amcles of Incorporahon are appended as Exhibit “A” to this proxy statement.

Progosals 2A 2D.

The Board of Directors proposes to delete Article VII of the Corporation’s Articles of Incorporation. The
proposed deletion affécts provisions dealing with: setting the nimber of directors, a requirement for directors to
own stock of the Corporation, staggered terms for board members and shareholder nomination procedures. The
Board of Directors has determined that the topics addressed in Article VII, which are described in more detail
below, are best reserved to, and administered through, the Bylaws and, therefore, the Corporation proposes to
delete Article VII.of the Articles of Incorporation. Following shareholder approval of the deletion of Article VII,
‘the Board of Directors intends to také action to amend the Bylaws to add the deleted topics of Article VII. A
separate proposal with respect to the amendment of each material provision of Article VII is set forth below. Each
of these proposals must be separatety voted on, and approved by, the shareholders

Proposal 2A: Delete the provmons of Article VII(A) which establish and provxde the mechamsm for
changing the number of d1rectors and address this toplc in the Bylaws.

Lot [ .
Proposal 2B:« ‘Deléte the' prowswns of Article VII(A) which establish a requirement that each director own
a minimum of 200 shares of common stock of the Corporation and address this toprc in'the Bylaws.

Proposal 2C: Delete Artlcle VII(B) which establishes a staggered board of directors and address this topic
in the Bylaws ‘ N o

Proposal 2D Delete Article VII(C) whlch sets forth certain requirements Wthh must be comphed with in
order to properly submit a nominee for election to the Board of Directors and address this topic m the
Bylaws. ' :

N b




Proposal 2E.

Article X111 of the Corporation’s Articles of Incorporation is proposed to be deleted. The Board of
Directors has determined that indemnification of officers and directors, which is provided for in Article X1II to the
fullest extent permitted by law, is best reserved to, and administered through, the Corporation’s Bylaws and,
therefore, the Corporation proposes to delete Article XIII of the Articles of Incorporation. Following shareholder
approval of the deletion of Article XIII; the Board of Directors intends to take acnon to amend the Bylaws to
provide for the indemnification of ofﬁcers and dlrectors in the Bylaws

Deletion of the mdemmﬂcanon of officers and dlrectors provisions from the Articles in favor of providing
for officer and director indemnification in the Corporation’s Bylaws will have the effect of permitting the Board
of Directors to more easily change this provision in the future because the Board of Directors does not need
shareholder approval to amend the Bylaws. Thus, the Board of Directars will be able to exercise considerably
more control over the indemnification obligations that the Cofporation has to the officers‘and directors of the
Corporation. Future Bylaws amendments adopted by the Board of Directors with respect to indemnification may
not be perceived by shareholders to be a positive change. However, the shareholders are entitled to amend the
Bylaws and can, therefore, by appropriate vote, undo any action taken by the Board of Directors to amend the
Bylaws.

Proposals 2F and 2G,

Article IX, which purports to cause certain anti-takeover provisions of Pennsylvania law to apply to the
Corporation, is proposed to be deleted because it references the application of a statutory provision that, by terms
of the statute, already applies to the Corporation and is, therefore, unnecessary. In addition, Article XI, which is a
list of the original incorporators of the Corporation, is similarly proposed to be deleted because, under
Pennsylvania law, it is not required to be included in a Corporation’s amended and restated Articles of
Incorporation.

Proposal 2F: Delete Article IX, whlch mcorporates certain anti-takeover provisions of Pennsylvania law, in
its entirety. o

Proposal 2G: Delete XI which hsts the ongma] mcorporators of the corporation, in its entirety.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS A VOTE “FOR” EACH OF THE
PROPOSALS SET FORTH ABOVE.




PROPOSAL 3

.. TO APPROVE AND ADOPT
2005 STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN

On March 15, 2005, the Board of Directors adopted the Corporation’s 2005 Stock Incentive Plan (the “Stock
Incentive Plan”) and reserved 200,000 shares of Common Stock for issuance under the Stock Incentive Plan, In
addition, the Board of Directors recommended the Stock Incentive Plan be submitted to shareholders for their approval
and adoption at the. 2005 Annual Meeting of. Shareholders

The purpose of the Stock lncentlve Plan is to advance the development, growth and financial condition of the
Corporation by prowdmg incentives through participation in the appreciation of capital stock of the Corporation in order
to secure, retain and motivate personnel responsible for the operation and management of the Corporation. The Stock
lncentlve Plan is desxgned to attract and retain individuals of outstanding ability as employees of the Corporation, to
encourage employees to acquire a proprietary interest in the Corporation, to continue their employment with the
Corporation and to render superior performance during such employment.

The principal features of the Stqek Incentive Plan are summarized below. This summary is qualiﬂevd in its
entirety by reference to the Stock Incentive Plan, which is appended as Exhibit “B” to this Proxy Statement.

The Stock Incentive Plan will be deemed effective as of the date the Stock Incentive Plan receives approval by
the shareholders, and will continue in effect until all awards under the Stock Incentive Plan either have lapsed, been
exerc:sed satisfied or, cancelled accordmg to the terms under the Stock Incentive Plan, or until March 15,2015 (10
years). The shares of stock that may be issued under the Stock Incentive Plan shall not exceed in aggregate 200,000
shares of the Common Stock, as may be adjusted from time to time due to stock splits, payments of stock dividends or
other changes in the structure of the Corporation’s capital.

The Stock Incentive Plan will be administered by a committee consisting of two or more non-employee directors
(the “Committee”) and, except as otherwise permitted by certain securities laws, who have not, during the year prior to
commencing service on the Committee have been, nor will, while a member of the Committee, be granted any awards
under the Stock Incentive Plan, or any other Stock Incentive Plan of the Corporation that provides for discretionary
grants or awards. There are approximately 10 persons eligible to receive awards under the Stock Incentive Plan. These
persons are senior officers and other management employees of the Corporation as determined by the Committee.

A new plan benefits table, as described in the federal proxy rules, is not provided because all awards made
‘under the Stock:Incentive Plan are discretionary. However, please refer to the tables “Summary Compensation
Table” and “Option/SAR Grants in Last Fiscal Year” on pages 17 and 18 of this proxy statement, which set forth
the grants made to the Corporation’s chief executive officer and the other four most hlghly compensated executive
officers in the last fiscal year.

" Awards

Awards made under the Stock Incentive Plan may be in the form of: (i) options to purchase stock intended to
qualify as incentive stock options under Sections 421 and 422 of the Code (referred to herein as “Incentive Options™); or
(i1) options which do not so qualify (referred to herein as “Non-Qualified Options”). Under the Stock Incentive Plan,
awards are exercisable during a participant’s lifetime only by the recipient and are not saleable, transferable or
assignable by the participant except by will or pursuant to applicable laws of descent and distribution. Generally,
awards may be exercised in whole or in part. Funds received by the Corporation from the exercise of any award shall
be used for its general corporate purposes. The Committee may permit an acceleration of previously established
exercise terms of any award as, when, under such facts and circumstances, and subject to such other or further
requirements and conditions as the Committee may deem necessary or appropniate, including, but not limited to, upon a
change in control of the Corporation (as defined in the Stock Incentive Plan).
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Qualified Options

Qualified Options may not be awarded under the Stock Incentive Plan more than ten (10) years after the earlier of
the date the Stock Incentive Plan is adopted by the Board of Directors or the date on which the Stock Incentive Plan is
approved by the shareholders. Qualified Options are only exercisable, at a minimum, beginning six months after the
date of the award and may not be exercised after the expiration of five (5) years from the date of the award. The
purchase price of the stock subject to any Qualified Option, as determined by the Committee, may not be less than the
stock’s fair market value (as defined in the Stock Incentive Plan) at the time the option is awarded or less than its par
value. If the recipient of a Qualified Option ceaseés to be employed by the Corporation, or subsidiary thereof, the
Committee may permit the recipient to exercise such option during its remaining term for a period of not more than
three (3) months. This period may be extended to a 12 month period if such employment cessation was due to
recipient’s disability, as defined in the Stock Incentive Plan. If a recipient ceases to be employed by the Corporation, or
a subsidiary thereof, due to his or her'death, the Committee may permit the recipient’s qualified personal representatives
or any persons who acquire the options pursuant to his or her will or the laws of the descent and distribution, to exercise -
such option during its remaining term for a period not to exceed 12 months after the rec1p1ent s death to the extent that
the option-was then and remains exerclsable ~

Non-Qualified Options e - : . '

Similar to Qualified Options, Non-Qualified Options are only exercisable, at a minimum, beginning of six (6)
months after the date of the award and may not be exercised after the expiration of five (5) years from the date of the
award. Ifa reclplent of a Non-Qualified Option ceases to be eligible under the Stock Incentive Plan before the opnon
lapses or before it is fully exercised, the Committee may permit the tecipient to exercise the option during its remaining
term to the extent that the option was then and remains exercisable, forsuch time period and under such terms and
conditions as may be prescribed by the Committee. The purchase price of a share of stock pursuant to a Non-Qualified
Option, as determined by the Committee, shall not be less than the stock’s fair market value (as defined in the Stock
Incentive Plan) at the time such option is awarded.

Federal Tax Consequences

An employee who receives the Qualified Options will not recognize taxable income on the grant or the exercise
of the option. If the stock acquired by the exercise of a Qualified Option is held until the later of: (i) two (2) years from
the date of the grant, and (ii) one (1) year from the date of exercise, any gain (or loss) recognized on the sale or
exchange of the stock will be treated as long-term capital gain (or loss), and the Corporation will not be entitled to any
income tax deduction. If stock acquired on exercise of a Qualified Option is sold or exchanged before the expiration of
the required holding period, the employee will recognize ordinary income in the year of disposition in an amount equal
to the difference between the option price and the lesser of the fair market value of the stock on the date of exercise, or
the selling price. In the event of a disqualifying disposition, the Corporation will be entitled to an income tax deduction
in the year of such disposition in an amount equal to the amount of ordinary income recognized by the employee.

An employee who receives a Non-Qualified Option will not recognize taxable income on the grant of the
option, however, upon the exercise, he or she will recognize ordinary income in an amount equal to the excess of
the fair market value of the stock on the date that the option is exercised over the purchase price paid for the stock.
The Corporation will be entitled to an income tax deduction in the year of exercise in an amount equal to the
amount of ordinary income recognized by the employee. Gain or loss on a subsequent sale or other disposition of
the shares acquired upon the exercise of a vested Non-Qualified Option will be measured by the difference
between the amount realized on the disposition and the tax basis of such shares, and will generally be long-term
capital gain or loss depending on the holding period involved. The tax basis of the shares acquired upon the
exercise of any Non-Qualified Option will be equal to the sum of the exercise price of such Non-Qualified Option
and the amount included in income with respect to such option. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event that
exercise of the option is permitted other than by cash payment of the exercise price, various special tax rules may
apply.

11




The foregoing tax discussion is intended as a summary only and the federal income tax consequences to any'
person who participated in the Stock Incentive Plan and to the Corporanon may vary from those described above,
dependmg upon individual actions and circumstances: = -

The Board of Drrectors may amend the Stock Incerm've Plan at any time without shareholder approval provided,
however, that the Board of Directors may not alter or impair any rights er obhgatrons under any award prev1ously
granted and subject to themequrrements under applicable 1aw ,

The Stock Incennve Plan will terminate upon the earlier of the- Board s adoptron of a resolution termmatmg the
Stock Incentive Plan or 10 years from-the date the Stock Incentive Plan is approved and adopted by the shareholders of-
the Corporatron S ;

" ‘, The Board of Drrectors recommends a vote F‘OR the followmg resolunon which will be presented at the Annual -
Meetmg :

- RESOLVED,that the 2005 Stock Incentive Plan, the text of which is set forth in full and in its
entirety in the Proxy Statement for the 2005 Annual Meeting of Shareholders, as Exhibit “B”, is hereby
approved, adopted ratified and confirmed by the shareholders of the Corporation

Proxies sohcrted by the Board of Directors will be voted for the foregomg resolution unless shareholders specify
" to the.contrary on therr proxres : ‘

1.

THE BOARD. OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS A VOTE “FOR” THE PROPOSAL TO
APPROVE THE 2005 STOCK INCEN TIVE PLAN. .




GOVERNANCE OF THE COMPANY

Our Board of Directors believes that the purpose of corporate governance is to ensure that we maximize
shareholder value in a2 manner consistent with legal requirements and the highest standards of integrity. The Board
has adopted and adheres to corporate governance practices which the Board and senior management believe
promote this purpose, are sound and represent best practices. We continually review these governance practices,
Pennsylvania law (the state in which we are incorporated), the rules and listing standards of the Nasdaq Stock
Market, and SEC regulations, as well as best practices suggested by recognized governance authorities.

Currently, our Board of Directors has 10 members. Under the rules adopted by the Securities and Exchange
Commission for independence, Norman L. Baringer, Dennis Helf, G. Arden Link, Charles M. Meredith, III, Anna Mae
Papso, Gary S. Parzych, Henry L. Rosenberger and Edgar L. Stauffer, meet the standards for independence. This
constitutes more than a majority of our Board of Directors.

Code of Ethics

We have adopted a Code of Ethics for directors, officers and employees of QNB. It is intended to
promote honest and ethical conduct, full and accurate reporting and compliance with laws as we]l as other matters.
A copy of the Code of Ethics is posted on our website at www. qnb com.

MEETINGS AND COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF QNB AND THE BANK

Set forth below is a list of each of our current board members and our current Board committee members.
The respective chairman of each of the Board committees is also noted below. Each current director of QNB is
also a current member of the Bank’s Board of Directors.

Board Member Board | Audit | Compensation | Executive Loan Nominating Trust

Norman L. Baringer X X X

Thomas J. Bisko X C

Kenneth F. Brown, Jr. X - X X C

Dennis Helf C X X C C

G. Arden Link X X , X

Charles M. Meredith, 111 X X X X

Anna Mae Papso X xX? :

Gary S. Parzych X X X

Henry L. Rosenberger X X X

Edgar L Stauffer X X C X X X
| Meetings Held in 2004 13 5 1 1 17 1

C — Chairman '

(1) Member of the Audit Committee until May, 2004.
(2) Member of the Audit Committee beginning October, 2004.
(3) Member of the Audit Committee beginning May, 2004.

Both QNB'’s and the Bank’s Board of Directors met 13 times in 2004. All current directors attended at least
75% of the aggregate of (1) the total number of meetings of the Board of Directors (held for the period for which
he or she has been a director) and (2) the total number of meetings held by all committees of the Board of
Directors on which he or she served (during the periods that he or she served).

QNB has no specific policy requiring directors to attend the Annual Meeting of Shareholders, however,
director attendance is strongly encouraged. All members of the Board of Directors were present at the 2004
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Annual Meeting of Shareholders. It is anticipated that all members of the Board of Directors will be attending the
2005 Annual Meetmg of Shareholders

RELTINN -! EREE S

QNB s Board of Drrectors estabhshed and mamtams the followmg commlttees among’ others
. S - A .

Audit Commlttee .The: Audrt Commrttee recommends the. engagement and dismissal of the mdependent
certified public accountants,:reviews their annual audit plan and the results of their auditing activities, and -
considers the range of audit-and non-audit-fees. It also reviews the general.audit plan, scope and results of QNB's:
procedures for internal auditing. The reports of examination of QNB and its subsidiary by state and federal bank
regulatory examiners are also reviewed by the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee also reviews all SEC
filings and earnings:press releases:.“The Audit Committee, consistent with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and
the rules adopted thereunder, meets with management and the auditors:prior to the filing of officers’ certifications
with the SEC to reccive‘inforrn:arion concerning, among other things, significant deficiencies in-the design or’
operation of intemal! controls.

The Board of Directors has determined that Anna Mae Papso meets the requirements adopted by the
Securities and Exchange Commission and Nasdaq Stock Market for qualification as an Audit Committee financial
expert. Ms. Papso has past employment experience as a Corporate Vice President/Chief Financial Officer
providing her:with diverse and progressive financial managementexperience, as well as expertise in internal
controls and U.S. accounting rules and SEC reporting. An Audit:Committee financial expertis defined as a
person who has the following attributes: (i} an understanding of generally accepted accounting principles and
financial statements; (ii) the ability to assess the general application of such principles in connection with the
accounting. for estimates, accruals. and reserves; (iiiy experience preparing, auditing, analyzing or evaluating
financial statements that present a breadth and level of complexity or accounting issues that are generally
comparablé to the’breadth and complexrty ofi issues that car reasonab]y be expected to be raised by the registrant’s
financial statements’or expérience ‘actively-supervising on€ or more persons engaged iri such activities; (iv) an "
understanding of internal controls and procedures for financial reporting; and (v) an understanding of Audit
Commlttee functions.. . .- - -

' Tt
i EE R S

. The 1dent1ﬁcanon of a person as an Audrt Commlttee ﬁnancral expert does not impose.on. such person any
- duties, obligations or liability that are: greater than those that are imposed on such person as a member of the Audit
‘Committee and the Board of Directors in the absence of such identification. Moreover, the identification of a -
person as an Audit Committee financial expert for purposes of the regulations of the Securities and Exchange -
Commission does not affect the duties, obligations or liability of any other member of the Audit Committee or the
Board of Dlrectors Addmonally, a person who is determined to be an Audrt Committee financial expert will not
be deemed an expert for purposes of Section 11 of the Securities Act of 1933.

The Bank also has a' standmg Audit Commmee which performs the same functions as QNB's Audlt
Committee. All members of both committees are non-executives and independent pursuant to the rules adopted by-
“the Securities and Exchange Commission and the corporate governance standards promulgated by the NASDAQ Stock
" Market. In détermining whether a director is indeperident for purposes of each of the above stated guidelines, the Board
of Directors must affirmatively determine that the directors on the Audit Committee do not, among other things, accept

any consulting, advisory, or other compensatory fee from QNB. Applymg these standards, the Board of Directors has
determined that all of the directors on the Audit Committee are independent. The members of QNB’s and the Bank's
Audit Committee are Directors Baringer, Meredith, Papso Rosenberger and Stauffer. The Audit Committee of
QNB and.the Bank,met ﬁve timesin2004. - . .

o .
Ty bt chair o

" The Audlt Commlttee operates. under a formal charter that govems 1ts duties and conduct The Audit
Commmee Charter is avarlable on our website at; www. qnb com..

o ’~.

The Audit Commlttee has also adopted a Whistleblower Policy to enable confidential and anonymous
repomng to.the Audn Commrttee -The policy is also avaﬂable on our website at www. qnb com.

14




Compensation Committee. The Compensation Committee's primary function is to review and determine
the compensation of present and proposed senior members of QNB’s management. In addition, the committee
reviews the general guidelines on compensation for all employees. The Board of Directors has determined that all of
the directors serving on the Compensation Committee are independent for the purposes of the rules adopted by the
Securities and Exchange Commission. The members of the Compensation Committee are Directors Baringer, Helf,
Meredith, Rosenberger, and Stauffer. The Compensation Committee met one time in 2004.

Executive Committee. The Executive Committee is authorized to exercise all of the authority of the Board
of Directors in the management of QNB between Board meetings, unless otherwise provided in QNB’s Bylaws.
The members of the Executive Committee are Directors Bisko, Brown, Helf, Meredith and Stauffer. The
Executive Committee met one time in 2004,

Board Loan Committee. The Board Loan Committee’s primary function is to review and approve loan
relationships where the total exposure exceeds certain designated thresholds. The members of the Board Loan
Committee are Directors Brown, Helf and Parzych. In the event they are unable to attend, altermnate directors are
requested to attend. The Board Loan Committee met 17 times in 2004.

Nominating Committee. The Board of Directors has determined that all of the directors serving on the
Nominating Commttee, except Director Brown, are independent for the purposes of the rules adopted by the Securities
and Exchange Commission and the corporate governance standards promulgated by the NASDAQ Stock Market. The
principal duties of the Nominating Committee include developing and recommending to the Board criteria for selecting
qualified director candidates, identifying individuals qualified to become Board members, evaluating and selecting, or
recommending to the Board, director nominees for each election of directors, considering committee member
qualifications, appointment and removal, recommending codes of conduct and codes of ethics applicable to the
Corporation and providing oversight in the evaluation of the Board and each committee. The Nominating Committee
has no formal process for considering director candidates recommended by shareholders, but its policy is to give due
consideration to any and all such candidates. If a shareholder wishes to recommend a director candidate, the
shareholder should mail the name, background and contact information for the candidate to the Nominating Committee
at the Corporation's offices at P.O. Box 9005, Quakertown, PA 18951. The Nominating Committee intends to develop
a process for identifying and evaluating all nominees for director, including any recommended by shareholders, and
minimum requirements for nomination. In addition, the Nominating Committee does not have a formal charter.
Members of the Nominating Commiittee include Directors Brown, Link, Rosenberger and Stauffer. The Nominating
Committee met one time in 2004.

Trust Committee. The Trust Committee’s responsibilities include the review of the operations,
investment selection and investment performance of The Trust Company of Lehigh Valley, as well as oversee the
activities of the Investment Center. The members of the Trust Committee are Directors Helf, Parzych and
Stauffer. The Trust Committee met five times in 2004,

COMPENSATION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Each director of QNB is also a member of the Bank’s Board of Directors. During 2004, directors, with the
exception of those who are full-time employees of QNB or the Bank, received an annual fee of $5,500. The
Chairman of the Board received additional compensation of $10,000 and the Corporate Secretary received an
additional $2,000. In addition, each director received a fee of $450 for each Bank Board meeting attended.
Directors are not reimbursed for QNB Board meetings. Members of the committees of the Board of Directors also
received $175 for each committee meeting attended, provided the committee meeting was not held as part of a
scheduled Board meeting.
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ot AUDIT COMMl'H‘TEE REPORT
K ' . N .‘ [ o r-’-“.'
Pursuant to rules adopted by the SEC destgned to imprdve drsclosures related to the functioning of
corporate audit committees and to enharice-the réliability and eredtbrhty of financial statements ofpublic
companies, QNB’s'Audit Commlttee submits the followmg report et

‘. Vo

Audlt Commlttee Regort to Board of Dlrector

The Audit Committee oversees QNB s financial‘reporting process on behalf of the Board of D]rectors In
that connection, the-committee, along with the Board of Directors, has formally ddopted an Audit Committee
Charter setting forth its responsibilities. In addition, appropriate policies have been established to further - -
strengthen dtsclosure procedures requxred under the Sarbanes Oxley Act of' 2002

,,,,,

including the systems of internal control.. In fulfilling its overs1ght responsibilities, the committee revrewed the
audited financial statements in the annual report with management, including a discussion of the quality; not just
the acceptabrhty, of the accounting pnncrples the reasonableness of srgmﬁcant judgments and the clanty of
dlsclosures in the ﬁnanmal statements ! ’ ¢ b

' In the dtscharge of its responsrbllitles, the Audit: Committee has réviewed and discussed the Corporation’s
'audited financial-statéments’ for fiscal 2004 with'manigement and the independent registered public accounting
firm. In addition, the Audit Committée has discussed with the mdependent registered pubhc accounting firm:
matters such as the quality (in"addition to acceptability); clarity,’ consistency, and completeness of the
Corporation’s finaicial reportmg, as requn'ed by U S Audmng ‘Standdrds Secnon AU380, Commumcanon wrth
Audlt Commlttees o ‘ e

. 3 ": . v o . ¢
The Audit Committee has considered the compatrbrhty of the provision of non-audit services with the
* independent registered public’ accountmg firm’s maintenance of" independence and has received from the
“independént registered public accountmg firm written disclosures and a letter concerning the independent:
registered public accounting firm’s independence from the Corporation, as tequired by Independence Standards'
Board Standard No. 1, Independénce Discussions with Audit Committees. These disclosures have been rev1ewed
by thé' Audit Comnittee and discussed with the indepeéndent registered public: accountmg f'mn

The committee discussed with QNB’s internal and independent registered pubhc accountmg firm the
overall scope and plans for their-respective audits.’ ‘The committee meets: with the internal and independent
* registered public’ accounnng firm; with and without management présent, to discuss the results of their
examinations, their evaluations of QNB’s internal controls and the overall quahty of QNB s ﬁnancral reportmg

In reliance on the reviews and discussion referred to above the committee recommended to the Board of
Directors (and the Board has approved) that the audlted financial statements be included in the Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December31, 2004, for filing with the Securities and Exchange Commission. The
committee and the Board of Directors have also approved the selecnon of S R. Snodgrass Al C as QNB s
mdependent regtstered pubhc accountmg firm for 2005 o

HoA . ¢

i, ."J

4 o IR S Respectful]y submrtted
L THE AUDIT COMMITTEE
St h S : IR ‘.L.\,J R
U TR I R AR ”HenryL Rosenberger Cha1rman
Norman L. Baringer
Charles M. Meredith, III
Anna Mae Papso

. | : Edgar L. Stauffer




Audit Committee Pre-Approval of Audit and Permissible Non-Audit Services of the Independent
Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Audit Committee has a policy for the pre-approval of services provided by the independent registered
public accounting firm. The policy requires the Audit Committee to pre-approve all audit and permissible non-
audit services provided by the independent registered public accounting firm. These services may include audit
services, audit related services, tax services, and.other services. Under the policy, pre-approval is generally
provided for up to one year and any pre-approval is detailed as to the particular service or category of services and
is subject to a specific budget. In addition, the Audit Committee may aiso pre-approve particular services on a
case by case basis. For each proposed service, the independent registered public accounting firm is required to
provide detailed back-up documentation at the time of approval. The Audit Committee has delegated to the
Chairman of the Audit Committee the authority to pre-approve services not prohibited by law to be performed by
our independent registered public accounting firm and associated fees up to a maximum for any one service of
$5,000. None of the services related to the Audit Related Fees, Tax Fees, or All Other Fees described below was
approved by the Audit Committee pursuant to the waiver of pre-approval provisions set forth in applicable rules of
the SEC.

Appointment of the Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm for 2004

On August 16, 2004, QNB Corp. (QNB) retained S.R. Snodgrass, A.C. (Snodgrass) as its new
independent accountants to audit QNB’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2004.
KPMG LLP (KPMG) was dismissed on August 16, 2004. The decision to change independent accountants was
recommended and approved by the Audit Committee of QNB.

During each of the fiscal years ended December 31, 2002 and 2003, none of KPMG’s reports on the
financial statements of QNB contained an adverse opinion or a disclaimer of opinion or was qualified or modified
as to uncertainty, audit scope or accounting principle and there were no disagreements between QNB and KPMG
on any matter of accounting principles and practices, fi nancial statement disclosure, or audit scope or procedure,
which disagreement, if not resolved to the satisfaction of KPMG would have caused it to make reference to the
subject matter of the disagreement in connection with its reports. There were no “reportable events” as that term
is defined in Item 304 (a) {1) (v) of Regulation S-K occurring within QNB in the two most recent fiscal years.

During QNB’s two most recent fiscal years, QNB has not consulted with Snodgrass regarding any of the
matters or events set forth in Item 304 (a) (2) of Regulation S-K.

Audit Fees, Audit Related Fees, Tax Fees, and All Other Fees

Aggregate fees billed to QNB by KPMG LLP and S.R. Snodgrass, A.C. for services rendered are
presented below. Fees for 2003 were all billed to QNB by KPMG. The total amount of fees billed by S.R.
Snodgrass, A.C. for 2004 was $86,025. The total amount of fees billed by KPMG LLP for 2004 was $62,050.

2004 2003
Audit fees $112,575 $88,800
Audit related fees 19,200 8,500
Audit and audit related fees 131,775 97,300
Tax fees 16,300 12,665
All other fees - -
Total fees $148,075 $109,965
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Audit Fees include fees billed for professional services rendered for the audit of annual financial
statement and fees billed for the review of financial statements included in QNB Forms 10-Q or services that are
normally provided in connection with statutory and regulatory ﬁlings or engagements. For 2004, billings from
S.R. Snodgrass, AC, were $79 525 and blllmgs from KPMG LLP were $33 050.

" A udzt Related F ees mciude fees bllled for assurance and related services that are reasonably related to the
performance of the audit of review of the registrants financial statements and are not reported under the Audit
Feés section-of the table above. These services inchide audits of financial statements of certain employee benefit
plans. For 2004 br]lmgs from S. R Snodgrass A.C. were $6 500 and brllmgs from KPMG LLP were $12,700.

Tax Fees mclude fees brlled for: professronal services rendered by KPMG LLP for tax consultation and
tax comphance services. oo .

"+ All Other Fees mclude fees billed for products and services other than the services reponed under the
Audit Fees, Audit Related Fees, or Tax Fees sections of the table above.

The Audit Committee has considered whether, and determined that, the provision of the non-audit
services is compatible with mamtammg the mdependence of KPMG LLP’s and S.R. Snodgrass, A.C.’s
independence.

v A representative of S'nodlgras’s is expected to be present at the Annual Meetir\g. The representative will
have an opportunity to make a statement and be available to respond to appropriate questions.

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

Since the formation of QNB in 1984, norie of its executive officers have received any separate compensation
from QNB. “All compensation is pald by the Bank. Thomas J. Bisko, Robert C. Wemer, and Bret H. Krevolin are
the' only executive officers of QNB that are also executive officers of the Bank. The following information is
furnished conceming the chief execunve officer and each of the most highly compensated named executive officers
of QNB or the Bank whose aggregate remuneratron from the Bank exceeded $100,000 during the fiscal years ended
December 31, 2004, 2002 and 20020




Summary Compensation Table

Annual Compensation Long-Term Compensation
Awards Pay-outs
Other Restricted All Other
Annual Stock Options/ Compen-
Salary Bonus Compen- Awards SARs Pay-outs sation

Name and Position Year ¢ (%) sation %) ()] %) 3)

Thomas J. Bisko 2004 $222,075 822,208 $0 $0 2,800 $0 $16,844 (2)
President and 2003 $218,082  $21,808 $0 $0 6,000 $0 $16,904 (2)
Chief Executive Officer 2002 $198,588 - $19,859 $0 $0 6,000 $0 $15,430 (2)
Robert C. Wemer 2004 $154,350  $15,435 $0 $0 2,500 $0 $12348 (3)
Executive Vice President 2003 $152,654  $15,265 $0 $0 5,500 30 $12,212 (3)
Chief Operating Officer 2002 $138,176 313,818 $0 30 5,500 $0 $11,054 (3)
Bret H. Krevolin 2004  $141,750  $14,175 $0 30 2,500 $0 $11,945 (4)
Executive Vice President 2003 $140,192 514,019 - %0 $0 5,500 50 $11,810 (4)
Chief Financial Officer 2002 $127,215  $12,722 $0 _ $0 5,500 $0 $10,782 (4)
Bryan S. Lebo 2004 $122,304  $12,230 $0 $0 2,500 S0 $10,38% (5)
Senior Vice President 2003  $121,538  $12,154 $0 $0 5,500 $0 $10,328 (5)
Senior Lending Officer 2002  $112,266  §$11,227 $0 30 5,500 $0 $9,586 (5)
Mary Ann Smith 2004 $118,398  $11,840 $0 - 80 2,500 $0 $10,077 (6)
Senior Vice President 2003 $118,223  $11,822 30 $0 5,500 $0 $10,063 (6)
Chief Information Officer 2002 $109,203 310,920 $0 - $0 5,500 $0 $9,341 (6)

(1)  Salary for 2003 includes 27 pay periods while salary for 2004 and 2002 includes 26 pay periods.

2) Includes the Bank's contributions on behalf of Mr. Bisko to the Retirement Savings Plan of $16,844, $16,904, and $15,4%0 for
2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

(3)  Includes the Bank's contributions on behalf of Mr. Werner to the Retirement Savmgs Plan of $12 348,812,212, and $11,054
for 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

(4)  Includes the Bank's contributions on behalf of Mr. Krevolin to the Retirement Savings Plan of $11,385, $11,260, and $10,222
for 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively and payments of $560 for each of the three years for declining coverage under the
bank’s health benefits plan. -

(5)  Includes the Bank's contributions on behalf of Mr. Lebo to the Retirement Savings Plan of $9,829, $9,768, and $9,026 for
2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively and payments of $560 for each of the three years for declining coverage under the bank’s
health benefits plan..

(6) {ncludes the Bank's contributions on behalf of Ms. Smith to the Retirement Savings Plan of $9,517, $9,503, and $8,781 for

2004, 2003, and 2002, respectively and payments of $560 for each of the three years for declining coverage under the bank’s
health benefits plan.

Stock Option Grants for 2004

The following table reflects grants of stock options to Mr. Bisko, Mr. Wemer, Mr. Krevolin, Mr. Lebo and Ms.
Smith in fiscal year 2004.
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OPTION/SAR GRANTS IN LAST FISCAL YEAR @

Potential
a0 % of Tetal o Realizable Value
ki e « .Options At Assumed
. Granted To ‘ Exercise Annual Rates of
Optlons Employees ’ Or Base . Stock Appreciation
U 'J’,;“;‘ ’ Granted ln Fiscal - ""Price o Expiration  For Option Term @
Name. .. _ ... (#) .. Year ($/Share) .  Date 5% 10%
o = : S - @ ®)
Thomas J. Bisko -+ 2,800 .14.0% . $3325  04/27/2014  $58,540  $148,346
.Robert.C. Wemer 12,500 12.5% 3 $3325  0427/2014  $52,268  $132,452
‘Bret H. Ktevolin . ** 2,500 T12.5%  $33:25° - 04/27/2014 352,268  $132,452
BryanS Lebo ., . 2'500 125% 83325 04272014 $52268  $132,452
Mary Ann Smlth 2 500 125%  $33. 25 041272014 $52,268  $132, 452

D TN
)] "Opnons granted were incentive. stock options pursuant to the 1998 Stock Opnon Plap. The opnons granted vest and become
%« exercisable after the third anmversary of their grant date.

(2) Inorderto reahze the potential value of the stock options, QNB’s comunon stock would be approximately $54.16 and $86.24 at a 5%
"1 and 10% appreciation rate, respectively. The dollar amounts under these columns are the result of calculations at the 5% and the 10%
" * annualized rates et by the Securities and Exchange Commission‘and therefore are not'intended to forecast possible future

appreciation, if any, of QNB'’s common stock price.
‘ by o T O
Aggi‘egate Optioh'Exiei'ciiﬁ‘es aiﬁd' 0p”tion Values
.The following table provides information as to stock options exercised by Mr. Bisko, Mr. Wemer, Mr. Krevolin,
Mr. Lebo and Ms. Smith in 2004 and the value of stock optxons held by each officer at year-end 2004 measured in terms
‘of the $32.50 closing bid price of QNB’s common stock on December 31 2004 Some stock optlons are 1mmed1ately
exercrsable whxle others become exermsable over nme : :
RS TN
AGGREGATED STOCK OPTION EXERCISES IN LAST FlSCAL YEAR
AND FISCAL YEAR—EN D STOCK OPTION VALUES

AN I it

TR

' Number of Securltles " Value of Unexercised

Shares ‘ Underlying Unexercised In-the-Money
7. F AcquiredOn 0 c Valuer .- Options at 12/31/04 ©. »  Options at 12/31/04
vttt o, 'Exereise - Realized - (Exercisable/Unexercisable) (Exercxsablernexerusab!e)

Name E # &)} # )

Thomas J. Bisko .0 ‘ 30 . 10,416/14,800 $188,760/$173,250
Robert C. Wemner -0 $0 10,416/13,500 © - 7$188,760/$158,813
Bret H: Krevolifi-< = 75077 T 80 T TR u0416/13,500 0 $188,760/$158,813
Bryan S.Lebo 0" $0 10,416/13,500 $188,760/$158,813
Mary Ann Smith 0 . $0 10,416/13,500 $188,760/$158,813
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Equity Compensation Plan Information

The following table summarizes our equity compensation plan information as of December 31, 2004.
Information is included for both equity compensation plans approved by QNB shareholders and equity
compensation plans not approved by QB shareholders.

Number of shares
: available for future
Number of shares | Weighted-average | issuance under equity
to be issued upon | exercise price of compensation plans
exercise of outstanding (excluding securities
outstanding options, | options, warrants | reflected in column
Plan Category warrants and rights | and rights (a))
: {a) (b) (©)
Equity compensation plans approved by ’
QNB Corp. shareholders
1998 Stock Option Plan 182,392 A $18.03 28,836
2001 Employee Stock Purchase Plan ‘ - - ) 30,888
Equity compensation plans not approved by
QNB Corp. shareholders
None - - -
Totals 182,392 '$18.03 59,724

Employment Agreements

On September 2, 1986, as amended on April 3, 2002, QNB and Mr. Bisko entered into an employment
agreement for a term of 27 years, commencing immediately and terminating on December 31, 2013 provided
however, that the employment agreement may be terminated by either party upon three years' prior written notice.
Under the terms of the employment agreement, Mr. Bisko is to be employed as the President of the Bank and to
render services as may be reasonably required of him from time to time by the Board of Directors. Mr. Bisko may
be discharged at any time for just and proper cause, except that, following a change of contrel of QNB (which is
defined as any one person or group obtaining voting control of 25% or more of QNB’s outstanding common
stock), Mr. Bisko's employment may only be terminated if he materially breaches his obligations under the
employment agreement, fails or refuses to comply with the proper and reasonable written policies of the Board of
Directors, or is convicted of a felony. If Mr. Bisko's employment is terminated for reasons other than, among
others, discharge for cause, a change in control of QNB, or death or disability, Mr. Bisko is entitled to receive a
lump sum severance payment equal to 2.99 times his then current base salary. If Mr. Bisko were terminated at the
minimum base salary of $234,845 as of January 1, 2005, he would be entitled to receive a maximum lump sum
payment equal to $702,187. Such 2 provision may be deemed to be "anti-takeover" in nature inasmuch as it may
discourage a potential acquiror who may desire to replace Mr. Bisko with a new president. In the event of Mr.
Bisko's death or disability, QNB shall pay either to Mr. Bisko, his estate, or his desigrated beneficiary, an amount
equal to his then current base salary in twelve equal monthly installments, which amounts may be reduced based
upon the receipt of any life or disability insurance proceeds from policies maintained by and at the expense of
QNB. ' o ‘
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Change of Control Agreements

.On July 18, 2000, QNB and the Bank entered into change of control agreements with Bret H. Krevolin,

“Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the Bank, and Robert C. Wemer, Executive Vice
President and Chief Operating Officer of the Bank. These agreements provide certain benefits to Mr. Krevolin
and Mr. Wemer in the event of a change of control of QNB or the Bank. The agreements become operative only
if Mr. Krevolin and Mr. Wemer are employees of QNB and the Bank upon a change in control of QNB or the
Bank, as defined in the agreement. The agreements specify payments to Mr. Krevolin and Mr. Wemer upon

- their termination.on or before the thiee year anniversary of the date of the change of control in an amount equal
to.the product of the average dggregate annual compensation paid by QNB and the Bank to the respective
‘executive which is includable in the executive’s gross income for Federal income tax purposes during the five
c¢alendar years preceding the taxable year in which the date of the termination occurs, multiplied by two.

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE REPORTS ON EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

QNB’s Board of Directors is responsible for the governance of QNB and its subsidiary. In fulfilling its
fiduciary duties, the Board of Directors acts in the best interests of QNB's shareholders, customers and the
communities served by QNB and its subsidiary. To accomplish QNB’s strategic goals and objectives, the Board of
Directors engages competent persons who undertake to accomplish these objectives with integrity and in a cost-
effective manner, The compensation of these individuals is part of the Board of Directors' fulfillment of its duties
to accomplish QN_B's strategic mission. '

The fundamental phllosophy of QNB's and the Bank's compensation program is to offer competitive
compensation opportunities for all employees based on the individual's contribution and personal performance.
The compensation program is administered by a compensation committee compnsed of five outside directors who
are listed below. The objective of the committee is to establish a fair compensation policy to govern all salaries in
order to attract and motivate competent, dedicated and ambitious employees whose efforts will enhance the
products and services of QNB, the results of which may include improved profitability, increased dividends to our
shareholders and subscquent appreciation in the market value of QNB shares. While general guidelines are
provided for all employees the compensanon commxttee makes specific recommendations for Mr. Bisko.

Mr. B1sko s compensanon is reviewed and approved annually by the Board of Directors. As a gmdelme for
’determmmg Mr. Bisko's salary, the committee reviews information provided by a human resource consultant,
engaged by the compensation committee, who compares salaries of Pennsylvania financial institutions operating
within QNB's general market area. The compensation committee focuses on the survey data for peer financial
institutions operatmg in Southeastern Pennsylvania. Pennsylvania peer group banks have been used because of
common mdustry 1ssues and competmon for the same executive talent group.

Chief Executive Officer Compensation

~ Mr. Bisko" s base salary is $234,845 for 2005, subject to an annual review and adjustment. Mr. Bisko's base
pay is determmed annually by, the compensatlon committee. In addition, Mr. Bisko is eligible to receive a cash
bonus, in each of the next two years equivalent to 5% to 10% of his salary based on QNB increasing its earmngs
per share at an average rate of 7.5% to 10%. The bonus percentage increases by 1% for each .5% increase in
earnings per share up to a maximum of 10%. For 2004, Mr. Bisko received a bonus of $22,208 for the successful
achievement of the plan.

The Bank provides Mr. Bisko, for the benefit of his named beneficiary, with a salary continuation
agreement. In the event of Mr, Bisko's death, the agreement provides his beneficiary with monthly income for 180
consecutive months. The agreement is enforceable only while Mr. Bisko remains employed by the Bank. If Mr.
Bisko's employment is termirated for any reason other than death, all rights under the agreement will be




terminated. The benefits are funded through an insurance policy with the cost limited to the annual premium on
the policy. Mr. Bisko is also reimbursed for all reasonable and necessary expenses related to his duties.

The Bank provides Mr. Bisko with a membership to a country club. Mr. Bisko is also reimbursed for the
cost of all business related meals at the club. Mr. Bisko is not reimbursed for any personal meals at the country
club.

Respectfully submitted,
THE COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

Edgar L. Stauffer, Chairman
Norman L. Baringer

Henry L. Rosenberger
Charles M. Meredith, T11
Dennis Helf

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE INTERLOCKS AND INSIDER PART[CIPATION

The Compensation Committee makes recommendation to the Board of Dlrectors concerning general
guidelines on compensation of employees and specific recommendations for Mr. Bisko. The Compensation
Committee is composed entirely of the following five independent outside directors: Messrs. Stauffer, Baringer,
Rosenberger, Meredith and Helf. No member of the Compensation Committee during fiscal year 2004 'was an
officer or employeé of the Corporatich or-aiiy of its subsidiaries or was formerly an officer of the Corporation or
any of its subsidiaries. No member of the Compensation Committee had any relationship requiring disclosure by
the Corporation under the proxy rules promulgated under the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934,

STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN

QNB maintains a stock option plan, the 1998 Plan, administered by QNB’s Compensation Committee. The
committee determines, among other things, the employees to whom awards are granted, the type of awards, and
the amount, size, timing and terms of such awards.

The 1998 Plan provides for the granting of either non-qualified stock options or incentive stock options.
The exercise price of an option is the fair market value of QNB’s common stock at the date of grant as defined in
the plan. Participation in the 1998 Plan is limited to those full-time officers and other key executive employees of
QNB or the Bank who are in positions in which their decisions, actions, and counsel have a significant impact
upon QNB’s profitability and success. QNB directors who are not otherwise full-time officers or employees of
QNB or the Bank are not eligible to participate in the 1998 Plan.

The 1998 Plan authorizes the issuance of 220,500 shares, as adjusted. The time periods by which any
option is exercisable under the plan is determined by the committee but may not commence before the expiration
of six months or continue beyond the expiration of ten years after the date the option is awarded. As of April 1,
2005, 216,558 options were granted 200,168 options were outstanding and 6,176 shares have been issued under
the 1998 Plan.
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T EMPLOYEE STOCK PURCHASE PLAN

o
i
,\

QNB’s 2001 Employee Stock Purchase P]an offers ehglble emp]oyees an opportunity to purchase from
QNB shares of its comimon stock at a 10% discount from the lesser of fair market value on the ﬁrst or last day of
each offering period:” The offering periods are June 1* through November 30® and December 1% through May ™
31%. The plan authorizes the issuance of 42,000 shares, as adjusted. As of April 1, 2005, 11,112 shares were
issued under the plan. This plan expires by its terms on June 1, 2006.

STOCK PERFORMANCE GRAPH

Set forth on the following page isa performance graph comparing the year]y cumulative total shareholder return on
QNB's common stock with: U

the yearly cumulative total shareholder return on stocks included in the NASDAQ Market Index a broad
market index,
the yearly. cumulahve total shareholder return on the SNL $250M to $500M Bank Index, a group
encompassing 76 publicly traded banking compames trading on the NYSE, AMEX, or NASDAQ with assets
between $250 million and $500 million, '
.« .the yearly,cumulative total shareholder return on the SNL $500M to $1B Bank Index, a group
_ encompassing 113 publicly traded banking companies trading on the NYSE, AMEX, or NASDAQ with
assets between $500 million and $1 billion, ‘
- the yearly cumulatwe total. shareholder return on the SNL Mid-Atlantic Bank Index, a group.
*. encompassing 104 pubhcly traded banking companies trading on the NYSE, AMEX, or NASDAQ
. headquartered in Delaware, Dlstnct of Columbia, Maryland, New .Iersey, New York, Pennsylvania, and
Puerto RICO e s b . .
All of these cumulative total returns are computed assuming the reinvestment of dividends at the frequency with
which dividends were paid during the applicable years.

The SNL $500M to $1B Bank Index was added as a result of the increase in QNB’s asset size. The SNL Mid-
Atlantlc Bank Index was added to gwe a geographlcal peer g-roup




Comparison of Five Year Cumulative Total Shareholder Return
QNB Corp., SNL $250M - $1B Bank Index & NASDAQ Market Index

Total Return Performance
350
——QNB Com. i
300 —8— NASDAQ Composite
—o— SNL $250M-§500M Bank Index /
250 —a&— SNL $500M-$18 Bank Index
—e— SNL Mid-Adantic Bank Index //// ,
|
2 200
®
3 //
)
o 150
E .
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\'/
0 — ‘ —t— — l
" 12/31/99 12/31/00 12/31/01 12/31/02 12/31/03 12/31/04 |
i T Period Ending
Index 12/31/99| 12/31/00| 12/31/01| 12/31/02| 12/31/03] 12/31/04
QNB Corp. 100.00 106.76f 131.77| 186.83| 289.55 287.60
NASDAQ - Composite 100.00 60.82 48.16 33.11 49.93 54 .49
SNL $250M-$500M Bank Index 100.00 96.28 136.80 176.39 254.86 289.27
SNL $500M-$18 Bank Index 100.00 95.72 124.18| 158.54] 228.61 259.07
SNL Mid-Atlantic Bank Index 100.00 122.55] 115.49] 88.82 126.29| 133.75

Source: SNL Financial LC, Charlottesville, VA
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‘ ' EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF QNB AND/OR THE BANK

The followmg list sets forth the iames of the executive ofﬁcers of QNB and other sxgmﬁcant employees of
the Bank, their respective ages, positioiis held, recent business experience with QNB and the Bank, and the period
they have served in their respective capacities.

Thomas J. Bisko
. Age 57; Chief Executive Officer of QNB and the Bank from March 1988 to present Presrdent of QNB from May
1986 to present Treasurer of QNB from February 1986 to present Pre51dent of the Bank from September 1985 to
present. - . RS :
Robert C ‘Werner-..,
- Age 47; Vice Presndent of QNB from October 1988 to present Execunve Vice Pre51dent/Ch1ef Operating Officer
of the Bank from January 1994-to prese'nt Senior Vice Presrdent/Chxef Financial Officer of the Bank from
]anuary 1989 to December 1993

Bret H. Krevolin ‘

Age 42; Chief Finanéial Officer of QNB from May 2003 to: present Chief Accounting Officer of QNB from
January 1992 to present; Executive Vice President/Chief Financial Officer of the Bank from January 2000 to
present; Senior Vice President/Chief Financial Officer of the Bank from. -January 1995 to December 1999; Vice
Pr351dent/ControHer ‘of the Bank from August 1989 to December 1994,

Bryan S. Lebo | ' i
Age48; Seniior Vlce ‘President/Senior Lendmg Officer of the Bank from January 1995 to present. ’

Mary Ann Smith
Age 51; Senior Vice' Presxdent/Chlef Informatxon Officer of the’ Bank from January 1999 to present; Senior Vice
President/Operations of the Bank from January 1995 to Décember 1998; Vice President/Operations of the Bank
from January 1988 to December 1994,

Heather J. Gossler; - L - U
Age ¢ 41; Semor VICC Presxdent/Sales and Branch Admlmstratton of the Bank from January 2002 to present Vice
Presrdent/Branch Admmlstratlon of. the Bank from May 1995 to December 2001..

Scott G Orzehoskn S . f*" IR x : :
Age 39; Senior Vice Presrdent/Commercral Lendmg Ofﬁcer of the Bank from January 2002'to present V1ce
President/Commercial Lending Officer of the Bank from August 1997 to December 2001; Assrstant Vlce

President/Commercial Lendmg Officer of the Bank from February 1996 to July 1997.

CEﬁTAlN RELATIONSHIES AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

.. QNB and the Bank have not entered into any material transactions, proposed or consummated, with any
director or executive officer, or any 5% security holder, of QNB or the Bank, or any associate of the foregoing
persons, with the exception of that disclosed below. QNB and the Bank have engaged in and intend to continue to
engage in banking and financial transactions in the ordinary course of business with directors and officers of QNB
and the Bank and their associates on comparable terms with similar interest rates as those prevailing from time to
time for other bank customers.

Total loans outstandmg from the Bank at December 31, 2004, to QNB’s and the Bank’s officers and
directors as a group, members of their immediate families and companies in which they had an ownership interest
of 10% or more amounted to $1,435,000, or approximately 3.4% of the bank’s total equity capital. The Bank
made these loans in the ordinary course of business, on substantially the same terms, including interest rates and

[
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collateral, as those prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with other persons, and did not involve more
than the normal risk of collection or present other unfavorable features. The aggregate amount of indebtedness
outstanding as of the latest practicable date, February 28, 2005, to the above described group was $1,470,000.

On July 21, 2004, QNB Corp.’s wholly owned subsidiary, The Quakertown National Bank (the “Bank”),
entered into an agreement with a director of QNB Corp. for the purchase by the Bank of a two story building for a
purchase price of $600,000. The price was supported by an independent third party appraisal. Management of
QNB Corp. and the Bank believe that the transaction reflects arm’s-length, negotiated terms. The Bank intends to
use the acquired property for additional office space. ‘

SHAREHOLDER COMMUNICATIONS

The Board of Directors does not have a formal process for shareholders to send communications to the
Board. Due to the infrequency of shareholder communications to the Board of Directors, the Board does not
believe that a formal process is necessary. Written communications received by QNB from shareholders are
shared with the full Board no later than the next regularty scheduled Board meeting.

NOMINATIONS AND SHAREHOLDER PROPOSALS

Nominations for election to the Board of Directors may be made by any shareholder if made in writing and
delivered or mailed to the President of QNB, not less than 14 days or more than S0 days prior to any shareholder
meeting called for the election of directors, provided however, that if less than 21 days notice of the meeting is
given to shareholders, the nomination shall be mailed or delivered to the President of QNB not later than the close
of business on the 7 day following the day on which the notice of the meeting was mailed. The notification must
contain the following information to the extent known to the notifying shareholder:

(a) the name and address of each proposed nominee;

(b) the principal occupation of each proposed nominee;

(c) the total number of shares of QNB common stock that will be voted for each proposed nominee;
{d) the name and residential address of the notifying shareholder;

(e) the number of shares of QNB common stock owned by the notifying shareholder.

Nominations not made in accordance with these provisions may be disregarded by the Chairman at the annual
meeting.

If you wish to include a proposal in the Proxy Statement for the 2006 Annual Meeting of Stockholders, your
written proposal must be received by the Corporation no later than December 19, 2005. The proposal should be
mailed by certified mail, return receipt requested, and must comply in all respects with applicable rules and
regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission, the laws of the State of Pennsylvania, and the

Corporation’s Bylaws. Stockholder proposals may be mailed to the Secretary, QNB Corp., P.O. Box 9005,
Quakertown, PA 18951-9005.

Securities and Exchange Commission rules establish a different deadline for submission of stockholder proposals
that are not intended to be included m the Corporation’s proxy statement with respect to discretionary voting. The
deadline for these proposals for the year 2006 annual meeting is March 4, 2006. If a stockholder gives notice of such a
proposal after this deadline, the Corporation’s proxy holders will be allowed to use their discretionary authority to vote
against the stockholder proposal when and if the proposal is raised at our 2006 Annual Meeting.
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SECTION Eﬁ(a) BENEFICIAL OWNERSHIP REPORTING COMPLIANCE

Sectlon 16(a) of: the Secuntles Exchange Act of 1934 requlres QNB s officers and dxrectors and persons
who own more than 10% of QNB's common stock to file reports of ownership and changes in ownership with the
Securities and Exchange Commission.;Officers, directors and greater than 10% owners are required by Securities
and Exchange Commission regulatlons to furnish QNB with copies of all Section 16(a) forms they file.

To the Board of Dlrectors knowledge based solely on review of the copies of such reports fumlshed to
QNB during fiscal year ended December 31, 2004, all Section 16(2) filing requirements applicable to its executive
officers and directors were complied with except for Norman L. Baringer and G. Arden Link, who each
inadvertently filed one form late reporting one transaction.

cqeow o e ‘OTHER MATTERS

Managementqs not aware! of any business to come before the annual- meeting other than those matters S
described in the proxy statement and the:accompanying notice of annual meeting. However, if any other matters -
should properly come before the annual meeting, it is intended that the proxies hereby solicited will be voted with
respect to those other matters in accordance with the judgment of the persons voting the proxies.

v
\

If there are not sufficient votes for approval of any of the matters to be acted upon at the annual meeting,
the annual meeting may be adjourned to permit the further solicitation of proxies.

! L I . - .

T - o ., .y . MISCELLANEOUS

Some banks, brokers and other nominee record holders may be participating: in the  practice  .of
“householding” proxy statements and annual reports. This means that only one copy of the Corporation’s Proxy
Statement may have been sent to multiple stockholders in your household. The Corporation will promptly deliver
a separate copy of the document to you if you request one by writing or calling as follows: Jean Scholl at QNB
Corp., P.O. Box 9005, Quakertown, PA 18951-9005, telephone (215) 538-5600. If you want to receive separate
copies of the proxy statement in the future, or if you are receiving multiple copies and would like to receive only
one copy for your household, you should contact your bank, broker or other nominee record holder, or you may
contact us at the above address and phone number.

. S . ! i ; Vo . ' . . T

UPON REQUEST OF ANY STOCKHOLDER, A COPY OF THE CORPORATION'S ANNUAL
REPORT ON FORM 10-K FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2004, INCLUDING A LIST
OF THE:EXHIBITS THERETO, REQUIRED TO BE FILED WITH THE SEC PURSUANT TO RULE 13a-1
UNDER THE EXCHANGE. ACT MAY- BE: OBTAINED, WITHOUT CHARGE, BY WRITING TO THE
CORPORATION’S ASSISTANT SECRETARY AT: QNB CORP., P.O. BOX 9005, QUAKERTOWN PA
18951-9005. .
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Article I.

Article I

Article III.

Article IV,

Article V.

Article VL

Exhibit A
AMENDED AND RESTATED
ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION
OF QNB CORP,
Name
1.1 The name of the Corporation is QNB Corp.

Location

2.1  The location and post office of the initial registered office of the Corporation in
* the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania is Third and West Broad Streets,
Quakertown, Pennsylvania 18951.

Purpose '

3.1 " The corporation is incorporated under the Business Corporation Law of the
Commonwealth of Pennsylvania for the purposes of conducting any lawful act
concerning any or all lawful business for which a corporation may be

incorporated under the provisions of the Business Corporation Law.

Term

4.1 The term for which the Corporation is to exist is Pérpetual.

" Shares

5.1 The aggregate number of sha’rés which the corporation shall have authority to
issue 1s 10,000,000 shares of Common Stock par value of $0.625 per share.
Shares of authorized capital stock may be issued from time to time as and when
the Board of Directors shall determine and for such consideration as may be
fixed from time to time by the Board of Directors, except that no stock may be
issued for less than the par value thereof in the case of stock with par value.

N

No Preemptive — No Cumulative Voting

A. - No holder of shares of any class of stock of the Corporation shall have any
preemptive or preferential right to subscribe for, purchase or otherwise acquire or
receive any shares of any class of stock hereafter issued by the Corporation,
whether now or hereafter authorized, or any shares of any class of stock of the
Corporation now or hereafter acquired and held by the Corporation as treasury
stock and subsequently reissued and sold or otherwise disposed of, or any bonds,
certificates of indebtedness, notes or any other securities convertible into or
exchangeable for, or any warrants or rights to purchase or otherwise acquire, any

shares of any class of stock of the Corporation, whether now or hereafter
authorized. ‘
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At each election of directors every shareholder entitled to vote at such election

B.
shall have the right to vote the number of shares owned by him for as many
persons there are directors to be elected and for whose election he has a right to
vote. Cumulative Voting shall not vbe allowed.
Article VII. Business Combinations
A The afﬁl’mative vote of the holders of not less than seventy-ﬁve percent (75%) of

B.

the outstanding shares of stock of the Corporation then entitled to vote shall be
required for the approval or authorization of any “Business Combination” (as
hereinafter defined). Such seventy-five percent (75%) voting requirement shall
not be appllcable if: '

1. ;‘,the Board of D1rectors of the Corporatlon has by a majonty vote of the
‘ " members of the Board then in office (a) given prior approval to the
acquisition by the “Related Person” (as hereinafter defined) involved in
~ the Business Combination of 20% or more of the outstanding shares of
~ Common Stock of the Corporation, the acquisition of which resulted in
- such person, corporation or other entity becoming a Related Person or (b)
approved the Business Combination prior to the time that the person,
corporation or other entity, involved in the Business Combination shall
, have become a Related Person; or

2. . the Business Combination involves solely the Corporation and a

Subsidiary, none of whose stock is beneﬁcially owned by a Related
. Person (other than Beneficial Ownership arising solely because of the
control of the Corporation), provided that if the Corporation is not the
' surviving company, each stockholder of the Corporation receives the
" same type of consideration in such transaction in proportion to his
_stockholdings, the provisions of Article V, and Articles V11, and VIII of
’, the Corporation’s Articles of Incorporation are continued in effect or
adopted by such surviving company as part of its articles of
' 1ncorporat1on or certificate of 1ncorporat10n as the case may be, and such
L i articles or certificate have no provisions inconsistent with such
e provxslons and the prov1s1ons of the Corporation’s Bylaws are continued
in effect or adopted by said surviving company.

The Board of Directors of the Corporation when evaluating any offer of another
party to (a)-make a tender or exchange offer for any equity security of the
Corporatlon (b) merge or consolidate the Corporatlon with another corporation,
or (c) purchase or otherwise acquire all or substantially all of the properties and
assets of the ‘Corporation may consider, in connection with the exercise of its

‘ Judgment in determmmg what is the best interest of the Corporation and its

stockholders, mcludmg without l1m1tauon (1) the social and economic effects on
the employees customers, and other constltuents of the Corporation and its
subs1dlanes and on the commumtles in which the Corporation and its subsidiaries
operate or are located; (ii) the. desxrablllty of the Corporation continuing as an
mdependent entity; and (iii) such other factors as the Board of Directors shall
deem relevant.




C. For purposes of this Article VII the following defined terms shall have the
following meanings:

L

The term “Business Combination” shall mean (a) any merger or
consolidation of the Corporation or a Subsidiary with or into a Related

" Person, (b) any sale, lease, exchange, transfer or other disposition,

including without limitation, a mortgage ‘or any other security device of
all or any substantial part of the assets of the Corporation (including
without limitation any securities of a Subsidiary) or of a Subsidiary, to a
Related Person, (c) any merger or consolidation of a Related Person with
or into this Corporation or a Subsidiary, {d) any sale, lease, exchange,
transfer or other disposition of all or any substantial part of the assets of
the Related Person to this Corporation or a Subsidiary, (e) the issuance of
any securities of this Corporation or a Subsidiary of a Related Person, (f)
the acquisition by the Corporation or a Subsidiary of any securities of
Related Person, (g) any reclassification of Voting Stock of the
Corporation, or any recapitalization involving Voting Stock of the
Corporation, consummated within five years after a Related Person
becomes a Related Person, (h) any loan or other extension of credit by
the Corporation or a Subsidiary to thé Related Person or any guarantees
by the Corporation or a Subsidiary of any loan or other extension of
credit by any person to a Related Person, and (i) any agreement, contract
or other arrangement provided for any of the transactions described in
this definition of Business Combination.

The term “Related Person” shall mean and include any individual,
corporation, partnership or other person or entity which, together with its
“affiliates” and “associates”, (as those terms are hereinafter defined) is
the beneficial owner, directly or indirectly, of 20% or more in the
aggregate of the outstanding shares of the Corporation’s stock entitled to
vote at the election of directors of the Corporation.

For purposes of this Article VII any corporation, person or other entity
shall be deemed to be the beneficial owner of any shares of stock of the
Corporation, (1) which it owns directly, whether or not of record, or (ii)
which it has the right to acquire pursuant to any agreement or
understanding or upon exercise of conversion rights, warrants or options
or otherwise, whether or not presently exercisable, or (1i1) which are
beneficially owned, directly or indirectly (including shares deemed to be
owned through application of clause (ii) above), by an “affiliate” or
“associate” as those terms are defined herein, or (iv) which are
beneficially owned, directly or indirectly by any other corporation,
person or entity (including any shares which such other corporation,
person or entity has the right to acquire pursuant to any agreement or
understanding or upon exercise of conversion rights, warrants or options
or otherwise, whether or not presently exercisable) with which it or its
“affiliate” or “associate” has any agreement or arrangement or
understanding for the purpose of acquiring', holding, voting or disposing
of stock of this Corporation. :
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.4 . For the purposes of this Article VII, the term “affiliate” shall mean any
' PUU " person that directly, or indirectly through one or more intermediaries,
controls, or is controlled by, or is under common control with, such
~ corporation, person or other entity. The term “control” (including the
; term's “controlling”, “controlled by” and “under common control with”)
“L.,means the possession, duectly or mdrrectly, of the power to direct or
. ‘""cause the drrectxon of the management and policies of a corporation,
" person or other entity, whether through the ownership of voting
‘ securi'ties by contract or otherwise.

uuuuuu

' “For purposes of this Arncle VII, the term “associate” shall mean (i) any
~ corporation or organization (other than the Corporation or a majority-

' " gwned subsidiary of this Corporation) ‘of which such corporation, person
. or entity is an officer or partner or is, directly or indirectly, the beneficial
i owner of ten percent (10%) or more of any class of equity securities, (ii)
‘ any trust or other estate in which such corporation, person or other entity
‘yj',has a substantral beneﬁc1a1 interest or as to which such corporation,

2 person or other entlty serves as a trustee or in a similar fiduciary

' .,'"capac1ty, and (iii) any relative or ‘'spouse of such person, or any relative
_of such spouse,.who has the same house as such person or who is a
.. director or officer of this corporation or any of its subsidiaries.

6. The Board of Directors shall have the power and duty to determine for

" the purposes of this Article VII on the basis of information known to the
Board of Directors of the Corporation, whether (i) such other
corporation, person or other entity beneficially owns more than 20% in
number of shares of the outstanding shares of the Corporation entitled to
vote in elections of directors, and (ii) a corporation, person or other entity
is an “affiliate” ot “associate” (as defined above) of another. Any such
determination shall be conclusive and binding for all purposes of this
Article VII. ‘ '

7. ~ The, terrn “Substantial Part” shall mean more than ten percent (10%) of
. . the fotal assets of the person or entity in question, as of the end of its
~ most recent fiscal year ending pnor to the time the determination is being
, made

8 The terim “Subsrdrary shall mean any corporatron or other entity more
"~ than 50% of the stock of whrch is Beneficially owned by the
Corporatron ‘

- B

[
b

Article VIIL xAmendments _‘o'f Ai'ticles of Incorpor‘ation ‘

‘ 81 . The?e Artrclcs of Incorporatlon may be amended, subject to the provisions of the
" " laws of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania, at any regular or special meeting of
the shareholders for which adequate notice has been given, by the affirmative
 vote'of the holders of the majority of the outstanding shares of stock of the
o '“Corporanon then entitled to vote, provided however that Article V, Article VII
“ " and this Articlé VIII of the Artrcles ‘of Incorporation may be amended only by the
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affirmative vote of the holders of seventy-five percent (75%) of the outstanding

shares of stock of the Corporation then entitled to vote at a special meeting called
for that purpose.

Article IX. Director Liability

A

Director’s Personal Liability. A director of the corporation shall not be
personally liable for monetary damages for any action taken, or any failure to
take any action, provided however, that this provision shall not eliminate or limit
the liability of a director to the extent that such elimination of limitation of
liability is expressly prohibited by the Pennsylvania Director’s Liability Act as in
effect at the time of the alleged action or failure to take action by such director.

Preservation of Right. Any repeal or modification of this Article by the
shareholders of the corporation shall not adversely affect any right or protection
existing at the time of such repeal or modification to which any director or
former director may be entitled under this Article. The rights conferred by this
Article shall continue as to any person who has ceased to be director of the

corporation and shall inure to the benefit of the heir, executors and administrators
of such person.
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Exhibit B
QNB Corp.

2005 STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN

Purpose. The purpose of this Stock Incentive Plan (the "Plan") is to advance the development,
growth and financial condition of QNB Corp. (the "Corporation") and each subsidiary thereof, as
defined in Section 424 of .the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"), by
providing incentives through participation in the appreciation of the common.stock of the
Corporation to secure, retain.and motivate personnel who may be responsible for the operation
and for management of the affairs of the Corporation and any subsidiary now or hereafter existing
("Subsidiary"). . :

Term.. The Plan shall become effective as of the date it is adopted by the Corporation's Board of
Directors (the "Board"), and shall be presented for approval at the next meeting of the
Corporation's shareholders: Any and all options and rights awarded under the Plan (the "Awards")
before it is approved by the Corporation's shareholders shall be conditioned upon, and may not be
exercised before, receipt of shareholder approval, and shall lapse upon failure to receive such
approval. Unless previously terminated by the Board, the Plan shall terminate on, and no options
shall be granted after the tenth anniversary of the effective date of the Plan.

Stock. Shares of the Corporation's common stock, par value $.625 per share (the "Stock"), that
may be- issued under the Plan shall not exceed, in the aggregate, 200,000 shares, as may be
adjusted pursuant to Section 16 hereof. Shares may be either authorized and unissued shares, or
authorized shares, issued by and subsequently reacquired by the Corporation as treasury stock.
Under no circumstances shall any fractional shares be-awarded under the Plan. Except as may be
otherwise provided in the Plan, any Stock subject to an Award that, for any reason, lapses or
terminates prior to exercise, shall again become available for grant under the Plan. While the Plan
is in effect, the Corporation shall reserve and -keep available the number of shares of Stock
needed to satisfy the requirements of the Plan. The Corporation shall apply for any requisite
governmental authority to issue shares under the Plan. The Corporation’s failure to obtain any
such governmental authority, deemed necessary by the Corporation's legal counsel for the lawful
issuance and sale of Stock under the Plan, shall relieve the Corporation of any duty, or liability
for the failure to issue or sell the Stock.

Administration. The ability to control and manage the operation and administration of the Plan
shall be vested in the Board or in a committee of two or more members of the Board, selected by
the Board (the "Committee™). The Committee shall have the authority and discretion to interpret
the Plan, to establish; amend and rescind any rules and-regulations relating to the Plan, to
determine the terms and provisions of any agreements made pursuant to the Plan, and to make
any and all determinations that may be necessary or advisable for the administration of the Plan.
Any interpretation of the Plan by the-Committee and any decision made by the Committee under
the Plan is final and binding..

The Committee shall be responsible and shall have full, absolute and final power of authority to
determine what, to whom, when and under what facts and circumstances Awards shall be made,
and the form, number, terms, conditions and duration thereof; including but not limited to when
exercisable, the number. of shares of Stock subject thereto, and the stock option exercise prices.
The Committee shall make all other determinations and decisions, take all actions and do all
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things necessary-or appropriate in and-for the administration of the Plan. No member of the
Committee or of the Board shall be liable for any decision, determination or action made or taken
in good faith by such person under or with respect to the Plan or its administration.

Awards..” Awards may be made under the Plan in the form of: (a) "Qualified Options" to purchase
Stock, which are intended to‘qualify for.certain tax treatment as incentive stock options under
Sections 421 and 422 of the Code, or (b) "Non-Qualified Options" to purchase Stock, which are
not intended to qualify under Sections 421 through 424 of the Code. More than one Award may
be granted to:an eligible person, and the grant of any Award shall not prohibit the grant of another
Award, either to-the same person or otherwise, or impose any obligation to exercise on the
participant.: All Awards and the terms and conditions thereof shall be set forth in written
agreements, in such form and content as approved by the Committee from time to time, and shall
be subject to the provisions of the Plan whether or not contained in such agreements. Multiple
- Awards for:a particular person may: be set forth in a single written agreement or in multiple
agreements, as determined by the Committee, but in all cases each agreement for one or more
Awards ‘shall identify each of the Awards thereby represented as a Qualified Option or Non-
Quahﬁed Optron asithe case may be. :
S
Eligibility. Persons ehglble to receive Awards shall be those key officers and other employees of
the Corporation and: each ' Subsidiary, as determined by the Committee. A person's eligibility to
receive an Award shall not confer upon him or her any right to receive an Award. Except as
~ otherwise provided, a.person's eligibility to receive, or actual receipt of an Award under the Plan
- shall not limit'or affect his or her benefits under or eligibility to participate in any other incentive
or beneﬁt plan o program of the Corporatxon or of its afﬁhates
- Quahﬁed Qgtlons In addmon to other apphcable provisions of the Plan, all Qualified Options
.~ and Awards thereof shall be under and subject to the following terms and conditions:

(a) - u;No Quahﬁed Optxon shall be awarded more’ than ten (10) years after the date the Plan is
-adopted by the Board or the date the Plan is approved by the Corporatlon s shareholders,
.vwhxchever is earher ;

. (b) - :m,\The‘ trme xperrod ,durmg‘ which any Qualified Option is exercisable, as determined by the
Committee, shall not commence before the expiration of six (6) months or continue
beyond the exprratxon of five (5) years after the date the Qualified Option is awarded;

T
(c) ::Ifa part1c1pant who was awarded a Quahﬁed Option, ceases to be employed by the
: Corporation'or any Subsidiary for any reason other than his or her death, the Committee
~r“may permit the participant thereafter to exercise the option during its remaining term for
o a period of mot more than. three (3) months after cessation of employment to the extent
.ithat the Qualified Option was then and remains exercisable, unless such employment
- .Cessation- was due. toxthe participant's ‘disability, as defined in Section 22(e)(3) of the
Code, in which case the three (3) month period shall be twelve (12) months; if the
participant dies while employed by the Corporation or a Subsidiary, the Committee may
- permit the participant's' qualified personal representatives, or any persons who acquire the
- Qualified Option pursuant to. his or her Will or laws of descent and distribution, to
.+ . exercise the Qualified :Option during-its remaining term for a period of not more than
- twelve (12) months aftér-the participant's death to the extent that the Qualified Option
.-.was then andiremains exercisable; the Committee may impose terms and conditions upon
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and for the exercise of a Qualified Option after the cessation of the participant's
employment or his or her death,

(d) The purchase pﬁce of Stoék subject to any Qualified Option shall not be less than the
4 Stock's fair market value at the time the Qualified Option is awarded or less than the
Stock's par value; and

(e) Qualified Optiohs may not be sold, transferred or assigned by the participant except by
will or the laws of descent and distribution. .

Non-Qualified Options. In addition to other applicable provisions of the Plan, all Non-Qualified
Options and Awards thereof shall be under and subject to the following terms and conditions:

(é) The time period during which any Non-Qualified Option is exercisable shall not
commence before the expiration of six (6) months or continue beyond the expiration of
five (5) years after the date the Non-Qualified Option is awarded;

(b) If a participant, who was awarded a Non-Qualified Option, ceases to be eligible under the
' Plan, before lapse or full exercise of the option, the Committee may permit the participant
to exercise the option during its remaining term, to the extent that the option was then and
remains exercisable, gr for such time period and under such terms and conditions as may

be prescribed by the Committee;

(c) The purchase price of a share of Stock sub;ect to any Non-Qualified Option shall not be
less than the Stock's par value; and

(d) Except as otherwise provided by the Co«mmitt.ee, Non-Qualified Stock Options granted
under the Plan are not transferable except as designated by the participant by will and the
laws of descent and distribution.

Exercise. Except as otherwise provided in the Plan, Awards may be exercised in whole or in part
by giving written notice thereof to the Secretary of the Corporation, or his or her designee,
identifying the Award to be exercised, the number of shares of Stock with respect thereto, and
other information pertinent to exercise of the Award. The purchase price of the shares of Stock
with respect to which an Award is exercised shall be paid with the written notice of exercise,
either in cash, by tendering other shares of Corporation common stock held by optionee for at
least six months having a fair market value as of the date of exercise equal to the total purchase
price, by any method established by the Committee including a so-called “cashless exercise”, by
giving instructions to withhold from the stock to be received upon exercise of the option the
number of shares having a fair market value equal to the exercise price, or by any combination of
these methods of payment, at its then current fair market value, or in any combination thereof, as
the Committee shall determine. Funds received by the Corporation from the exercise of any
Award shall be used for its general corporate purposes.

The Committee may permit an acceleration of previously established exercise terms of any

Awards as, when, under such facts and circumstances, and subject to such other or further
requirements and conditions as the Committee may deem necessary or appropriate. In addition:
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10.

- (a)  if the’ Corporation or its' shareholders executeé an- agreement to dispose of all or

substantially all of the Corporation's assets or stock by means of sale, merger,
consolidation; reorganization, liquidation or otherwise, as a result of which the
‘Corporatron s shareholders immediately. before the transaction, will not own at least fifty
percent (50%) of" the total combined voting power of all classes of vating stock of the
surviving entity (be, it the Corporation or otherwise) immediately after the consummation
of the transaction, then any and all outstanding Awards shall immediately become and
temain éxXercisablé or, if the transaction is not consummated, until the agreement relating
to the transaction expires or is terminate, in which case, all Awards shall be treated as if
the agreernent was never executed
by if there is an actual attempted, or- threatened change in the ownershrp of at least twenty

five percent (25%) of all classes of voting stock of the Corporation through the

- acquisition of; or an offer to acquire such percentage of the Corporation's voting stock by
any ‘person -or entity; or persons or entities acting in concert or as a group, and the
acqursrtxon or offer has not been duly approved by the Board; or

(¢) -+ if during any‘per‘rod of two (2) consecutive years, the individuals who at the beg{nning of
- such period constituted the Board cease, for any reason, t0 constitute at least a majority of
the Board, (u'nless thie election of each director of the Board, who was not a director of
the Board at-the begrnnmg of such’period, was approved by a vote of at least two-thirds
of the directors then still in office who were directors at the beginning of such period)

thereupon any and all Awards immediately shall become and remain exercisable.

) T RS P o e - .

Withholding. When a participant exercises’' @ stock option awarded under the Plan, the
Corporation, in its discretion and as required by law, may require the participant to remit to the

~"Corporation- an amount sufficient to satisfy fully any federal, state and other jurisdictions' income

-and other tax withliélding requirements prior to the delivery of any certificates for shares of

Stock, at the Committee's discretion remittance may b¢ made in cash, shares already held by the
participant or by the withholding by the Corporation of sufficient shares issuable pursuant to the

optlon to satrsfy the part1c1pant's wrthholdmg obhgatron

B

Value. - Where used’ in- the Plan the "farr market value" of Stock or any options or rights with
: '-respeet thereto, 'including Awards, shall mean and be determined by (a) the bid price on the

" principal established domestic securities exchange on which listed, and if not listed, then (b) the

dealer "bid" price thereof on the New York over-the- counter market, as réported by the National

* Association of Securities Dealers, Inc., in either ‘¢ase as of the specified or otherwise required or

“v‘relevant time, orif not traded as of such specified, required or relevant time; then based upon

“ suchy reported: salés 'or- "bid" price before and/er after such time in accordance with pertinent
‘ provrsrons of and prmcxpies under the Code and the regulatxons promulgated thereunder

' VL T e e

r Amendment To: the extent permrtted by apphcable law, the Board rnay amend, suspend, or

terminate the plan at any time. The amendment or termination of this Plan shall not, without the
consent of the partrcrpants alter or 1mpalr any rights or obhgatlons under any Award previously

’ ‘granted hereunder, |

t" R - . . e

- Fromi-time to tn'ne the Commrttee may réscind, revise and add to any of the terms, conditions

and provisions of the Plan or of an Award as necessary or appropriate to have the Plan and any
Awards thereunder be or remain qualified and in compliance with all applicable laws, rules and
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14.

15.

regulations, and the committee may delete, omit or waive any of the terms and conditions or
provisions that are no longer required by reason of changes of applicable laws, rules or regulations,
but not limited to, the provisions of Sections 421 and 422 of the Code, Section 16 of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, (the "1934 Act") and the rules and regulations promulgated by
the Securities and Exchange Commission. Without limiting the generality of the preceding sentence,
each Qualified Option shall be subject to such other and additional terms, conditions and provisions as
the Committee may deem necessary or appropriate in order to qualify as a Qualified Option under
Section 422 of the Code, including, but not limited to, the following provisions:

(a) At the time a Qualified Option is awarded, the aggregate fair market value of the Stock
subject thereto and of any Stock of other capital stock with respect to which incentive
stock options qualifying under Sections 421 and 422 of the Code are exercisable for the
first time by the participant during any calendar year under the Plan and any other plans
of the Corporation or its affiliates, shall not exceed $100,000.00; and

(b) No Qualified Option shall be awarded to any person if, at the time of the Award, the
person owns shares of the stock of the Corporation possessing more than ten percent
(10%) of the total combined voting power of all classes of stock of the Corporation or its
affiliates, unless, at the time the Qualified Option is awarded, the exercise price of the
Qualified Option is at least one hundred and ten percent (110%) of the fair market value
of the Stock on the date of grant and the option, by its terms, is not exercisable after the
expiration of five (5) years from the date it is awarded.

Continued Employment. Nothing in the Plan or any Award shall confer upon any participant or
other persons any right to continue in the employ of, or maintain any particular relationship with,
the Corporation or its affiliates, or limit or affect any rights, powers or privileges that the
Corporation or its affiliates may have to supervise, discipline and terminate the participant.
However, the Committee may require, as a condition of making and/or exercising any Award,
that a participant agree to, and in fact provide services, either as an employee or in another
capacity, to or for the Corporation or any Subsidiary for such time pericd as the Committee may
prescribe. The immediately preceding sentence shall not apply to any Qualified Option, to the
extent such application would result in disqualification of the option under Sections 421 and 422
of the Code.

General Restrictions. If the Committee or Board determines that it is necessary or desirable to:
(a) list, register or qualify the stock subject to the Award, or the Award itself, upon any securities
exchange or under any federal or state securities or other laws, (b) obtain the approval of any
governmental authority, or {(c) enter into an agreement with the participant with respect to
disposition of any Stock (including, without limitation, an agreement that, at the time of the
participant's exercise of the Award, any Stock thereby acquired 1s and will be acquired solely for
investment purposes and without any intention to sell or distribute the Stock), then such Award
shall not be consummated in whole or in part unless the listing, registration, qualification,
approval or agreement, as the case may be, shall have been appropriately effected or obtained to
the satisfaction of the Committee and legal counsel for the Corporation.

Rights. Except as otherwise provided in the Plan, participants shall have no rights as a holder of
the Stock unless and until one or more certificates for the shares of Stock are issued and delivered
to the participant.
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7.

Adjustment “"In the event that the shares of common stock of the Corporation, as presently

constituted, shall be*changed into or exchanged for a different number or kind of shares of

* common stock or othér securities of the Corporation or of other securities of the Corporation or of

another - corporation ‘ (whether by reason of merger, consolidation, recapitalization,
reclassification, split-up, combmatron of shares or otherwise) or if the number of such shares of
common 'stock shall be increased through the payment of a stock dividend, stock split or similar

transaction; ‘then, theré shall be substituted for or added to each share of common stock of the

Corporation that ‘was theretofore appropriated, or which thereafter may become subject to an
option under the Plan, the number and kind of shares of common stack or other securities into
which each outstandmg share of the common stock of the Corporation shall be so changed or for
which each suchshare shall be exchanged or to which each such shares shall be entitled, as the

" case may be. Each outstandmg Award shall be appropriately amended as to price and other terms,
‘as may be necessary to reﬂect foregomg events

If there: shall be any other change in the number or kind of the outstanding shares of the

- common stock-of the Corporation, or of any common stock or other securities in which such common
stock shall have been changed, or'for which it shall-have been exchanged, and if a majority of the
" disinterésted members of the Committee-shall, in its sole discretion, determine that such change

equitably requires an adJustment 1in any Award that was theretofore granted or that may thereafter be

s granted under the Plan then such adjustment shall be made n accordance with such determmatlon

The grant of an Award under the Plan shall not affect in any way the right or power of the
Corporation to make adjustments, reclassifications, reorganizations or changes of its capital or

' business Structure, t6 merge, to-consolidate, to drssolve to liquidate or to sell or transfer all or any
' part- of 1ts busmess or assets. o

: Fractxonal shares resultmg from any adjustment in Awards pursuant to this Section 16
may be’ seftled s a majorrty of the disinterested members of the Board of Directors or of the

YK

'Comrmttee as the Case may be shall determine.’

'To the'extent that-the foregomg adJustments relate to common stock or securities of the

“‘Corporation, such adjustments shall be made by a majority of the members of the Board, whose

determination in that respect shall be final, binding and conclusive. Notice of any adjustment

’ shall be grven by the Corporatlon to each holder of an Award that is so adJusted

Forfelture. Notw1thstandmg anything to the contrary in this Plan, if the Committee’ finds, after
full consideration of the facts presented on behalf of the'Corporation and the involved participant,
that he' or- she has! been engaged in fraud, embezzlement, theft, commission of a felony, or
dishonesty in the -¢ourse of his or her employment by the Corporation or by any Subsidiary and
such ‘action has damaged the Corporation or the Subsidiary, as the case may be, or that the
participant has disclosed ‘trade secrets of the Corporation or its affiliates, the participant shall
forfeit all rights under and to all unexercised Awards, and under and to all exercised Awards

" undef which the‘Corpotation has not yet delivered payment or certificates for shares of Stock (as

the case may be), all of which Awards and rights shall be automatically canceled. The decision of
the Committee as to the cause of the participant's discharge from employment with the
‘Corporation or any Subsidiary and the damage thereby suffered shall be final for purposes of the
"Plan, but shall not'affect the finality of the participant's discharge by the Corporation or
Subsidiary for any other purposes. The preceding provisions of this paragraph shall not apply to




18.

19.

any Qualified Option to the extent such application would result in disqualification of the option
as an incentive stock option under Sections 421 and 422 of the Code.

Indemnification. In and with respect to the administration of the Plan, the Corporation shall
indemnify each member of the Committee and/or of the Board, each of whom shall be entitled,
without further action on his or her part, to indemnification from the Corporation for all damages,
losses, judgments, settlement amounts, punitive damages, excise taxes, fines, penalties, costs and
expenses (including without limitation attorneys' fees and disbursements) incurred by the member
in connection with any threatened, pending or completed action, suit or other proceedings of any
nature, whether civil, administrative, investigative or criminal, whether formal or informal, and
whether by or in the right or name of the Corporation, any class of its security holders, or
otherwise, by reason of his or her being or having been a member of the Committee and/or of the
Board, whether or not he or she continues to be a member of the Committee or of the Board. The
provisions, protection and benefits of this Section shall apply and exist to the fullest extent
permitted by applicable law to and for the benefit of all present and future members of the
Committee and/or of the Board and their respective heirs, personal and legal representatives,
successors and assigns, in addition to all other rights that they may have as a matter of law, by
contract, or otherwise, except (a) to the extent there is entitlement to insurance proceeds under
insurance coverage provided by the Corporation on account of the same matter or proceeding for
which indemnification hereunder is claimed, or (b) to the extent there is entitlement to
indemnification from the Corporation, other than under this Section, on account of the same
matter or proceeding for which indemnification hereunder is claimed.

Miscellaneous. (a) Any reference contained in this Plan to particular section or provision of law,
rule or regulation, including but not limited to the Code and the 1934 Act, shall include any
subsequently enacted or promulgated section or provision of law, rule or regulation, as the case
may be. With respect to persons subject to Section 16 of the 1934 Act, transactions under this
Plan are intended to comply with all applicable conditions of Section 16 and the rules and
regulations promulgated thereunder, or any successor rules and regulations that may be
promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission, and to the extent any provision of this
Plan or action by the Committee fails to so comply, it shall be deemed null and void, to the extent
permitted by applicable law and deemed advisable by the Committee.

(b) Where used in this Plan: the plural shall include the singular, and unless the context
otherwise clearly requires, the singular shall include the plural; and the term "affiliates”
shall mean each and every Subsidiary and any parent of the Corporation.

() The captions of the numbered Sections contained in this Plan are for convenience only,
and shall not limit or affect the meaning, interpretation or construction of any of the

provisions of the Plan

IN WITNESS WHEREQOF, the Corporation has caused the Plan to be duly executed by its

officers as of the 15" day of March, 2005.

(SEAL)

Jean M. Scholl
Assistant Secretary
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